SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION Washington, D.C. 20549

Schedule TO

Tender Offer Statement under Section 14(d)(1) or 13(e)(l) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934

AULT ALLIANCE, INC.

(Name of Subject Company (Issuer) and Filing Person (Offeror))

Common Stock

(Title of Class of Securities)

09175M101

(CUSIP Numbers of Class of Securities)

Henry Nisser President & General Counsel Ault Alliance, Inc. 11411 Southern Highlands Pkwy #240 Las Vegas, NV 89141 (949) 444-5464

(Name, address and phone number of person authorized to receive notices and communications on behalf of filing person)

With copies to:

Kenneth A. Schlesinger, Esq. Spencer G. Feldman, Esq. Olshan Frome Wolosky LLP 1325 Avenue of the Americas New York, New York 10019 (212) 451-2300

Check the box if the filing relates solely to preliminary communications made before the commencement of a tender offer.

Check the appropriate boxes below to designate any transactions to which the statement relates:

- third-party tender offer subject to Rule 14d-l.
- \boxtimes issuer tender offer subject to Rule 13e4.
- going-private transaction subject to Rule 13e-3.
- amendment to Schedule 13D under Rule 13d-2.

Check the following box if the filing is a final amendment reporting the results of the tender offer. \Box

If applicable, check the appropriate box(es) below to designate the appropriate rule provisions(s) relied upon:

- □ Rule 13e-4(i) (Cross-Border Issuer Tender Offer)
- □ Rule 14d-l(d) (Cross-Border Third-Party Tender Offer)

Items 1 through 9, and Item 11.

This Issuer Tender Offer Statement on Schedule TO (this "Schedule TO") relates to the offer by Ault Alliance, Inc., a Delaware corporation ("Ault Alliance" or the "Company"), pursuant to Rule 13(e)(1) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the "Exchange Act"), to exchange up to 333,333,333 shares of its outstanding Class A Common Stock, par value \$0.001 per share (the "Common Stock"), for its 10.00% Series H Cumulative Redeemable Perpetual Preferred Stock ("Series H Preferred Stock"), with each 200 shares of Common Stock being exchangeable in the Offer for three shares of Series H Preferred Stock having a liquidation preference of \$10.00 per share of Series H Preferred Stock (an effective price of \$0.15 per share of Common Stock) (the "Offer"). To avoid issuing fractional shares, Common Stock may only be tendered in increments of 200 shares. The Offer will be upon the terms and subject to the conditions set forth in the Offer to Exchange, dated March 31, 2023 (as amended and supplemented from time to time, the "Offer to Exchange") and the related Offer materials (as amended and supplemented from time to time, the "Offer Documents").

This Schedule TO is intended to satisfy the disclosure requirements of Rule 13(e)(4) under the Exchange Act.

The information set forth in the Offer to Exchange, and in the related Offering Documents, copies of which are attached hereto as Exhibits, are hereby expressly incorporated herein by reference in response to all of the items of this Schedule TO, except those items as to which information is specifically provided herein.

Item 10. Financial Statements.

(a) Financial Information

The information set forth in the Offer to Exchange in the sections entitled (1) "Historical and Unaudited Pro Forma Financial Data" and (2) "Incorporation Of Documents By Reference" (namely, (A) the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2021, filed by the Company with the SEC on April 15, 2022, and (B) the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended September 30, 2022, filed by the Company with the SEC on November 21, 2022).

(b) Pro Forma Information

The information set forth in the Offer to Exchange in the sections entitled (1) "Historical and Unaudited Pro Forma Financial Data" and (2) "Incorporation Of Documents By Reference" (namely, (A) the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2021, filed by the Company with the SEC on April 15, 2022, as amended, and (B) the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended September 30, 2022, filed by the Company with the SEC on November 21, 2022).

Item 12. Exhibits.

(a)(1)(A)*	Offer to Exchange, dated March 31, 2023			
(a)(1)(B)*	Letter of Transmittal for Offer			
(a)(1)(C)*	Notice of Guaranteed Delivery for Offer			
(a)(1)(D)*	Letter to Broker for Offer			
(a)(1)(E)*	Letter to Client for Offer			
(a)(1)(F)*	Form of Certificate of Designations, Preferences, Rights and Limitations of Series H Cumulative Redeemable Perpetual Preferred Stock			
(a)(5)(A)	Press Release issued by the Company, dated March 20, 2023 (incorporated herein by reference to the Company's Schedule TO-C filed on March 20, 2023)			
(a)(5)(B)*	Press Release issued by the Company, dated March 31, 2023			
(a)(6)(A)*	Ault Alliance Webpage			
107*	Filing Fee Table			
* Filed herewith.				
Item 13. Information Required by Schedule 13E-3.				
Not applicable.				

3

SIGNATURES

After due inquiry and to the best of my knowledge and belief, I certify that the information set forth in this statement is true, complete and correct.

Ault Alliance, Inc.

By: /s/ Henry Nisser

Name:Henry NisserTitle:President and General Counsel

Date: March 31, 2023

EXHIBIT INDEX

(a)(1)(A)*	Offer to Exchange, dated March 31, 2023
(a)(1)(B)*	Letter of Transmittal for Offer
(a)(1)(C)*	Notice of Guaranteed Delivery for Offer
(a)(1)(D)*	Letter to Broker for Offer
(a)(1)(E)*	Letter to Client for Offer
(a)(1)(F)*	Form of Certificate of Designations, Preferences, Rights and Limitations of Series H Cumulative Redeemable Perpetual Preferred Stock
(a)(5)(A)	Press Release issued by the Company, dated March 20, 2023 (incorporated herein by reference to the Company's Schedule TO-C filed on March 20, 2023)
(a)(5)(B)*	Press Release issued by the Company, dated March 31, 2023
(a)(6)(A)*	Ault Alliance Webpage
107*	Filing Fee Table
* Filed herewith	

Offer to Exchange

AULT ALLIANCE, INC.

Offer to Exchange up to 333,333,333 shares of its Common Stock (in 200 share increments) for up to \$50,000,000 aggregate liquidation preference of

its

10.00% Series H Cumulative Redeemable Perpetual Preferred Stock

Ault Alliance, Inc. ("we", "us", the "Company" or "Ault Alliance") is offering to exchange up to 333,333,333 shares of its outstanding Class A Common Stock, par value \$0.001 per share (the "Common Stock"), for its 10.00% Series H Cumulative Redeemable Perpetual Preferred Stock ("Series H Preferred Stock"), with each 200 shares of Common Stock being exchangeable in the Offer for three shares of Series H Preferred Stock having a liquidation preference of \$10.00 per share of Series H Preferred Stock (an effective price of \$0.15 per share of Common Stock) (the "Offer"). Common Stock may only be tendered in increments of 200 shares. The Offer will be upon the terms and subject to the conditions set forth in this Offer to Exchange (as amended and supplemented from time to time, this "Offer to Exchange") and the related Offer materials (as amended and supplemented from time to time, the "Offer Documents"). The exchange of at least 150,000,000 shares of Common Stock in the Offer is a closing condition to the Offer.

THE OFFER AND WITHDRAWAL RIGHTS WILL EXPIRE AT ONE MINUTE FOLLOWING 11:59 P.M. (12:00 MIDNIGHT), NEW YORK CITY TIME, ON FRIDAY APRIL 28, 2023, UNLESS EXTENDED BY THE COMPANY (SUCH TIME AND DATE, AS THE SAME MAY BE EXTENDED, THE "EXPIRATION DATE").

IF YOU HOLD YOUR STOCK THROUGH A BROKER OR OTHER NOMINEE, THE BROKER OR OTHER NOMINEE WILL LIKELY HAVE AN EARLIER DEADLINE BY WHICH YOU MUST GIVE THEM INSTRUCTIONS. EACH BROKER AND NOMINEE IS DIFFERENT AND YOU MUST FOLLOW THE APPLICABLE REQUIREMENTS AND DEADLINES OF YOUR BROKER OR NOMINEE.

For Each: 200 shares of Common Stock

Consideration to be Received:

3 shares of Series H Preferred Stock, with a liquidation preference equal to \$10.00 per share of Series H Preferred Stock

Dividends on the Series H Preferred Stock are cumulative from the date of initial issue and will be payable on the last day of each calendar quarter commencing on June 30, 2023 when, as and if declared by our board of directors ("**Board of Directors**"). Dividends will be payable out of amounts legally available therefor at a rate equal to 10.00% per annum per \$10.00 of stated liquidation preference per share, or \$0.25 per share of Series H Preferred Stock per quarter. Dividends may be paid, at the option of the Company, in the form of Common Stock determined by dividing (x) the total aggregate dollar amount of dividends accrued and unpaid with respect to Series H Preferred Stock owned by such record holder on the record date for the applicable dividend payment date (rounded to the nearest whole cent) by (y) the ten-day VWAP per share of Common Stock prior to the dividend payment date. If the Company declares a dividend to holders of Common Stock in the form of shares of the stock of its subsidiaries, then holders of Series H Preferred Stock were convertible into shares of Common Stock at a price of \$0.15 per share. However, holders of Series H Preferred Stock will not otherwise participate in any dividends or distributions of cash or other property paid in respect of our Common Stock with holders of the Common Stock. See "Description of Series H Preferred Stock — Dividends" for additional detail.

The Series H Preferred Stock will rank on a parity with the Series A Convertible Preferred Stock (the "Series A Preferred Stock"), 13.00% Series D Cumulative Redeemable Perpetual Preferred Stock (the "Series D Preferred Stock"), Series E Preferred Stock (the "Series F Preferred Stock"), and Series G Preferred Stock (the "Series G Preferred Stock") upon liquidation and the Series A Preferred Stock and Series D Preferred Stock in the right to receive dividends. On the date that is two years following the initial issuance of the Series H Preferred Stock, we may redeem, at our option, the Series H Preferred Stock, in whole or in part, from time to time, at a redemption price of \$10.00 per share, plus any accumulated and unpaid dividends (whether or not declared) on the Series H Preferred Stock up to, but not including, the date of such redemption, upon written notice, as described in the section entitled "Description of the Series H Preferred Stock — Redemption — Redemption Procedures." The Series H Preferred Stock is perpetual and has no stated maturity date, will not be subject to any sinking fund or other mandatory redemption, and will not be convertible into or exchangeable for any of our other securities.

Holders of the Series H Preferred Stock will generally have no voting rights, except for limited voting rights required by law. Holders of the Series H Preferred Stock will not have any preemptive rights to purchase or subscribe for our Common Stock or any other security.

Upon the occurrence of a Change of Control (defined below), we may, at our option, redeem the Series H Preferred Stock, in whole or in part, within 120 days after the first date on which such Change of Control occurred, for cash at a redemption price of \$10.00 per share, plus any accumulated and unpaid dividends (whether or not declared) to, but not including, the redemption date. For additional detail and the definition of a "Change of Control", see "Description of Series H Preferred Stock — Change of Control Optional Redemption".

Accordingly, because our Series H Preferred Stock will have no maturity date, and we will not be required to redeem our Series H Preferred Stock at any time, our Series H Preferred Stock will remain outstanding indefinitely unless we decide to redeem it.

On March 17, 2023, the last reported sales price of our Common Stock on the NYSE American Exchange ("NYSE American") prior to the announcement of the Offer was \$0.09 per share. On March 28, 2023, the last reported sales price of our Common Stock on the NYSE American prior to the commencement of the Offer was \$0.097 per share. As of March 28, 2023, we had 415,746,694 shares of Common Stock outstanding.

We intend to file an application to list the Series H Preferred Stock on the NYSE American or the Nasdaq Capital Market under the symbol "AULT-PDH." If this application is approved, trading in the Series H Preferred Stock is expected to commence within a 30-day period after the initial delivery of the Series H Preferred Stock. If the application is not approved, we intend to file an application to admit the Series H Preferred Stock for trading on the OTC.

The Offer is subject to the conditions discussed under "The Offer — Conditions to the Completion of the Offer".

The Offer Documents contain important information. You are encouraged to read the Offer Documents, and the documents we incorporate by reference herein, in their entirety before making any decision regarding the Offer.

Investing in the Series H Preferred Stock involves a high degree of risk. Please see the section entitled "Risk Factors" of this Offer to Exchange for a discussion of information that you should consider before exchanging Common Stock in the Offer.

Our Board of Directors has approved the Offer; however, neither our Board of Directors nor any other person is making any recommendation as to whether you should exchange your shares of Common Stock for Series H Preferred Stock. Your participation in the Offer is voluntary.

The Offer commenced on March 31, 2023 (the date the materials relating to the Offer were first sent to the record holders of Common Stock) and will end on the Expiration Date.

We are relying on Section 3(a)(9) of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the "Securities Act"), to exempt the issuance of the Series H Preferred Stock in the Offer from the registration requirements of the Securities Act. We are also relying on Section 18(b)(4)(E) of the Securities Act to provide a pre-emption of the registration and qualification requirements of the state securities laws for the issuance of the Series H Preferred Stock in the Offer. We have no contract, arrangement or understanding relating to, and will not, directly or indirectly, pay any commission or other remuneration to any broker, dealer, salesperson, agent or any other person for soliciting tenders in the Offer. No broker, dealer, salesperson, agent or other person is engaged or authorized to express any statement, opinion, recommendation or judgment with respect to the relative merits and risks of the Offer.

NEITHER THE UNITED STATES SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION NOR ANY STATE SECURITIES COMMISSION HAS APPROVED OR DISAPPROVED THE OFFER OR THE SERIES H PREFERRED STOCK OR DETERMINED IF THIS OFFER TO EXCHANGE IS ACCURATE OR COMPLETE. ANY REPRESENTATION TO THE CONTRARY IS A CRIMINAL OFFENSE.

The Exchange Agent for the Offer is Computershare Trust Company, N.A. ("Computershare") and the Information Agent for the Offer is Georgeson.

The date of this Offer to Exchange is March 31, 2023.

Table of Contents

	<u>Page</u>
IMPORTANT NOTICE	1
DISCLAIMER REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS	1
SUMMARY OF THE OFFER	3
RISK FACTORS	11
THE OFFER	14
DESCRIPTION OF AULT ALLIANCE'S COMMON STOCK	29
DESCRIPTION OF SERIES H PREFERRED STOCK	30
COMPARISON OF RIGHTS BETWEEN THE COMMON STOCK AND THE SERIES H PREFERRED STOCK	40
CERTAIN MATERIAL INCOME TAX CONSIDERATIONS	42
PLAN OF DISTRIBUTION	49
HISTORICAL AND UNAUDITED PRO FORMA FINANCIAL DATA	50
PRICE RANGE OF THE COMMON STOCK; DIVIDENDS	53
WHERE TO FIND AVAILABLE INFORMATION	54
INCORPORATION OF DOCUMENTS BY REFERENCE	54
MISCELLANEOUS	55

i

IMPORTANT NOTICE

Any holder desiring to tender shares of Common Stock in the Offer must follow the instructions set forth herein under "The Offer — Procedures for tendering shares of Common Stock in the Offer".

All tenders of shares of Common Stock must be made before the Offer expires at one minute following 11:59 P.M. (12:00 midnight), New York City time, on Friday April 28, 2023 (unless the Offer is extended).

Tendering stockholders will not be obligated to pay brokerage fees or commissions, or fees and expenses of the Exchange Agent.

WE HAVE NOT AUTHORIZED ANY PERSON TO MAKE ANY RECOMMENDATION ON OUR BEHALF AS TO WHETHER YOU SHOULD TENDER OR REFRAIN FROM TENDERING YOUR SHARES OF COMMON STOCK IN THE OFFER. WE HAVE NOT AUTHORIZED ANY PERSON TO GIVE ANY INFORMATION OR TO MAKE ANY REPRESENTATION IN CONNECTION WITH THE OFFER OTHER THAN THOSE CONTAINED IN THIS OFFER TO EXCHANGE OR IN THE RELATED LETTER OF TRANSMITTAL. YOU SHOULD NOT RELY ON ANY RECOMMENDATION, OR ANY SUCH REPRESENTATION OR INFORMATION, AS HAVING BEEN AUTHORIZED BY US, ANY MEMBER OF OUR BOARD OF DIRECTORS, THE EXCHANGE AGENT OR THE INFORMATION AGENT.

We are not making the Offer to, and will not accept any tendered shares of Common Stock from, stockholders in any jurisdiction where it would be illegal to do so. However, we may, at our discretion, take any actions necessary for us to make the Offer to stockholders in any such jurisdiction and will take such actions if required by applicable Securities and Exchange Commission ("SEC") rules and regulations. The delivery of this Offer to Exchange shall not under any circumstances create any implication that the information contained herein, or incorporated herein by reference, is correct as of any time subsequent to the date hereof or, in the case of information incorporated herein by reference, subsequent to the date thereof, or that there has been no change in the information set forth herein, or incorporated herein by reference, since the date hereof, or in the case of information incorporated herein by reference, since the date hereof.

This Offer to Exchange and the accompanying Letter of Transmittal contain important information which should be read carefully and in its entirety before any decision is made with respect to the Offer.

To request additional copies of the Offer Documents or for any requests for assistance, please contact the Information Agent at (toll-free) 1 (888) 565-5423. You may also contact your broker, dealer, commercial bank, trust company or other nominee for assistance concerning the Offer.

You should consult your own financial, tax, legal and other advisors and must make your own decision as to whether to tender your shares of Common Stock for exchange and, if so, the amount of shares of Common Stock to tender.

DISCLAIMER REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This Offer to Exchange, including the documents that we incorporate by reference herein, contain forward-looking statements regarding future events and our future results that are subject to the safe harbors created under the Securities Act of 1933 and the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the "**Exchange Act**"). All statements other than statements of historical facts are statements that could be deemed forward-looking statements. These statements are based on our expectations, beliefs, forecasts, intentions and future strategies and are signified by the words "expects," "anticipates," "intends," "believes" or similar language. In addition, any statements that refer to projections of our future financial performance, our anticipated growth, trends in our business industry, future events, estimated or anticipated future results and benefits, future opportunities for Ault Alliance, and other characterizations of future events or circumstances are forward-looking statements. These forward-looking statements are only predictions and are subject to risks, uncertainties and assumptions that are difficult to predict, including those identified below, under "Risk Factors" and elsewhere in this Offer to Exchange. Therefore, actual results may differ materially and adversely from those expressed in any forward-looking statements. All forward-looking statements included in this Offer to Exchange are based on information available to us on the date of this report and speak only as of the date hereof.



These forward-looking statements are subject to a number of risks and uncertainties regarding Ault Alliance's businesses, and actual results may differ materially. The factors that may affect our results include, among others:

- our continued operating and net losses in the future;
- our need for additional capital for our operations and in furtherance of our business strategy;
- dependency on our ability, and the ability of our contract manufacturers, to timely procure electronic components;
- the potential ineffectiveness of our strategic focus on power supply solution competencies;
- dependency on developer partners for the development of some of our custom design products;
- dependency on sales of our legacy products for a meaningful portion of our revenues;
- the inherent risks in operating in the bitcoin market;
- the possible failure of our custom product development efforts to result in products which meet customers' needs or such customers' failure to accept such new products;
- our ability to attract, retain and motivate key personnel;
- dependence on a few major customers;
- dependence on the electronic equipment industry;
- reliance on third-party subcontract manufacturers to manufacture certain aspects of the products sold by us;
- reduced profitability as a result of increased competition, price erosion and product obsolescence within the industry;
- our ability to establish, maintain and expand its OEM relationships and other distribution channels;

- our inability to procure necessary key components for its products, or the purchase of excess or the wrong inventory;
- variations in operating results from quarter to quarter; and
- dependence on international sales and the impact of certain governmental regulatory restrictions on such international sales and operations.

You should consider these factors carefully in evaluating these forward-looking statements and are cautioned not to place undue reliance on these forward-looking statements, which speak only as of the date of the Offer Documents. It is impossible for us to predict new events or circumstances that may arise in the future or how they may affect us, and we caution you that forward-looking statements are not guarantees of future performance and that our actual results of operations, financial condition and liquidity and the development of the industry in which we operate may differ materially from these forward-looking statements. We undertake no obligation to update these forward-looking statements to reflect events or circumstances occurring after the date of the Offer Documents. In addition, these forward-looking statements provide Ault Alliance's expectations, plans or forecasts of future events and views as of the date of the Offer Documents. Ault Alliance anticipates that subsequent events and developments will cause Ault Alliance's assessments to change. These forward-looking statements should not be relied upon as representing Ault Alliance's assessments as of any date subsequent to the date of the Offer Documents.

Refer to the section titled "Risk Factors" in this Offer to Exchange, to any other risk factors set forth in any information incorporated by reference into this Offer to Exchange to better understand the risks and uncertainties inherent in our business and underlying these forward-looking statements, as well as any other risk factors and cautionary statements described in the documents we file from time to time with the SEC, including those discussed in our Annual Report on Form 10-K under the headings "Risk Factors", "Legal Proceedings", "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations" and otherwise identified or discussed in our Annual Report on Form 10-K, and our Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q under the headings "Risk Factors," "Legal Proceedings," "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of discussed in our Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q, which are incorporated by reference into this Offer to Exchange.

SUMMARY OF THE OFFER

The Offer Documents contain important information that should be read carefully before any decision is made with respect to the Offer. The following summary is qualified in its entirety by the more detailed information appearing elsewhere in, or incorporated by reference into, this Offer to Exchange and the other Offer Documents. Capitalized terms used but not otherwise defined in this summary have the meanings assigned to them elsewhere in the Offer Documents.

• What is the Offer?

• In the Offer, the Company is offering to exchange shares of Common Stock in 200 share increments and then retiring those shares. The Company is paying three shares of Series H Preferred Stock for each 200 shares, thus for each increment of 200 shares, a shareholder will receive three shares of Series H Preferred Stock having a liquidation preference of \$10.00 per share of Series H Preferred Stock (the equivalent of \$0.15 per share of Common Stock for each share of Common Stock exchanged in the Offer).

- The \$0.15 liquidation preference per common share equivalent of the Series H Preferred Stock represents a 55% increase over the last reported sales price of our Common Stock as of March 28, 2023, on the NYSE American.
- To avoid issuing fractional shares, the Offer is structured in increments of 200 shares of Common Stock such that every 200 shares of Common Stock is exchangeable into three shares of Series H Preferred Stock.
- You should read the Offer Documents in their entirety and consult your own financial, tax, legal and other advisors and must make your own decision as to whether to tender your shares of Common Stock.

What are the terms of the Series H Preferred Stock?

Dividends on the Series H Preferred Stock are cumulative from the date of initial issue and will be payable on the last day of each calendar quarter commencing on June 30, 2023 when, as and if declared by our Board of Directors. Dividends will be payable out of amounts legally available therefor at a rate equal to 10.00% per annum per \$10.00 of stated liquidation preference per share, or \$0.25 per share of Series H Preferred Stock per quarter. Dividends may be paid, at the option of the Company, in the form of Common Stock determined by dividing (x) the total aggregate dollar amount of dividends accrued and unpaid with respect to Series H Preferred Stock owned by such record holder on the record date for the applicable dividend payment date (rounded to the nearest whole cent) by (y) the ten-day VWAP per share of Common Stock prior to the dividend payment date. If the Company declares a dividend to holders of Common Stock in the form of shares of the stock of its subsidiaries, then holders of Series H Preferred Stock shall participate in such dividend as if the shares of Series H Preferred Stock were convertible into shares of Common Stock at a price of \$0.15 per share. However, holders of Series H Preferred Stock will not otherwise participate in any dividends or distributions of cash or other property paid in respect of our Common Stock with holders of the Common Stock. See "Description of Series H Preferred Stock — Dividends" for additional detail.

The Series H Preferred Stock will rank on a parity with the Series D Preferred Stock, Series A Preferred Stock, Series E Preferred Stock, Series F Preferred Stock and Series G Preferred Stock upon liquidation and Series D Preferred Stock and Series A Preferred Stock in the right to receive dividends. On the date that is two years following the initial issuance of the Series H Preferred Stock, we may redeem, at our option, the Series H Preferred Stock, in whole or in part, from time to time, at a redemption price of \$10.00 per share, plus any accumulated and unpaid dividends (whether or not declared) on the Series H Preferred Stock up to, but not including, the date of such redemption, upon written notice, as described in the section entitled "Description of the Series H Preferred Stock — Redemption — Redemption Procedures." The Series H Preferred Stock is perpetual and has no stated maturity date, will not be subject to any sinking fund or other mandatory redemption, and will not be convertible into or exchangeable for any of our other securities.

Holders of the Series H Preferred Stock will generally have no voting rights, except for limited voting rights required by law. Holders of the Series H Preferred Stock will not have any preemptive rights to purchase or subscribe for our Common Stock or any other security.

Upon the occurrence of a Change of Control (defined below), we may, at our option, redeem the Series H Preferred Stock, in whole or in part, within 120 days after the first date on which such Change of Control occurred, for cash at a redemption price of \$10.00 per share, plus any accumulated and unpaid dividends (whether or not declared) to, but not including, the redemption date. For additional detail and the definition of a "Change of Control", see "Description of Series H Preferred Stock — Change of Control Optional Redemption".

Accordingly, because our Series H Preferred Stock will have no maturity date, and we will not be required to redeem our Series H Preferred Stock at any time, our Series H Preferred Stock will remain outstanding indefinitely unless we decide to redeem it.

- If I hold through a brokerage firm (e.g., Schwab, TD Ameritrade, Fidelity, Robinhood, etc.), how do I participate in the Offer?
 - To tender your shares in the Offer, you need to contact your brokerage firm and follow their procedures for instructing them to tender your shares. This is typically found in the messaging center or documents center in your online portal.
 - Because it may take some time for the broker to process your instructions, you should contact them far enough in advance of the Expiration Date to enable them to follow your instructions. The Expiration Date is one minute following 11:59 P.M. (12:00 midnight), New York City time, on Friday April 28, 2023.
 - If you are having difficulty in instructing your broker, you may contact our Information Agent for assistance at (toll-free) 1 (888) 565-5423. However, neither the Company, the Information Agent, nor the Exchange Agent can accept your tender directly, only the broker can tender on your behalf.

• Who is making the Offer?

Ault Alliance, Inc. is making the Offer. The mailing address of our principal executive offices is 11411 Southern Highlands Pkwy #240, Las Vegas, NV 89141. Our telephone number at these offices is (949) 444-5464.

• How many shares of Common Stock are sought to be exchanged in the Offer? Is it a condition to the Offer?

We are offering to exchange up to 333,333,333 shares of our Common Stock, representing approximately 80% of our shares of Common Stock outstanding as of March 28, 2023. The exchange of at least 150,000,000 shares of our Common Stock, representing approximately 36% of our shares of Common Stock outstanding as of March 28, 2023, is a condition to the Offer.

• Why is the Company making the Offer?

The Company believes that the current price for the Common Stock does not reflect the intrinsic value of the Company.

During the fiscal year ended December 31, 2022, the Company:

- Installed an aggregate of approximately 9,000 miners and intends to install an additional approximately 12,000 miners within the foreseeable future. Once all miners installed, the Company will generate approximately 180 Bitcoin per month, based on the difficulty rate as of March 2023; as of the date of this Offer to Exchange, the Company has since inception of its mining operations mined an aggregate of approximately 1,050 Bitcoin;
- Has fully paid for all its miners in its possession;

- Acquired a majority interest in Circle 8 Crane Services, LLC, which the Company expects to generate significant cash flow;
- Had, as of September 30, 2022, approximately \$610 million in total assets and stockholders' equity of approximately \$320 million. As of March 28, 2023, our shares of Common Stock traded at approximately eleven percent (11%) of our September 30, 2022 net tangible book value per share; and
- Since current management assumed control of the Company, our assets have increased by a factor of 100; in addition, the Company's management believes that the improvements to our balance sheet and income statement will continue over the next ten years.

Consequently, the Company believes that the current price for the Common Stock does not reflect these accomplishments or the intrinsic value of the Company. Thus, the Company believes that the Offer will benefit the holders of its Common Stock as follows:

- those who tender will hold shares of Series H Preferred Stock that:
 - o have a liquidation preference equivalent to \$0.15 per share of Common Stock;
 - o have cumulative dividends of 10.00% per annum; and
 - o retain the right to participate in future dividends in the form of the common stock of our subsidiaries to holders of our Common Stock;
- the \$0.15 liquidation preference per common share equivalent of the Series H Preferred Stock represents a 55% increase over the last reported sales price of our Common Stock as of March 28, 2023, on the NYSE American; and
- those who do not exchange may benefit more from future share value accretion as a result of the reduced number of shares outstanding.

• What are the effects of the Offer on the ownership structure of the Company?

Holders of Common Stock who do not exchange their shares will, assuming the Offer closes, see their percentage ownership of our outstanding Common Stock increase, however, the Common Stock will be junior to the Series H Preferred Stock, and any other class of preferred stock in respect of the right to receive payment and rights upon liquidation. In addition, depending on the number of stockholders that elect to tender some or all of their shares of Common Stock in the Offer, there may be fewer shares of Common Stock held by non-affiliated stockholders, and there may therefore be fewer transactions in the shares of Common Stock resulting in lower liquidity.

• When does the Offer expire?

The Offer will expire at one minute following 11:59 P.M. (12:00 midnight), New York City time, on Friday April 28, 2023 (unless the Offer is extended). If you hold your stock through a broker or other nominee, the broker or other nominee will likely have an earlier deadline by which you must give them instructions. Each broker and nominee is different and you must follow the applicable requirements and deadlines of your broker or nominee. See "The Offer — Expiration Date; Extensions; Amendments".

• Can the Offer be extended?

Yes, we can extend the Offer. See "The Offer - Expiration Date; Extensions; Amendments".

What securities are being sought in the Offer and what will I receive in the Offer?

Holders of Common Stock are being offered the opportunity to exchange each 200 shares of Common Stock they own for three shares of Series H Preferred Stock having a liquidation preference equal to \$10.00 per share (equivalent to \$0.15 per share of Common Stock) (the "**Exchange Ratio**"), provided that (1) Common Stock must be tendered in increments of 200 shares, and (2) the aggregate liquidation preference of the Series H Preferred Stock issued to all tendering stockholders in the Offer will not exceed \$50,000,000, upon the terms and subject to the conditions set forth in this Offer to Exchange. To avoid issuing fractional shares, the Offer is structured in increments of 200 shares of Common Stock such that every 200 shares of Common Stock is exchangeable into three shares of Series H Preferred Stock.

In the event that a number of shares of Common Stock is tendered in the Offer that would require us to issue in excess of \$50,000,000 aggregate liquidation preference of Series H Preferred Stock, then all tenders will be accepted on a pro rata basis (based on increments of 200 shares) such that the aggregate liquidation preference of the Series H Preferred Stock issued in the Offer does not exceed \$50,000,000. See "The Offer — Prorating".

• If I participate in the Offer, what is the effective yield of the dividend of the Series H Preferred Stock that I receive?

The effective yield of the Series H Preferred Stock dividend to a holder of Common Stock whose shares are accepted for exchange in the Offer will be equal to the \$1.00 per share of Series H Preferred Stock dividend rate, divided by the holder's basis in the applicable 200 shares of Common Stock. If a holder would have purchased 200 shares of Common Stock at the last reported sale price of Common Stock on March 28, 2023 of \$0.097, the effective dividend yield would have been 15.46%.

• Will the Series H Preferred Stock be freely tradable?

In making the Offer, we are relying on the exemption from the registration requirements of the Securities Act contained in Section 3(a)(9) of the Securities Act for the Series H Preferred Stock. Under that exemption, if Common Stock tendered is freely tradable, the Series H Preferred Stock received in the exchange will be freely tradable.

If the Common Stock tendered in the exchange is restricted, the Series H Preferred Stock will be restricted to the same degree.

We intend to file an application to list the Series H Preferred Stock on the NYSE American or The Nasdaq Capital Market under the symbol "AULT-PDH." If this application is approved, trading in the Series H Preferred Stock is expected to commence within a 30-day period after the approval of listing. However, we cannot assure you that the NYSE American or The Nasdaq Capital Market will list the Series H Preferred Stock or that any trading market will develop for the Series H Preferred Stock. If the application is not approved, we intend to file an application to admit the Series H Preferred Stock for trading on the OTC. If a trading market does develop, we cannot assure you as to any price at which the Series H Preferred Stock will trade. See "Risk Factors — There may not be an active trading market for the Series H Preferred Stock".

• Is there a maximum size of the Offer?

Yes. We will accept up to 333,333,333 shares of Common Stock. This represents approximately 80% of our outstanding Common Stock as of March 28, 2023. If more than 333,333,333 shares are tendered, we will only accept 333,333,333 shares of Common Stock, to be allocated among the tendering stockholders on a pro rata basis (based on increments of 200 shares).

• Is there a minimum size of the Offer?

Yes. We will require a minimum of 150,000,00 shares of Common Stock to be exchanged in the Offer. This represents approximately 36% of our outstanding Common Stock as of March 28, 2023. If less than 150,000,000 shares are tendered, then we may terminate the Offer, subject to our right to waive any closing conditions.

• Are there any conditions to the Offer?

Yes. The Offer is conditioned on the closing conditions described under "The Offer—Conditions to the Completion of the Offer", including a minimum number of shares of outstanding Common Stock being validly tendered and receipt of the consent of JGB (defined below) with respect to the Offer. We will not be required, but we reserve the right, to waive any of the conditions of the Offer (to the extent permitted by applicable law) and accept for exchange any shares of Common Stock tendered (or, alternatively, we may elect to terminate the Offer) if any of the conditions of the Offer as described under "The Offer—Conditions to the Completion of the Offer" remain unsatisfied.

• Under what circumstances may the Offer be terminated?

The Offer may be terminated if the conditions to the Offer discussed in this Offer to Exchange are not satisfied or waived or if we so elect. If the Offer is terminated and you previously have tendered shares of Common Stock, such tendered Common Stock will be credited back to an appropriate account promptly following the termination of the Offer without expense to you. See "The Offer."

• How will I be notified if the Offer is extended, amended or terminated?

We, in our sole discretion, may extend the Expiration Date for any reason. If the Offer is extended, amended or terminated, we will promptly make a public announcement by issuing a press release or filing an amendment to the Schedule TO with the SEC. In the case of an extension, the announcement will be issued no later than 9:00 a.m., New York City time, on the next business day after the previously scheduled expiration date of the Offer. See "The Offer — Expiration Date; Extensions; Amendments".

• What rights will I lose if I exchange my shares of Common Stock in the Offer?

If you validly tender your shares of Common Stock and we accept those shares for exchange, you will lose the rights of a holder of shares of Common Stock and instead only have rights as a holder of Series H Preferred Stock. For example, the Series H Preferred Stock, unlike your shares of Common Stock, do not have any voting rights (except as required by law) or the right to share in any capital appreciation. See "Description of Ault Alliance's Common Stock", "Description of Series H Preferred Stock", "Comparison of Rights Between the Common Stock and the Series H Preferred Stock" and "Price Range of the Common Stock; Dividends".

• What risks should I consider in deciding whether or not to exchange shares of Common Stock?

In deciding whether to participate in the Offer, you should carefully consider the discussion of the risks and uncertainties relating to the Offer, the Company and our industry described in the section entitled "Risk Factors", beginning on page 11 of this Offer to Exchange, and in the documents incorporated by reference into the Offer Documents.

• Who may participate in the Offer?

All holders of the shares of Common Stock who hold at least 200 shares of Common Stock may participate in the Offer. See "The Offer — Terms of the Offer". However, we are not making the Offer to, and will not accept any tendered shares of Common Stock from, stockholders in any jurisdiction where it would be illegal to do so. See "Miscellaneous". If you own less than 200 shares of Common Stock you may not participate in the Offer.

• How do I participate in the Offer if I am a record holder?

A very small number of our stockholders (most of whom originally acquired their shares directly from the Company or one of its affiliates and never moved the shares to a brokerage account) hold their shares directly as record holders. If you hold your shares through a brokerage firm (e.g., Schwab, TD Ameritrade, Fidelity, Robinhood, etc.), you are not a record holder. For our few stockholders who are record holders, in order to tender your shares of Common Stock, you must deliver a Letter of Transmittal to Computershare, as Exchange Agent, on or prior to the Expiration Date in accordance with the instructions provided in the Letter of Transmittal.

• If I choose to tender my shares of Common Stock for exchange, do I have to tender all of my shares of Common Stock?

No. You may tender all of your shares of Common Stock, a portion of your shares of Common Stock or none of your shares of Common Stock for exchange, subject to the requirement that all tenders are in increments of 200 shares. See "The Offer — Terms of the Offer".

• May I withdraw my tender of shares of Common Stock?

Yes. You can withdraw shares of Common Stock previously tendered for exchange at any time before the Expiration Date. The Expiration Date is at one minute following 11:59 P.M. (12:00 midnight), New York City time, on Friday April 28, 2023, unless extended as described in the Offer Documents. See "The Offer — Right of Withdrawal".

• What happens if I do not participate in the Offer, or if my shares of Common Stock are not accepted in the Offer because of prorating?

If you currently hold shares of Common Stock and do not tender them or if your shares of Common Stock are not accepted in the Offer because of prorating, your shares of Common Stock will continue to be issued and outstanding. See "The Offer — Terms of the Offer" and "The Offer — Prorating".

• How will I be taxed on the exchange of my shares of Common Stock?

The exchange of Common Stock for Series H Preferred Stock under the Offer is intended to qualify as a recapitalization within the meaning of Section 368(a)(1)(E) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the "**Code**"). Assuming the Offer so qualifies, the following U.S. federal income tax consequences are generally intended to result from the transaction:

- No gain or loss will be recognized on an exchange;
- Stockholders' holding period for the Series H Preferred Stock received in an exchange will include the holding period of the Common Stock exchanged in this Offer; and
- Stockholders' initial tax basis of the Series H Preferred Stock received in an exchange will be equal to the adjusted tax basis of the Common Stock exchanged.

See "Certain Material Income Tax Considerations" for further discussion regarding U.S. federal income tax consequences.

What is the status of the Company's "at-the-market" and stock repurchase program?

The Company has terminated its "at-the-market" program and no new "at-the-market" program will be initiated during the pendency of the Offer. The Company has suspended all repurchases under its stock repurchase program and such purchases will remain suspended during the pendency of the Offer.

• Has the Board of Directors adopted a position on the Offer?

Our Board of Directors has approved the making of the Offer. However, the Board of Directors has not made any recommendation as to whether you should tender your shares of Common Stock pursuant to the Offer. You should read the Offer Documents in their entirety and consult your own financial, tax, legal and other advisors and must make your own decision as to whether to tender your shares of Common Stock.

• What are the interests of our directors, executive officers and affiliates in the Offer?

None of the Company or, to the Company's knowledge, any of its affiliates, directors or executive officers, is a party to any contract, arrangement, understanding or agreement with any other person relating, directly or indirectly, to the Offer. See "Interests of directors, executive officers and affiliates of the Company in shares of Common Stock". The Company does not believe that any director or executive officer that owns shares of Common Stock currently intends to tender such shares in the Offer. However, it is possible that one or more of our directors or executive officers who own shares of Common Stock may elect to tender some or all of their shares of Common Stock in the Offer. See "Interests of directors, executive officers and affiliates of the Company in shares of Common Stock".

• Who will pay the fees and expenses associated with the Offer?

We will bear all of our fees and expenses incurred in connection with consummating the Offer. No brokerage commissions are payable by the stockholders to the Information Agent, the Exchange Agent or us. See "The Offer — Fees and Expenses".

• Who can answer questions concerning the Offer?

Requests for assistance in connection with the tender of your shares of Common Stock pursuant to the Offer may be directed to the Information Agent for the Offer, at (toll-free) 1 (888) 565-5423.



RISK FACTORS

In addition to reading and considering the other information we have included or incorporated by reference in this Offer to Exchange, you should carefully read and consider the following factors in evaluating the Offer. Any of the following risks, as well as other risks and uncertainties, may harm the value of the Series H Preferred Stock directly, or our business and financial results may indirectly harm the value of the Series H Preferred Stock, which could cause you to lose all or a part of your investment. The risks cited below are not the only risks related to the Company or the Series H Preferred Stock. Additional risks not currently known to us or that we currently deem immaterial also may impair our business and cause the value of the Series H Preferred Stock to decline. See "Disclaimer Regarding Forward-Looking Statements".

Risks Related to Our Business

For a discussion of risks associated with our business, please see the discussion of risks related to our business under the heading "Risk Factors" in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2021 and our Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarters ended March 31, 2022, June 30, 2022 and September 30, 2022.

Risks Relating to the Offer and the Series H Preferred Stock

The Offer is subject to certain contingencies and may not be completed.

The Offer is subject to certain contingencies that are not within the control of the Company. The Offer is conditioned on the closing conditions described under "The Offer — Conditions to the Completion of the Offer". We will not be required, but we reserve the right, to waive any of the conditions of the Offer (to the extent permitted by applicable law) and accept for exchange any shares of Common Stock tendered (or, alternatively, we may elect to terminate the Offer) if any of the conditions of the Offer as described under "The Offer — Conditions to the Completion of the Offer as described under "The Offer — Conditions to the Completion of the Offer" remain unsatisfied. For instance, the Offer requires the consent of JGB (defined below) and may require certain approvals or consents from government regulatory agencies, self-regulatory organizations, and/or other third parties. There can be no assurance that all required conditions, consents, or regulatory approvals will be obtained or achieved in a timely manner. Moreover, the Offer may be modified or withdrawn in certain circumstances subject to the discretion of the Company's Board of Directors. See "The Offer — Conditions to the Completion of the Offer".

There may not be an active trading market for the Series H Preferred Stock.

No market currently exists for the Series H Preferred Stock. Although the Company intends to apply to list the Series H Preferred Stock on the NYSE American or the Nasdaq Capital Market, this is not a condition to the completion of the Offer and there is no assurance that such listing will be accomplished or, if the Series H Preferred Stock is so listed, that trading will develop in the Series H Preferred Stock. If the application is not approved, we intend to file an application to admit the Series H Preferred Stock for trading on the OTC. If the Series H Preferred Stock is not listed or if a robust market does not develop, even if listed, it may impair a holder's ability to resell the Series H Preferred Stock or the prices at which they may trade. Accordingly, no assurance can be given as to the liquidity of the Series H Preferred Stock after their issuance, or the prices at which they may trade, or that a trading market will develop.

The Series H Preferred Stock do not reflect any independent valuation of the shares of the Common Stock or the Series H Preferred Stock.

We are not making a recommendation as to whether holders of shares of Common Stock should exchange their shares for Series H Preferred Stock. We have not retained and do not intend to retain any unaffiliated representative for purposes of preparing a report concerning the fairness of the Offer. We cannot assure holders of shares of Common Stock that the value of the Series H Preferred Stock received in the Offer will in the future equal or exceed the value of the shares of Common Stock tendered and we do not take a position as to whether you should participate in the Offer. If you tender your shares of Common Stock, you may or may not receive more than or as much value as you may receive if you choose to keep such shares of Common Stock.

If you do not tender your shares of Common Stock in the Offer, those shares will be subordinate in right of payment and distribution upon liquidation to the Series H Preferred Stock.

If you do not tender your shares of Common Stock in the Offer, you will continue to hold such shares. If the Offer is consummated, there will be fewer shares of our Common Stock held by the Company's stockholders, and there may therefore be fewer transactions in the shares of Common Stock. A lack of an active trading market may have an adverse effect on the trading price of our Common Stock. Additionally, the Series H Preferred Stock has a cumulative dividend rate of 10.00% unlike the Common Stock, and the Common Stock is junior to the Series H Preferred Stock in respect of distributions upon liquidation.

The completion of the Offering is likely to result in management holding a larger share of the Company's equity and voting power.

As of March 28, 2023, the Company's Executive Chairman, and his affiliates, beneficially owned 58,142,271 shares of Common Stock or approximately 13.9% of the total shares of Common Stock outstanding. Assuming that the Offer is fully subscribed by persons other than Mr. Ault and his affiliates, following consummation of the Offer, the Executive Chairman would beneficially own approximately 67.5% of the outstanding Common Stock. The interests of Mr. Ault and his affiliates may be different than the interests of stockholders in general, and the increased ownership percentage may make it easier for Mr. Ault and his affiliates to approve (or disapprove) transactions to which a majority of the other stockholders are opposed (or in favor of).

Ault Alliance may not have sufficient cash to pay dividends on the Series H Preferred Stock.

Ault Alliance conducts substantially all of its business through its subsidiaries. Accordingly, Ault Alliance's ability to pay dividends on the Series H Preferred Stock depends on the earnings of and distribution of funds from its subsidiaries. Each of these subsidiaries is a distinct legal entity and, under certain circumstances, legal and contractual restrictions may limit Ault Alliance's ability to obtain cash from them.

The Series H Preferred Stock will not require Ault Alliance to achieve or maintain minimum financial results, refrain from incurring additional debt or limit its ability to take specified actions. The lack of any of these provisions could negatively impact holders of the Series H Preferred Stock.

The terms of the Certificate of Designations will not require Ault Alliance to achieve or maintain any minimum financial results relating to its financial position or results of operations. In addition, the Certificate of Designations will not contain any operating covenants, restrict Ault Alliance from incurring additional debt or restrict Ault Alliance from paying dividends, incurring liens or repurchasing any of its indebtedness or capital stock. Ault Alliance will not be required to redeem the Series H Preferred Stock in the event Ault Alliance undergoes a Change of Control. Ault Alliance's ability to take any of these actions could diminish its ability to pay dividends on the Series H Preferred Stock when due.

The Series H Preferred Stock ranks junior to all of our liabilities and will not limit our ability to incur indebtedness and other liabilities that will rank senior to the Series H Preferred Stock.

The Series H Preferred Stock ranks junior to all of our liabilities. In the event of our bankruptcy, liquidation or winding-up, our assets will only be available to make payments of dividends on and liquidation preference of the Series H Preferred Stock after all of our indebtedness and other liabilities have been paid. As of September 30, 2022, we had approximately \$155 million of total liabilities. In addition, the Series H Preferred Stock will rank structurally junior to all existing and future liabilities of our subsidiaries and the rights of any equity holders (other than us) of those subsidiaries. As discussed above under "Ault Alliance may not have sufficient cash to pay dividends on the Series H Preferred Stock," we are a holding company and our ability to pay dividends or otherwise make payments in respect of the Series H Preferred Stock may be limited. If we are forced to liquidate our assets to pay our creditors, we may not have sufficient assets remaining to pay amounts due on any or all of the Series H Preferred Stock then issued and outstanding. We and our subsidiaries may incur substantial amounts of additional debt and other obligations that will rank senior to the Series H Preferred Stock, and the terms of the Series H Preferred Stock will not limit the amount of such debt or other obligations that we may incur. In addition, our subsidiaries may issue capital stock or other ownership interests to third parties.

The Series H Preferred Stock ranks junior as to dividend rights and rights upon liquidation with our outstanding Series B Preferred Stock.

As of March 31, 2023, there were 7,040 outstanding shares of Series A Preferred Stock, 125,000 outstanding shares of Series B Convertible Preferred Stock (the "Series B Preferred Stock"), 259,193 outstanding shares of Series D Preferred Stock, 83,000 outstanding shares of Series E Preferred Stock, 1,000 outstanding shares of Series F Preferred Stock, and 16,000 outstanding shares of Series G Preferred Stock, of which the Series B Preferred Stock ranks senior to the Series H Preferred Stock as to dividend rights and rights upon our liquidation, dissolution or winding up. The Series H Preferred Stock will rank pari passu with the Series A Preferred Stock, the Series D Preferred Stock, the Series G Preferred Stock and the Series G Preferred Stock with respect to liquidation and the Series A Preferred Stock and Series D Preferred Stock with respect to dividend rights. The outstanding shares of the senior preferred stock could have the effect of reducing the amounts available to the Series H Preferred Stock upon our liquidation, dissolution or winding up.

Volatility in the market price and trading volume of our Common Stock could adversely impact the trading prices for the Series H Preferred Stock.

The stock market in recent years has experienced significant price and volume fluctuations that have often been unrelated to the operating performance of companies. The market price of our Common Stock could fluctuate significantly for many reasons, including in response to the risks described in this section, elsewhere in this Offer to Exchange or the documents incorporated by reference in this Offer to Exchange or for reasons unrelated to our operations, such as future issuances of securities by us, reports by industry analysts, investor perceptions or negative announcements by our customers, competitors or suppliers regarding their own performance, as well as industry conditions and general financial, economic and political instability. A decrease in the market price of our Common Stock would likely adversely impact the trading price of the Series H Preferred Stock.

Our ability to issue preferred stock in the future could adversely affect the rights of holders of the Series H Preferred Stock and our Common Stock.

Our Board of Directors is authorized to issue additional series of preferred stock on parity with or senior to the Series H Preferred Stock with respect to the payment of dividends and rights upon liquidation, dissolution or winding up, without any action on the part of holders of our Series H Preferred Stock or our Common Stock. Our Board of Directors also has the power, without stockholder approval, to set the terms of any such series of preferred stock that may be issued, including voting rights, conversion rights, dividend rights, preferences over our Common Stock with respect to dividends or if we liquidate, dissolve or wind up our business and other terms. If we issue preferred stock in the future that has preference over our Series H Preferred Stock or Common Stock with respect to the payment of dividends or upon our liquidation, dissolution or winding up, or if we issue preferred stock with voting rights that dilute the voting power of our Common Stock, the market price of our Common Stock could decrease, adversely affecting the value of the Series H Preferred Stock.

We may not have sufficient earnings and profits in order for distributions on the Series H Preferred Stock to be treated as dividends.

The dividends payable by us on the Series H Preferred Stock may exceed our current and accumulated earnings and profits, as calculated for U.S. federal income tax purposes, at the time of payment. If that were to occur, it would result in the amount of dividends that exceed our earnings and profits being treated first as a return of capital to the extent of the holder's adjusted tax basis in the Series H Preferred Stock and then, to the extent of any excess over such adjusted tax basis, as capital gain. See "Certain Material Income Tax Considerations."

Increases in market interest rates may adversely affect the market price of the Series H Preferred Stock.

One of the factors that will influence the market price of the Series H Preferred Stock is the annual yield from dividends on the Series H Preferred Stock as compared to yields on other financial instruments. An increase in market interest rates generally will result in higher yields on other financial instruments, which could adversely affect the market price of the Series H Preferred Stock.

There may be future sales or other dilution of our equity, which may adversely affect the market price of the Series H Preferred Stock and the Common Stock.

Future sales or issuances of our Common Stock, including the issuance of shares of our Common Stock upon conversion of the currently outstanding convertible preferred stock and upon exercise of our outstanding warrants would be substantially dilutive to the outstanding shares of Common Stock. We may also issue shares of the Common Stock or securities convertible into the Common Stock in the future. Any dilution or potential dilution may cause our stockholders to sell their shares, which would contribute to a downward movement in the stock price of our Common Stock, which in turn, could adversely affect the trading price and liquidity of the Series H Preferred Stock.

THE OFFER

The Offer Documents contain, or incorporate by reference, important information that should be read carefully before any decision is made with respect to the Offer. See "Incorporation of Documents by Reference".

Purpose and Effect of the Offer

The Company believes that the current price for the Common Stock does not reflect the intrinsic value of the Company.

During the fiscal year ended December 31, 2022, the Company:

- Installed an aggregate of approximately 9,000 miners and intends to install an additional approximately 12,000 miners within the foreseeable future. Once all miners installed, the Company will generate approximately 180 Bitcoin per month, based on the difficulty rate as of March 2023; as of the date of this Offer to Exchange, the Company has since inception of its mining operations mined an aggregate of approximately 1,050 Bitcoin;
- Has fully paid for all its miners in its possession;
- Acquired a majority interest in Circle 8 Crane Services, LLC, which the Company expects to generate significant cash flow;
- Had, as of September 30, 2022, approximately \$610 million in total assets and stockholders' equity of approximately \$320 million. As of March 28, 2023, our shares of Common Stock traded at approximately eleven percent (11%) of our September 30, 2022 net tangible book value per share; and
- Since current management assumed control of the Company, our assets have increased by a factor of 100; in addition, the Company's management believes that the improvements to our balance sheet and income statement will continue over the next ten years.

Consequently, the Company believes that the current price for the Common Stock does not reflect these accomplishments or the intrinsic value of the Company. Thus, the Company believes that the Offer will benefit the holders of its Common Stock as follows:

- those who tender will hold shares of Series H Preferred Stock that:
 - o have a liquidation preference equivalent to \$0.15 per share of Common Stock;
 - o have cumulative dividends of 10.00% per annum; and
 - o retain the right to participate in future dividends in the form of the common stock of our subsidiaries to holders of our Common Stock;
- the \$0.15 liquidation preference per common share equivalent of the Series H Preferred Stock represents a 55% increase over the last reported sales price of our Common Stock as of March 28, 2023, on the NYSE American; and
- those who do not exchange may benefit more from future share value accretion as a result of the reduced number of shares outstanding.

Terms of the Offer

General

We are offering to exchange up to 333,333,333 shares of our Common Stock for up to \$50,000,000 aggregate liquidation preference of Series H Preferred Stock, with each 200 shares of Common Stock being exchangeable in the Offer for three shares of Series H Preferred Stock having a liquidation preference equal to \$10.00 per share. To avoid the issuance of fractional shares, Common Stock may only be tendered in increments of 200 shares.

You may tender all, some or none of your shares of Common Stock, subject to the terms and conditions of the Offer Documents.

Our acceptance of validly tendered shares of Common Stock and the closing of the Offer are subject to the conditions described under "The Offer — Conditions to the Completion of the Offer".

In the event that a number of shares of Common Stock is tendered in the Offer that would require us to issue in excess of \$50,000,000 aggregate liquidation preference of Series H Preferred Stock, then all tenders will be accepted on a pro rata basis (based on increments of 200 shares) such that the aggregate liquidation preference of the Series H Preferred Stock issued in the Offer does not exceed \$50,000,000. See "The Offer — Prorating"

Consideration to be Received, Subject to Prorating

For Each:	Consideration to be Received:
200 shares of Common Stock	3 shares of Series H Preferred Stock, with a liquidation preference equal to \$10.00 per
	share

Information Relating to the Series H Preferred Stock

Dividends on the Series H Preferred Stock are cumulative from the date of initial issue and will be payable on the last day of each calendar quarter commencing on June 30, 2023 when, as and if declared by our Board of Directors. Dividends will be payable out of amounts legally available therefor at a rate equal to 10.00% per annum per \$10.00 of stated liquidation preference per share, or \$0.25 per share of Series H Preferred Stock per quarter. Dividends may be paid, at the option of the Company, in the form of Common Stock determined by dividing (x) the total aggregate dollar amount of dividends accrued and unpaid with respect to Series H Preferred Stock owned by such record holder on the record date for the applicable dividend payment date (rounded to the nearest whole cent) by (y) the ten-day VWAP per share of Common Stock prior to the dividend payment date. In addition, if the Company declares a dividend to holders of Common Stock in the form of shares of the stock of its subsidiaries, then holders of Series H Preferred Stock shall participate in such as if the shares of Series H Preferred Stock were convertible into shares of Common Stock at a price of \$0.15 per share. However, holders of Series H Preferred Stock will not otherwise participate in any dividends or distributions of cash or other property paid in respect of our Common Stock with holders of the Common Stock. See "Description of Series H Preferred Stock — Dividends" for additional detail.

The Series H Preferred Stock will rank on a parity with the Series A Preferred Stock, Series D Preferred Stock, Series E Preferred Stock, Series F Preferred Stock and Series G Preferred Stock upon liquidation and in the right to receive dividends. On the date that is two years following the initial issuance of the Series H Preferred Stock, we may redeem, at our option, the Series H Preferred Stock, in whole or in part, from time to time, at a redemption price of \$10.00 per share, plus any accumulated and unpaid dividends (whether or not declared) on the Series H Preferred Stock up to, but not including, the date of such redemption, upon written notice, as described in the section entitled "Description of the Series H Preferred Stock — Redemption — Redemption Procedures." The Series H Preferred Stock is perpetual and has no stated maturity date, will not be subject to any sinking fund or other mandatory redemption, and will not be convertible into or exchangeable for any of our other securities.



Holders of the Series H Preferred Stock will generally have no voting rights, except for limited voting rights required by law. Holders of the Series H Preferred Stock will not have any preemptive rights to purchase or subscribe for our Common Stock or any other security.

Upon the occurrence of a Change of Control (defined below), we may, at our option, redeem the Series H Preferred Stock, in whole or in part, within 120 days after the first date on which such Change of Control occurred, for cash at a redemption price of \$10.00 per share, plus any accumulated and unpaid dividends (whether or not declared) to, but not including, the redemption date. For additional detail and the definition of a "Change of Control", see "Description of Series H Preferred Stock — Change of Control Optional Redemption".

Accordingly, because our Series H Preferred Stock will have no maturity date, and we will not be required to redeem our Series H Preferred Stock at any time, our Series H Preferred Stock will remain outstanding indefinitely unless we decide to redeem it.

Expiration Date; Extensions; Amendments

The Offer will expire at one minute following 11:59 P.M. (12:00 midnight), New York City time, on Friday April 28, 2023, unless extended by the Company.

To extend the Expiration Date, we will notify the Exchange Agent of any extension by written notice prior to 9:00 a.m., New York City time, on the next business day after the previously scheduled Expiration Date and we will notify the holders of shares of Common Stock, or cause them to be notified, by such time and date by public announcement. Such notification will state the new Expiration Date.

We expressly reserve the right to delay acceptance of any shares of Common Stock, to extend the Offer, or to terminate the Offer and not accept the shares of Common Stock not previously tendered, in each case in our sole discretion. If we exercise any such right, we will give written notice to the Exchange Agent as promptly as practicable.

If the Offer is amended in a manner we determine to constitute a material change (including the waiver of any condition that we determine to be material), we will promptly disclose such amendment in a manner reasonably calculated to inform the holders of shares of Common Stock of such amendment. If the amendment changes the amount of shares of Common Stock sought or the consideration offered pursuant to the Offer, we will extend the Expiration Date if necessary so that at least 10 business days remain in the Offer following notice of the amendment.

For any other material change, we will extend the Expiration Date if necessary so that at least five business days remain in the Offer following notice of the material change.

Source and Amount of Funds

As the Offer involves an exchange of shares of Common Stock for Series H Preferred Stock, no cash funds will be required to consummate the Offer (other than funds to pay expenses incurred in connection with the Offer, all of which we will fund from cash on hand).

Release of Legal Claims by Tendering Holders

By tendering your shares of Common Stock in the Offer, effective upon payment to you of the consideration payable in the Offer, you will, as of the closing of the Offer, be deemed to have released and waived any and all claims or causes of action of any kind whatsoever, whether known or unknown that, directly or indirectly, arise out of or are in any manner connected with your or your successors' and assigns' ownership or acquisition of the shares of Common Stock, including any accrued interest and any related transaction, event, circumstance, action, failure to act or occurrence of any sort or type, in each case, that you, your successors or your assigns have, may have or may have had against the Company or any of its affiliates, directors, officers, associates, counsel or agents or representatives, whether current or former.

Procedures for Tendering Shares of Common Stock in the Offer

"Street Name"/Beneficial Owners vs. Record Holders

Nearly all of our stockholders hold their shares in "street name" under the name of a broker, dealer, bank, trust company, or other nominee (e.g., Merrill Lynch, Charles Schwab, TD Ameritrade or Robinhood) (a "**Nominee**"). A very small number of our stockholders (most of whom originally acquired their shares directly from the Company or one of its affiliates and never moved the shares to a brokerage account) hold their shares directly as record holders.

"Street Name"/Beneficial Owners. Ault Alliance stockholders whose shares are held through a Nominee should reach out to their Nominee for further instructions. These instructions will require a holder to instruct such Nominee to arrange for a DTC participant holding the shares in its DTC account to tender such shares in the Offer to the Exchange Agent by means of delivery through the book-entry confirmation facilities of DTC of such shares to the DTC account of the Exchange Agent, together with an agent's message acknowledging that the tendering Ault Alliance stockholder has received and agrees to be bound by the Letter of Transmittal, before the Expiration Date. Return of a Letter of Transmittal by such Ault Alliance "street name" holders to the Exchange Agent is not required. To validly tender shares held in street name, Ault Alliance stockholders should instruct such Nominee to do so prior to the Expiration Date. The Nominee must also ensure that the Exchange Agent receives an agent's message from DTC, confirming the book-entry transfer of the relevant shares. Ault Alliance stockholders who hold through a Nominee should **not** fill out a Letter of Transmittal; you should only follow the instructions provided by your Nominee.

The term "agent's message" means a message transmitted by DTC to, and received by, the Exchange Agent and forming a part of a book-entry confirmation, which states that DTC has received an express acknowledgment from the DTC participant tendering the shares that are the subject of such book-entry confirmation, that such participant has received and agrees to be bound by the terms of the Letter of Transmittal and that Company may enforce that agreement against such participant.

All questions and requests for assistance may be directed to the Information Agent at 1 (888) 565-5423 (toll-free). You may also contact your broker, dealer, commercial bank, trust company or other nominee for assistance concerning the Offer.

Notice to Nominees: The Exchange Agent has established an account with respect to the shares at DTC in connection with the Offer, and any financial institution that is a participant in DTC may make book-entry delivery of shares by causing DTC to transfer such shares prior to the Expiration Date into the Exchange Agent's account in accordance with DTC's procedure for such transfer. However, although delivery of the shares may be effected through book-entry transfer at DTC, the Letter of Transmittal with any required signature guarantees, or an agent's message, along with any other required documents, must, in any case, be received by the Exchange Agent at one of its addresses set forth above prior to the Expiration Date. In each case, tendering Ault Alliance stockholders should follow the other instructions set forth in the Letter of Transmittal and in this Offer to Exchange, dated March 31, 2023, including the section of this Offer to Exchange entitled "The Offer—Procedures for tendering shares of Common Stock in the Offer." The Company cannot assure Ault Alliance stockholders that book-entry delivery of Common Stock will be available.

Record Holders. For a record holder of shares of Common Stock to validly tender shares of Common Stock pursuant to the Offer, a properly completed and duly executed Letter of Transmittal, together with any documents required by the Instructions to the Letter of Transmittal, must be received by the Exchange Agent at the address set forth on the back cover of this Offer to Exchange prior to the Expiration Date.

Letter of Transmittal (for Nominees Institutions and Record Holders)

Signature Guarantees and Stock Powers. Except as otherwise provided below, all signatures on a Letter of Transmittal must be guaranteed by a financial institution (including most commercial banks, savings and loan associations and brokerage houses) that is a member in good standing of a recognized Medallion Program approved by the Securities Transfer Association, Inc., including the Security Transfer Agents Medallion Program, the NYSE Medallion Signature Program and the Stock Exchanges Medallion Program (each, an "Eligible Institution"). Signatures on a Letter of Transmittal need not be guaranteed (a) if the Letter of Transmittal is signed by the registered owner(s) (which term, for purposes of this section, includes any participant in any of DTC's systems whose name appears on a security position listing as the owner of the shares of Common Stock) of shares of Common Stock tendered therewith and such registered owner has not completed the box entitled "Special Issuance Instructions" or the box entitled "Special Delivery Instructions" on the Letter of Transmittal or (b) if such shares of Common Stock are tendered for the account of an Eligible Institution. See Instructions 1, 2 and 5 of the Letter of Transmittal.

Guaranteed Delivery. Any record holder or Nominee who cannot complete the procedure for book-entry transfer on a timely basis, may tender his, her or its shares of Common Stock by satisfying each of the requirements set forth below:

- such tender must be made through an Eligible Institution,
- prior to one minute following 11:00 P.M. (12:00 midnight), Eastern time, on the Expiration Date, the Exchange Agent must receive from such Eligible Institution a properly completed and duly executed Notice of Guaranteed Delivery, substantially in the form provided by the Company (by mail, facsimile transmission or hand delivery), setting forth the name and address of the holder and the amount of shares of Common Stock tendered, stating that the tender is being made thereby and guaranteeing that within two trading days after the date of execution of the Notice of Guaranteed Delivery, the certificates for all physically tendered shares of Common Stock (if any), in proper form for transfer, or a Book-Entry Confirmation, as the case may be, together with a properly completed and duly executed Letter of Transmittal (or facsimile thereof or Agent's Message in lieu thereof) with any required signature guarantees and any other documents required by the Letter of Transmittal will be deposited by the Eligible Institution with the Exchange Agent, and

• a Book-Entry Confirmation, together with a properly completed and duly executed Letter of Transmittal (or facsimile thereof or Agent's Message in lieu thereof) with any required signature guarantees and all other documents required by the Letter of Transmittal, are received by the Exchange Agent within two trading days after the date of execution of the Notice of Guaranteed Delivery.

Effect of Letter of Transmittal. Subject to and effective upon the acceptance for exchange of and exchange of validly tendered shares of Common Stock, by executing and delivering a Letter of Transmittal, you (i) irrevocably sell, assign and transfer, upon the order of the Company, all right, title and interest in and to all the tendered shares of Common Stock, (ii) waive any and all rights with respect to the shares of Common Stock tendered, and (iii) release and waive any and all claims or causes of action of any kind whatsoever, whether known or unknown that, directly or indirectly, arise out of or are in any manner connected with your or your successors' and assigns' ownership or acquisition of the shares of Common Stock, including any related transaction, event, circumstance, action, failure to act or occurrence of any sort or type, in each case, that you, your successors and your assigns have, may have or may have had against us or any of our affiliates, directors, officers, associates, counsel or agents or representatives, whether current or former.

Letters of Transmittal must be sent only to the Exchange Agent. Do not send Letters of Transmittal to the Company.

THE METHOD OF DELIVERY OF SHARES OF COMMON STOCK, THE LETTER OF TRANSMITTAL AND ALL OTHER REQUIRED DOCUMENTS, INCLUDING DELIVERY THROUGH DTC, IS AT THE ELECTION AND RISK OF THE TENDERING STOCKHOLDER. DELIVERY OF ALL SUCH DOCUMENTS WILL BE DEEMED MADE ONLY WHEN ACTUALLY RECEIVED BY THE EXCHANGE AGENT (INCLUDING IN THE CASE OF A BOOK-ENTRY TRANSFER, BY BOOK-ENTRY CONFIRMATION). IF SUCH DELIVERY IS BY MAIL, IT IS RECOMMENDED THAT THE MAILING BE BY REGISTERED MAIL, PROPERLY INSURED, WITH RETURN RECEIPT REQUESTED, MADE SUFFICIENTLY IN ADVANCE OF THE EXPIRATION DATE TO PERMIT DELIVERY TO THE EXCHANGE AGENT PRIOR TO ONE MINUTE FOLLOWING 11:00 P.M. (12:00 MIDNIGHT), EASTERN TIME, ON THE EXPIRATION DATE.

Right of Withdrawal

Shares of Common Stock tendered for exchange may be withdrawn at any time before 12:00 midnight, New York City time, on the Expiration Date. For a withdrawal of tendered shares of Common Stock to be effective, a written notice of withdrawal or revocation must be received by the Exchange Agent no later than 12:00 midnight, New York City time, on the Expiration Date. Any such notice of withdrawal must:

- specify the name of the person who tendered the shares of Common Stock to be withdrawn;
- contain the description of the shares of Common Stock to be withdrawn; and
- be signed by the holder of such shares of Common Stock in the same manner as the original signature on the respective Letter of Transmittal by which such shares of Common Stock were tendered.



If the shares of Common Stock to be withdrawn have been delivered or otherwise identified to the Exchange Agent, a signed notice of withdrawal is effective immediately upon receipt of such written notice of withdrawal even if physical release has not yet been effected.

Shares of Common Stock withdrawn from the Offer may be re-tendered by following the tender procedures described above.

Prorating

The maximum number of shares of Common Stock that may be exchanged into Series H Preferred Stock is 333,333,333. The Company is exchanging shares of Common Stock in 200 share increments and is paying an effective liquidation preference of \$0.15 of Series H Preferred Stock for each share of Common Stock, thus for each increment of 200 shares, a shareholder will receive three shares of Series H Preferred Stock with a liquidation preference of \$10.00 per share. If the number of shares of Common Stock designated by all tendering holders of shares of Common Stock making valid tender exceeds 333,333,333, then the shares of Common Stock will be converted into Series H Preferred Stock subject to prorating as follows:

• The number of increments of 200 shares of Common Stock to be converted into Series H Preferred Stock will be determined by multiplying the "Proration Factor" by the total number of increments of 200 shares of Common Stock validly tendered with the result rounded to the nearest whole number; provided that amounts less than one will be rounded up to one. The "Proration Factor" is determined by dividing 333,333,333 by the product of the total number of increments of 200 shares of Common Stock validly tendered and not withdrawn by holders of shares of Common Stock and 200.

Determinations of Validity

All questions as to the validity, form, eligibility (including time of receipt) and acceptance for exchange of any tendered shares of Common Stock pursuant to any of the procedures described above, and the form and validity (including time of receipt of notices of withdrawal) of all documents will be determined by us in our sole discretion (and we may delegate the power to make any determination in whole or in part to the Exchange Agent). Any such determination will be final and binding. Your tender will not be deemed to have been validly made until all defects or irregularities in your tender have been cured or waived. Neither we, the Exchange Agent, the Information Agent nor any other person or entity is under any duty to give notification of any defects or irregularities in any tender or withdrawal of any shares of Common Stock, or will incur any liability for failure to give any such notification. We reserve the absolute right to reject any or all tenders of any shares of Common Stock determined by us not to be in proper form, or if the acceptance of or exchange of such shares of Common Stock may, in the opinion of our counsel, be unlawful. We also reserve the right to waive any conditions to the Offer that we are legally permitted to waive.

Acceptance and Delivery of Series H Preferred Stock

Acceptance of Common Stock. Upon our determination that all of the conditions to the Offer were satisfied or waived by us on or prior to the Expiration Date, including the satisfaction of the 150,000,000 minimum share condition and the receipt of the consent of JGB (defined below), all shares of Common Stock validly tendered and not withdrawn will be accepted (subject to proration as discussed above) and the Series H Preferred Stock will be delivered promptly after expiration of the Offer. Our acceptance of shares of Common Stock tendered pursuant to one of the procedures described above will constitute a binding agreement between the tendering stockholder and us upon the terms and subject to the conditions of the Offer.

Issuance of Series H Preferred Stock. Record holders of Common Stock whose Common Stock is exchanged for Series H Preferred Stock will receive Series H Preferred Stock directly registered with the Company's transfer agent ("Directly Registered Shares"). In the case of Series H Preferred Stock issued to holders in street name, the Series H Preferred Stock will be initially issued in the form of one or more global securities (the "Global Securities") registered in the name of The Depository Trust Company, or DTC, or its nominee. Upon the issuance of the Global Securities, DTC or its nominee will credit the accounts of the persons holding through it with the number of the shares of Series H Preferred Stock represented by such Global Securities. Such accounts shall be designated by the underwriters. Ownership of beneficial interests in the Global Securities will be limited to persons that have accounts with DTC or persons that may hold interests through persons with accounts.

Except as set forth below, the Global Securities may be transferred, in whole and not in part, only to another nominee of DTC or to a successor of DTC or its nominee. Beneficial interest in the Global Securities may not be exchanged for Directly Registered Shares except in the limited circumstances described below. See "— Exchange of Global Securities for Directly Registered Shares." Except in limited circumstances described below, owners of beneficial interests in Global Securities will not be entitled to receive physical delivery of shares of Series H Preferred Stock in certificated form. In addition, transfers of beneficial interest in Global Securities will be subject to the applicable rules and procedures of DTC and its direct and indirect participants which may change from time to time.

So long as the holder of a Global Security is the registered owner of any shares of Series H Preferred Stock, the holder of such Global Security will be considered the sole holder of any shares of Series H Preferred Stock evidenced by the Global Securities. Beneficial owners of shares of Series H Preferred Stock evidenced by the Global Securities will not be considered the owners or holders of such shares for any purpose. Neither we nor the transfer agent will have any responsibility or liability for any aspect of the records of DTC or for maintaining, supervising or reviewing any records of DTC relating to the Series H Preferred Stock.

Exchange of Global Securities for Directly Registered Shares

A Global Security is exchangeable for Directly Registered Shares if DTC notifies us that (a) it is unwilling or unable to continue as depositary for the Global Securities or (b) it has ceased to be a clearing agency registered under the Exchange Act and, in either case, we fail to appoint a successor depositary.

In which case, upon surrender by a holder of its global security, shares of Series H Preferred Stock in such form will be issued to each person that the holder of the global security and DTC identify as being the beneficial owner of the related Series H Preferred Stock. In addition, beneficial interests in Global Securities may be exchanged for Directly Registered Shares upon prior written notice given to the transfer agent by or on behalf of DTC. In all cases, Directly Registered Shares delivered in exchange for any Global Securities or beneficial interest in Global Securities will be registered in the names, and issued in any approved denominations, requested by or on behalf of the depositary (in accordance with its customary procedures).

We will not be liable for any delay by the global security holder or DTC in identifying the beneficial owners of Series H Preferred Stock and we may conclusively rely on, and will be protected in relying on, instructions from the holder of the Global Securities or DTC for all purposes. See "The Offer — Procedures for tendering shares of Common Stock in the Offer".

If any shares of Common Stock are not accepted for any reason set forth in this Offer to Exchange or because the Offer is terminated, such unaccepted or unexchanged shares of Common Stock will remain issued and outstanding.

Conditions to the Completion of the Offer

Notwithstanding any other provision of the Offer, or any extension of the Offer, we shall not be required to accept for exchange any shares of Common Stock or issue any Series H Preferred Stock, and we may terminate or amend the Offer at any time prior to acceptance for exchange of the shares of Common Stock if we determine, in our reasonable judgment, that any of the following conditions has not been satisfied on or before the Expiration Date or if we so elect:

- the Series H Preferred Stock shall be eligible for deposit with the Depositary Trust Company;
- there shall have been validly tendered and not withdrawn at least 150,000,000 shares of Common Stock;
- we shall have received the consent of JGB Capital, LP, a Delaware limited partnership, JGB Partners, LP, a Delaware limited partnership and JGB (Cayman) Buckeye LTD., a Cayman Islands exempted company (collectively, "JGB") with respect to the Offer;
- there shall not have occurred or be likely to occur any event that could reasonably be expected to materially adversely affect our business, financial condition, income, operations, properties or prospects, or materially impair the contemplated benefits of the Offer, or the settlement of the Offer;
- there shall not have been any action taken or threatened, or any statute, rule, regulation, judgment, order, stay, decree or injunction promulgated, enacted, entered, enforced or deemed applicable to the Offer or the exchange of shares of Common Stock for Series H Preferred Stock pursuant to the Offer, by or before any court or governmental regulatory or administrative agency or authority, tribunal, domestic or foreign, that challenges the making of the Offer or might reasonably be expected to, directly or indirectly, prohibit, prevent, restrict or delay settlement of, or might otherwise reasonably be expected to adversely affect in any material manner, the Offer; or
- there shall not have occurred (i) any general suspension of, or limitation on prices for, trading in securities in the United States securities or financial markets, (ii) any significant adverse change in the price of securities generally in the United States or other major securities markets, (iii) a material impairment in the trading market for debt securities in the United States, (iv) a declaration of a banking moratorium or any suspension of payments in respect to banks in the United States or other major financial markets, (v) any limitation (whether or not mandatory) by any government or governmental, administrative or regulatory authority or agency, domestic or foreign, or other event that might affect the extension of credit by banks or other lending institutions, (vi) a commencement of a war, armed hostilities, terrorist acts or other national or international calamity directly or indirectly involving the United States, or (vii) in the case of any of the foregoing existing on the date hereof, a material acceleration or worsening thereof.

The foregoing conditions are for the Company's benefit and may be asserted by the Company or may be waived by the Company, in whole or in part at any time, and from time to time, on or prior to the Expiration Date, in its sole discretion. In addition, the Company may terminate the Offer if any condition is not satisfied or waived on or before the Expiration Date or for any other reason if we so elect. Under the Offer, if any of the foregoing conditions is not satisfied or waived, the Company may (i) not accept shares of Common Stock tendered by you, (ii) extend the Offer and retain all tendered shares of Common Stock until the expiration of the extended Offer, or (iii) amend the Offer in any respect by giving oral or written notice of such amendment to the Exchange Agent and making public disclosure of such amendment to the extent required by applicable law.

The Company has not made a decision as to what circumstances would lead the Company to waive any such condition, and any such waiver would depend on circumstances prevailing at the time of such waiver. Although the Company has no present plans or arrangements to do so, the Company reserves the right to amend, at any time, the terms of the Offer. The Company will give holders such notice of such amendments as may be required by applicable law.

Information Agent

Georgeson has been appointed as Information Agent for the Offer. All questions and requests for assistance or for additional copies of the Offer Documents may be directed to the Information Agent at 1 (888) 565-5423. You may also contact your broker, dealer, commercial bank, trust company or other nominee for assistance concerning the Offer.

No Solicitation

There are no persons directly or indirectly employed, retained or to be compensated to make solicitations or recommendations in connection with the Offer.

Fees and Expenses

We will bear all of our fees and expenses incurred in connection with the Offer.

Transfer Taxes

We are not aware of any obligation of holders of shares of Common Stock who tender their shares of Common Stock in the Offer to pay any transfer taxes. However, if transfer tax would apply to the Offer, then the amount of any transfer taxes, whether imposed on the registered owner or any other persons, will be payable by the tendering holder. If satisfactory evidence of payment of such taxes or exemption from them is not submitted to us by the tendering holder, the amount of such transfer taxes will be billed directly to the tendering holder.

Interests of directors, executive officers and affiliates of the Company in shares of Common Stock

The following is a list of the current directors and executive officers of the Company:

Name	Position	
Board of Directors		
Milton C. Ault, III	Executive Chairman of the Board	
William B. Horne	Chief Executive Officer and Vice Chairman	
Henry Nisser	President, General Counsel and Director	
Robert O. Smith	Lead Independent Director	
Howard Ash	Director	
Jeffrey A. Bentz	Director	
Mordechai Rosenberg	Director	
Executive Officers		
Kenneth Cragun	Chief Financial Officer	
-		

In connection with his or her services to the Company and its affiliates, certain of our executive officers are parties to arrangements with the Company, which govern his respective employment, service as a director and/or certain awards or other compensation that such person may be entitled to, each of which has been previously described by the Company in filings with the SEC. Certain directors and/or executive officers may also have additional contractual arrangements with the Company, which are further discussed in the Company's filings with the SEC. See "Where to Find Available Information".

None of the Company or, to the Company's knowledge, any of its affiliates, directors or executive officers, is a party to any contract, arrangement, understanding or agreement with any other person relating, directly or indirectly, to the Offer.

Our directors and executive officers have not engaged in transactions with respect to shares of Common Stock within the last 60 days.

Within the last 60 days the Company has engaged in transactions with respect to shares of the Common Stock as set forth below:

On January 30, 2023, the Company sold 554,803 shares of Common Stock at a purchase price of \$0.1261 per share under its now terminated at-the-market offering program.

On January 31, 2023, the Company sold 760,611 shares of Common Stock at a purchase price of \$0.1280 per share under its now terminated atthe-market offering program.

On February 1, 2023, the Company sold 724,026 shares of Common Stock at a purchase price of \$0.1341 per share under its now terminated at-the-market offering program.

On February 2, 2023, the Company sold 912,925 shares of Common Stock at a purchase price of \$0.1427 per share under its now terminated at-the-market offering program.

On February 3, 2023, the Company sold 702,726 shares of Common Stock at a purchase price of \$0.1389 per share under its now terminated at-the-market offering program.

On February 6, 2023, the Company sold 738,456 shares of Common Stock at a purchase price of \$0.1398 per share under its now terminated at-the-market offering program.

On February 7, 2023, the Company sold 847,446 shares of Common Stock at a purchase price of \$0.1353 per share under its now terminated at-the-market offering program.

On February 8, 2023, the Company sold 550,088 shares of Common Stock at a purchase price of \$0.1315 per share under its now terminated at-the-market offering program.

On February 9, 2023, the Company sold 1,828,441 shares of Common Stock at a purchase price of \$0.1326 per share under its now terminated at-the-market offering program.

On February 10, 2023, the Company sold 646,049 shares of Common Stock at a purchase price of \$0.1134 per share under its now terminated at-the-market offering program.

On February 13, 2023, the Company sold 673,868 shares of Common Stock at a purchase price of \$0.1139 per share under its now terminated at-the-market offering program.

On February 14, 2023, the Company sold 440,469 shares of Common Stock at a purchase price of \$0.1170 per share under its now terminated at-the-market offering program.

On February 15, 2023, the Company sold 1,105,393 shares of Common Stock at a purchase price of \$0.1285 per share under its now terminated at-the-market offering program.

On February 16, 2023, the Company sold 932,676 shares of Common Stock at a purchase price of \$0.1284 per share under its now terminated at-the-market offering program.

On February 17, 2023, the Company sold 386,018 shares of Common Stock at a purchase price of \$0.1241 per share under its now terminated at-the-market offering program.

On February 21, 2023, the Company sold 427,042 shares of Common Stock at a purchase price of \$0.1210 per share under its now terminated at-the-market offering program.

On February 22, 2023, the Company sold 298,879 shares of Common Stock at a purchase price of \$0.1196 per share under its now terminated at-the-market offering program.

On February 23, 2023, the Company sold 283,437 shares of Common Stock at a purchase price of \$0.1168 per share under its now terminated at-the-market offering program.

On February 24, 2023, the Company sold 125,787 shares of Common Stock at a purchase price of \$0.1130 per share under its now terminated at-the-market offering program.

On February 27, 2023, the Company sold 403,908 shares of Common Stock at a purchase price of \$0.1148 per share under its now terminated at-the-market offering program.

On February 28, 2023, the Company sold 470,340 shares of Common Stock at a purchase price of \$0.1169 per share under its now terminated at-the-market offering program.

On March 1, 2023, the Company sold 365,941 shares of Common Stock at a purchase price of \$0.1216 per share under its now terminated atthe-market offering program.

On March 2, 2023, the Company sold 565,000 shares of Common Stock at a purchase price of \$0.1147 per share under its now terminated atthe-market offering program.

On March 8, 2023, the Company sold 287,163 shares of Common Stock at a purchase price of \$0.1111 per share under its now terminated atthe-market offering program.

On March 9, 2023, the Company sold 357,939 shares of Common Stock at a purchase price of \$0.1005 per share under its now terminated atthe-market offering program.

In addition, over the last 60 days the Company sold 66,490 shares of Series D Preferred Stock at an aggregate purchase price of \$881,598 under its at-the-market offering program related to the Series D Preferred Stock.

Ault Alliance stockholder information

The following table shows, based upon filings made with the SEC and other information available to the Company, certain information as of March 28, 2023 concerning persons who may be deemed beneficial owners of 5% or more of the outstanding shares of Common Stock, because they possessed or shared voting or investment power with respect to the below described shares of Common Stock.

Name and Address ⁽¹⁾	Amount and Nature of Beneficial Ownership	Current Percent of Class ⁽¹⁾	Percent of Class Post-Offering ⁽²⁾
Philou Ventures, LLC. P.O. Box 3587 Tustin, CA			
92705 ⁽³⁾	7,872	*	*
Ault Alpha LP ⁽⁴⁾	50,000,000	12.03%	60.67%
Ault & Company, Inc. ⁽⁵⁾	52,666,882	12.64%	63.14%

* Represents holdings of less than one percent.

- (1) Unless otherwise indicated, the business address of each of the individuals is c/o Ault Alliance, Inc., 11411 Southern Heights Pkwy, Suite 240, Las Vegas, NV 89141. Percent of class refers to percentage of class beneficially owned as the term beneficial ownership is defined in Rule 13d-3 under the Exchange Act and is based upon the 415,746,694 shares of Common Stock outstanding as of the date of this Offer to Exchange.
- (2) Assumes the Offer is fully subscribed and the owner does not tender.
- (3) Includes 125,000 shares of Series B Preferred Stock that are convertible in 2,232 shares of Common Stock and warrants to purchase 2,232 shares of Common Stock that are exercisable within 60 days of the date of this Offer to Exchange. Also includes 3,408 shares of Common Stock.
- (4) Includes 50,000,000 shares of Common Stock.
- (5) Includes (i) 1,658,916 shares of Common Stock, (ii) 94 shares of Common Stock underlying currently exercisable warrants, (iii) 1,000,000 shares of Common Stock purchasable pursuant to a Securities Purchase Agreement entered into on June 11, 2021 with Ault Alliance, (iv) 50,000,000 shares of Common Stock held by Ault Alpha LP ("AA"), (v) 3,408 shares of Common Stock held by Philou Ventures, LLC ("Philou Ventures"), (vi) 2,232 shares of Common Stock underlying currently exercisable warrants held by Philou Ventures, and (vii) 2,232 shares of Common Stock issuable upon the conversion of 125,000 shares of Series B Preferred Stock held by Philou Ventures. Ault Alpha GP LLC ("Ault GP") and Ault Capital Management LLC ("AC Management") are the general partner and investment manager of AA, respectively. Ault & Company, Inc. ("A&C") is the Manager of Philou Ventures. Mr. Ault is the Chief Executive Officer of A&C. Mr. Ault is the Manager of Ault GP and AC Management.

Common Stock Ownership by Directors and Executive Officers

The following table presents the number of shares of Common Stock beneficially owned by the directors, the named executive officers, and all directors, named executive officers and other executive officers as a group as of March 28, 2023. Individuals have sole voting and dispositive power over the stock unless otherwise indicated in the footnotes.

Name and Address ⁽¹⁾	Amount and Nature of Beneficial Ownership	Current Percent of Class ⁽¹⁾	Percent of Class Post-Offering ⁽²⁾
Milton Ault, III ⁽³⁾	53,960,007	12.93%	64.31%
William Horne ⁽⁴⁾	1,086,639	*	1.31%
Henry Nisser ⁽⁵⁾	1,089,583	*	1.31%
Ken Cragun ⁽⁶⁾	426,042	*	*
Robert Smith ⁽⁷⁾	392,500	*	*
Mordechai Rosenberg ⁽⁸⁾	412,500	*	*
Jeffrey A. Bentz ⁽⁹⁾	412,500	*	*
Howard Ash ⁽¹⁰⁾	362,500	*	*
All directors and executive officers as a group			
(eight persons)	58,142,271	13.86%	67.49%

* Represents holdings of less than one percent.

(1) Unless otherwise indicated, the business address of each of the individuals is c/o Ault Alliance, Inc., 11411 Southern Heights Pkwy, Suite 240, Las Vegas, NV 89141. Percent of class refers to percentage of class beneficially owned as the term "beneficial ownership" is defined in Rule 13d-3 under the Exchange Act and is based upon the 415,746,694 shares of Common Stock outstanding as of the date of this Offer to Exchange.

(2) Assumes the Offer is fully subscribed and the individual does not tender.

(3) Includes (i) 809,792 shares of Common Stock, (ii) 483,333 shares of Common Stock underlying stock options that are exercisable within 60 days of the date of this Offer to Exchange, (iii) 50,000,000 shares of Common Stock held by AA, (iv) 1,658,916 shares of Common Stock held by A&C, (v) 94 shares of Common Stock underlying warrants that are exercisable within 60 days of this Offer to Exchange held by A&C, (vi) 1,000,000 shares of Common Stock purchasable pursuant to a Securities Purchase Agreement entered into on June 11, 2021 between A&C and Ault Alliance, (vii) 3,408 shares of Common Stock held by Philou Ventures, (viii) 2,232 shares of Common Stock underlying warrants that are exercisable within 60 days of this Offer to Exchange held by Philou Ventures, and (ix) 2,232 shares of Common Stock issuable upon the conversion of 125,000 shares of Series B Preferred Stock held by Philou Ventures. Ault GP and AC Management are the general partner and investment manager to AA, respectively. A&C is the Manager of Philou Ventures. Mr. Ault is the Chief Executive Officer of A&C. Mr. Ault is the Manager of Ault GP and AC Management.

(4) Includes (i) 603,306 shares of Common Stock and (ii) 483,333 shares of Common Stock underlying stock options that are exercisable within 60 days of the date of this Offer to Exchange.

(5) Includes (i) 606,250 shares of Common Stock and (ii) 483,333 shares of Common Stock underlying stock options that are exercisable within 60 days of the date of this Offer to Exchange.

(6) Includes (i) 200,000 shares of Common Stock and (ii) 226,042 shares of Common Stock underlying stock options that are exercisable within 60 days of the date of this Offer to Exchange.

(7) Includes (i) 130,000 shares of Common Stock and (ii) 262,500 shares of Common Stock underlying stock options that are exercisable within 60 days of the date of this Offer to Exchange.

(8) Includes (i) 150,000 shares of Common Stock and (ii) 262,500 shares of Common Stock underlying stock options that are exercisable within 60 days of the date of this Offer to Exchange.

(9) Includes (i) 150,000 shares of Common Stock and (ii) 262,500 shares of Common Stock underlying stock options that are exercisable within 60 days of the date of this Offer to Exchange.

(10) Includes (i) 100,000 shares of Common Stock and (ii) 262,500 shares of Common Stock underlying stock options that are exercisable within 60 days of the date of this Offer to Exchange.

DESCRIPTION OF AULT ALLIANCE'S COMMON STOCK

The following summary does not purport to be complete and is qualified in its entirety by reference to Ault Alliance's certificate of incorporation and bylaws, each as amended, and to the provisions of the General Corporation Law of the State of Delaware, as amended.

General

Ault Alliance is authorized to issue 500,000,000 shares of Class A Common Stock, par value \$0.001 per share, and 25,000,000 shares of Class B Common Stock, par value \$0.001 per share. As of the date of this Offer to Exchange, there were 415,746,694 shares of our Class A Common Stock issued and outstanding but no shares of Class B Common Stock issued or outstanding. The outstanding shares of Ault Alliance's common stock are validly issued, fully paid and nonassessable. In this Description of Ault Alliance's Common Stock, all references solely to "common stock" shall refer to both the Class A Common Stock and Class B Common Stock except where otherwise indicated. Ault Alliance is authorized to issue up to 25,000,000 shares of preferred stock, par value \$0.001 per share. Of these shares of preferred stock, 1,000,000 are designated as Series A Preferred Stock, 500,000 are designated as Series B Preferred Stock, 2,000,000 shares are designated as the Series D Preferred Stock, 83,000 shares are designated as Series E Preferred Stock, 1,000 shares are designated as Series G Preferred Stock. As of March 31, 2023, there were 7,040 shares of Series A Preferred Stock outstanding, 125,000 shares of Series B Preferred Stock outstanding, 259,193 shares of Series D Preferred Stock outstanding, 83,000 shares of Series E Preferred Stock outstanding, 1,000 shares of Series F Preferred Stock outstanding, and 16,000 shares of Series G Preferred Stock outstanding.

Common Stock

Holders of Ault Alliance's shares of Class A Common Stock are entitled to one vote for each share on all matters submitted to a stockholder vote. Holders of Ault Alliance's shares of Class B Common Stock are entitled to ten votes for each share on all matters submitted to a stockholder vote. Holders of Ault Alliance's common stock do not have cumulative voting rights. Therefore, holders of a majority of the shares of Ault Alliance's common stock voting for the election of directors can elect all of the directors. Holders of Ault Alliance's common stock representing a majority of the voting power of our capital stock issued, outstanding and entitled to vote, represented in person or by proxy, are necessary to constitute a quorum at any meeting of stockholders. A vote by the holders of a majority of our outstanding shares is required to effectuate certain fundamental corporate changes such as liquidation, merger or an amendment to our certificate of incorporation.

Holders of Ault Alliance's common stock are entitled to share in all dividends that the Board of Directors of Ault Alliance, in its discretion, declares from legally available funds. In the event of a liquidation, dissolution or winding up, each outstanding share entitles its holder to participate pro rata in all assets that remain after payment of liabilities and after providing for each class of stock, if any, having preference over our common stock. Ault Alliance's common stock has no preemptive, subscription or conversion rights and there are no redemption provisions applicable to Ault Alliance's common stock.

Transfer Agent and Registrar

The Transfer Agent and Registrar for Ault Alliance's common stock is Computershare, 8742 Lucent Blvd., Suite 225, Highlands Ranch, CO 80129.

DESCRIPTION OF SERIES H PREFERRED STOCK

The following summary of the material terms and provisions of the Series H Preferred Stock does not purport to be complete in all respects, and is qualified in its entirety by reference to the pertinent sections of our certificate of incorporation, including the certificates of designations for the Series A Preferred Stock, Series B Preferred Stock, Series D Preferred Stock, Series E Preferred Stock, Series F Preferred Stock, and Series G Preferred Stock, copies of which are available upon request from us, and the applicable provisions of the Delaware General Corporation Law.

General

Ault Alliance is authorized to issue up to 25,000,000 shares of preferred stock, par value \$0.001 per share.

Our Board of Directors classified 5,000,000 shares of our authorized but unissued preferred stock, and has approved a Certificate of Designations creating a series of our preferred stock, designated as the "10.00% Series H Cumulative Redeemable Perpetual Preferred Stock". When issued in accordance with this Offer to Exchange, the Series H Preferred Stock will be validly issued, fully paid and nonassessable.

No Maturity, Sinking Fund or Mandatory Redemption

The Series H Preferred Stock is perpetual and has no stated maturity date and will not be subject to any sinking fund or mandatory redemption. Shares of the Series H Preferred Stock will remain outstanding indefinitely unless we decide to redeem or otherwise repurchase them. We are not required to set aside funds to redeem the Series H Preferred Stock. See "— Optional Redemption" and "— Change of Control Optional Redemption".

Ranking

The Series H Preferred Stock will rank, with respect to rights to the payment of dividends and the distribution of assets upon our liquidation, dissolution or winding up:

- (i) senior to all classes or series of our Common Stock and to all other equity securities issued by us other than equity securities referred to in clauses (ii) and (iii);
- (ii) on a parity with all equity securities issued by us with terms specifically providing that those equity securities rank on a parity with the Series H Preferred Stock with respect to the distribution of assets upon our liquidation, dissolution or winding up, including the Series A Preferred Stock, the Series D Preferred Stock, the Series E Preferred Stock, the Series F Preferred Stock and the Series G Preferred Stock and Series A Preferred Stock and Series D Preferred stock with respect to rights to the payment of dividends and;
- (iii) junior to the Series B Preferred Stock, and all equity securities issued by us with terms specifically providing that those equity securities rank senior to the Series H Preferred Stock with respect to rights to the payment of dividends and the distribution of assets upon our liquidation, dissolution or winding up; and
- (iv) effectively junior to all of our existing and future indebtedness (including indebtedness convertible into our common stock or preferred stock) and to the indebtedness and other liabilities of (as well as any preferred equity interests held by others in) our existing subsidiaries and any future subsidiaries.

Dividends

Holders of shares of the Series H Preferred Stock are entitled to receive cumulative cash dividends at the rate of 10.00% of the \$10.00 per share liquidation preference per annum (equivalent to \$1.00 per annum per share). Dividends on the Series H Preferred Stock will be payable quarterly on the last day of each calendar quarter when, as and if declared by our Board of Directors; provided that if any dividend payment date is not a business day, as defined in the Certificate of Designations, then the dividend that would otherwise have been payable on that dividend payment date may be paid on the next succeeding business day and no interest, additional dividends or other sums will accrue on the amount so payable for the period from and after that dividend payment date to that next succeeding business day. Any dividend payable on the Series H Preferred Stock, including dividends payable for any partial dividend period, will be computed on the basis of a 360-day year consisting of twelve 30-day months. Dividends will be payable to holders of record as they appear in our stock records for the Series H Preferred Stock at the close of business on the applicable record date, which will be the last day of the month, whether or not a business day, in which the applicable dividend payment date falls. As a result, holders of Series H Preferred Stock will not be entitled to receive dividends on a dividend payment date if such shares were not issued and outstanding on the applicable dividend record date.

In addition, the Company may, at its option, elect to pay dividends in the form of Common Stock by delivering to each record holder of Series H Preferred Stock a number of shares of Common Stock ("**PIK Dividend Shares**") determined by dividing (x) the total aggregate dollar amount of dividends accrued and unpaid with respect to Series H Preferred Stock shares owned by such record holder on the record date for the applicable dividend payment date (rounded to the nearest whole cent) by (y) the applicable PIK Dividend Price.



"PIK Dividend Price," means the ten-day VWAP per share of Common Stock prior to the dividend payment date.

"VWAP" means, for any date, the price determined by the first of the following clauses that applies: (a) if the Common Stock is then listed or quoted on a Trading Market, the daily volume weighted average price of the Common Stock for such date (or the nearest preceding date) on the Trading Market on which the Common Stock is then listed or quoted as reported by Bloomberg L.P. (based on a Trading Day from 9:30 a.m. (New York City time) to 4:02 p.m. (New York City time)), (b) if OTCQB or OTCQX is not a Trading Market, the volume weighted average price of the Common Stock for such date (or the nearest preceding date) on OTCQB or OTCQX as applicable, (c) if the Common Stock is not then listed or quoted for trading on OTCQB or OTCQX and if prices for the Common Stock are then reported in the "Pink Sheets" published by OTC Markets Group, Inc. (or a similar organization or agency succeeding to its functions of reporting prices), the most recent bid price per share of the Common Stock so reported, or (d) in all other cases, the fair market value of a share of Common Stock as determined by an independent appraiser selected in good faith by the majority in interest of the holders of Series H Preferred Stock then outstanding and reasonably acceptable to the Company, the fees and expenses of which shall be paid by the Company.

"**Trading Market**" means any of the following markets or exchanges on which the Common Stock is listed or quoted for trading on the date in question: the Nasdaq Capital Market, the Nasdaq Global Market, the Nasdaq Global Select Market, the New York Stock Exchange, the NYSE American, OTCQB or OTCQX (or any successors to any of the foregoing).

If the Company declares a dividend to holders of Common Stock in the form of shares of the stock of its subsidiaries, then holders of Series H Preferred Stock shall participate in such dividend as if the shares of Series H Preferred Stock were convertible into shares of Common Stock at a price of \$0.15 per share. However, holders of Series H Preferred Stock will not otherwise participate in any dividends or distributions of cash or other property paid in respect of our Common Stock with holders of the Common Stock.

No dividends on shares of Series H Preferred Stock will be authorized by our Board of Directors or paid or set apart for payment by us at any time when the terms and provisions of any agreement of ours, including any agreement relating to our indebtedness, prohibit the authorization, payment or setting apart for payment thereof would constitute a breach of the agreement or a default under the agreement, or if the authorization, payment or setting apart for payment will be restricted or prohibited by law. You should review the information appearing above under "Risk Factors — We may not have sufficient earnings and profits in order for distributions on the Series H Preferred Stock to be treated as dividends" for information as to, among other things, other circumstances under which we may be unable to pay dividends on the Series H Preferred Stock.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, dividends on the Series H Preferred Stock will accrue whether or not we have earnings, whether or not there are funds legally available for the payment of those dividends and whether or not those dividends are declared by our Board of Directors. No interest, or sum in lieu of interest, will be payable in respect of any dividend payment or payments on the Series H Preferred Stock that may be in arrears, and holders of the Series H Preferred Stock will not be entitled to any dividends in excess of full cumulative dividends described above. Any dividend payment made on the Series H Preferred Stock will first be credited against the earliest accumulated but unpaid dividend due with respect to those shares.

Future distributions on our Common Stock and preferred stock, including the Series H Preferred Stock, will be at the discretion of our Board of Directors and will depend on, among other things, our results of operations, cash flow from operations, financial condition and capital requirements, any debt service requirements and any other factors our Board of Directors deems relevant. Accordingly, we cannot guarantee that we will be able to make cash distributions, or stock distributions, on our preferred stock or what the actual distributions will be for any future period.

Unless full cumulative dividends on all shares of Series H Preferred Stock have been or contemporaneously are declared and paid or declared and a sum sufficient for the payment thereof has been or contemporaneously is set apart for payment for all past dividend periods, no dividends (other than in shares of Common Stock or in shares of any series of preferred stock that we may issue ranking junior to the Series H Preferred Stock as to the payment of dividends and the distribution of assets upon liquidation, dissolution or winding up) will be declared or paid or set aside for payment of dividends or the distribution of assets upon liquidation, or winding up. Nor will any other distribution be declared or made upon shares of our Common Stock or preferred stock that we may issue ranking junior to, or on a parity with, the Series H Preferred Stock as to the payment of dividends or the distribution of assets upon liquidation, dissolution or winding up. Nor will any other distribution be declared or made upon shares of our Common Stock or preferred stock that we may issue ranking junior to, or on a parity with, the Series H Preferred Stock as to the payment of dividends or the distribution of assets upon liquidation, dissolution or winding up. Also, any shares of our Common Stock or preferred stock that we may issue ranking junior to or on a parity with the Series H Preferred Stock as to the payment of dividends or the distribution of assets upon liquidation, dissolution or winding up. Also, any shares of our Common Stock or preferred stock that we may issue ranking junior to or on a parity with the Series H Preferred Stock as to the payment of any consideration (or any moneys paid to or made available for a sinking fund for the redemption of any such shares) by us (except by conversion into or exchange for our other capital stock that we may issue ranking junior to the Series H Preferred Stock as to the payment of dividends and the distribution of assets upon liquidation, dissolution or winding up).

When dividends are not paid in full (or a sum sufficient for such full payment is not so set apart) upon the Series H Preferred Stock and the shares of any other series of preferred stock that we may issue ranking on a parity as to the payment of dividends with the Series H Preferred Stock and any other series of preferred stock that we may issue ranking on a parity as to the payment of dividends with the Series H Preferred Stock and any other series of preferred stock that we may issue ranking on a parity as to the payment of dividends with the Series H Preferred Stock will be declared pro rata so that the amount of dividends declared per share of Series H Preferred Stock and such other series of preferred stock that we may issue will in all cases bear to each other the same ratio that accrued dividends per share on the Series H Preferred Stock and such other series of preferred stock that we may issue (which will not include any accrual in respect of unpaid dividends for prior dividend periods if such preferred stock does not have a cumulative dividend) bear to each other. No interest, or sum of money in lieu of interest, will be payable in respect of any dividend payment or payments on the Series H Preferred Stock that may be in arrears.

Liquidation Preference

In the event of our voluntary or involuntary liquidation, dissolution or winding up, the holders of shares of Series H Preferred Stock will be entitled to be paid out of the assets we have legally available for distribution to our stockholders, subject to the preferential rights of the holders of any class or series of our capital stock we may issue ranking senior to the Series H Preferred Stock with respect to the distribution of assets upon liquidation, dissolution or winding up, a liquidation preference of \$10.00 per share, plus an amount equal to any accumulated and unpaid dividends to, but not including, the date of payment, before any distribution of assets is made to holders of our Common Stock or any other class or series of our capital stock we may issue that ranks junior to the Series H Preferred Stock as to liquidation rights. In the event that, upon any such voluntary or involuntary liquidation, dissolution or winding up, our available assets are insufficient to pay the amount of the liquidating distributions on all outstanding shares of Series H Preferred Stock and the corresponding amounts payable on all shares of other classes or series of our capital stock that we may issue ranking on a parity with the Series H Preferred Stock in the distribution of assets, then the holders of the Series H Preferred Stock and all other such classes or series of capital stock will share ratably in any such distribution of assets in proportion to the full liquidating distributions to which they would otherwise be respectively entitled.

Holders of Series H Preferred Stock will be entitled to written notice of any such liquidation, dissolution or winding up no fewer than 30 days and no more than 60 days prior to the payment date. After payment of the full amount of the liquidating distributions to which they are entitled, the holders of Series H Preferred Stock will have no right or claim to any of our remaining assets. The consolidation or merger of us with or into any other corporation, trust or entity or of any other entity with or into us, or the sale, lease, transfer or conveyance of all or substantially all of our property or business, will not be deemed a liquidation, dissolution or winding up of us (although such events may give rise to the special optional redemption to the extent described below).

Voting Rights

Series H Preferred Stock. Holders of shares of our Series H Preferred Stock generally do not have any voting rights, except as required by law. Except as expressly stated in the Certificate of Designations or as may be required by applicable law, the shares of Series H Preferred Stock do not have any relative, participating, optional or other special voting rights or powers and the consent of the holders thereof will not be required for the taking of any corporate action.

Information Rights

During any period in which we are not subject to Section 13 or 15(d) of the Exchange Act and any shares of Series H Preferred Stock are outstanding, we will use our best efforts to (i) transmit by mail (or other permissible means under the Exchange Act) to all holders of Series H Preferred Stock, as their names and addresses appear on our record books and without cost to such holders, copies of the Annual Reports on Form 10-K and Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q that we would have been required to file with the SEC pursuant to Section 13 or 15(d) of the Exchange Act if we were subject thereto (other than any exhibits that would have been required) and (ii) promptly, upon request, supply copies of such reports to any holders or prospective holder of Series H Preferred Stock. We will use our best effort to mail (or otherwise provide) the information to the holders of the Series H Preferred Stock within 30 days after the respective dates by which a periodic report on Form 10-Q, as the case may be, in respect of such information would have been required to file such file with the SEC, if we were subject to Section 13 or 15(d) of the Exchange Act, in each case, based on the dates on which we would be required to file such periodic reports if we were a "non-accelerated filer" within the meaning of the Exchange Act.

Redemption

Optional Redemption

Beginning on the date that is two years following the initial issuance of the Series H Preferred Stock, we may, at our option, upon not less than 30 nor more than 60 days' written notice, redeem the Series H Preferred Stock, in whole or in part, at any time or from time to time, at a redemption price of \$10.00 per share of Series H Preferred Stock, plus any accumulated and unpaid dividends (whether or not declared) on the Series H Preferred Stock up to, but not including, the date of such redemption, upon written notice as described below under "— Redemption Procedures".

Upon the occurrence of a Change of Control, we may, at our option, upon not less than 30 nor more than 60 days' written notice, redeem the Series H Preferred Stock, in whole or in part, within 120 days after the first date on which such Change of Control occurred, for cash at a redemption price of \$10.00 per share, plus any accumulated and unpaid dividends (whether or not declared) thereon to, but not including, the redemption date.

A "Change of Control" is deemed to occur when, after the initial issuance of the Series H Preferred Stock, the following have occurred and are continuing:

- (i) the acquisition by any person, including any syndicate or group deemed to be a "person" under Section 13(d)(3) of the "Exchange Act (other than A&C and AA, both of which are significant stockholders of our company and affiliates of Milton C. (Todd) Ault III, our Executive Chairman, and any "person" or "group" under Section 13(d)(3) of the Exchange Act that is an affiliate of A&C, AA, or any trust, partnership, corporate or other entity affiliated with any of the foregoing), of beneficial ownership, directly or indirectly, through a purchase, merger or other acquisition transaction or series of purchases, mergers or other acquisition transactions of our stock entitling that person to exercise more than 50% of the total voting power of all our stock entitled to vote generally in the election of our directors (except that such person will be deemed to have beneficial ownership of all securities that such person has the right to acquire, whether such right is currently exercisable or is exercisable only upon the occurrence of a subsequent condition); and
- (ii) following the closing of any transaction referred to above, neither we nor the acquiring or surviving entity has a class of common securities (or American Depositary Receipts representing such securities) listed on the New Stock Exchange (the "NYSE"), the NYSE American or the Nasdaq Stock Market (the "Nasdaq"), or listed or quoted on an exchange or quotation system that is a successor to the NYSE, the NYSE American or Nasdaq.

Redemption Procedures

In the event we elect to redeem Series H Preferred Stock, the notice of redemption will be mailed to each holder of record of Series H Preferred Stock called for redemption at such holder's address as it appear on our stock transfer records, not less than 30 nor more than 60 days prior to the redemption date, and will state the following:

- the redemption date;
- the number of shares of Series H Preferred Stock to be redeemed;
- the redemption price;
- the place or places where certificates (if any) for the Series H Preferred Stock are to be surrendered for payment of the redemption price;
- that dividends on the shares to be redeemed will cease to accumulate on the redemption date;

- whether such redemption is being made pursuant to the provisions described above under "- Optional Redemption"; and
- if applicable, that such redemption is being made in connection with a Change of Control and, in that case, a brief description of the transaction or transactions constituting such Change of Control.

If less than all of the Series H Preferred Stock held by any holder are to be redeemed, the notice mailed to such holder will also specify the number of shares of Series H Preferred Stock held by such holder to be redeemed. No failure to give such notice or any defect thereto or in the mailing thereof will affect the validity of the proceedings for the redemption of any shares of Series H Preferred Stock except as to the holder to whom notice was defective or not given.

Holders of Series H Preferred Stock to be redeemed will surrender the Series H Preferred Stock at the place designated in the notice of redemption and will be entitled to the redemption price and any accumulated and unpaid dividends payable upon the redemption following the surrender. If notice of redemption of any shares of Series H Preferred Stock has been given and if we have irrevocably set aside the funds necessary for redemption in trust for the benefit of the holders of the shares of Series H Preferred Stock so called for redemption, then from and after the redemption date (unless default will be made by us in providing for the payment of the redemption price plus any accumulated and unpaid dividends (whether or not declared), if any), dividends will cease to accrue on those shares of Series H Preferred Stock, those shares of Series H Preferred Stock will no longer be deemed outstanding and all rights of the holders of those shares will terminate, except the right to receive the redemption price plus any accumulated and unpaid dividends (whether or not declared), if any, payable upon redemption. If any redemption date is not a business day, then the redemption price and accumulated and unpaid dividends, if any, payable upon redemption may be paid on the next business day and no interest, additional dividends or other sums will accrue on the amount payable for the period from and after that redemption date to that next business day. If less than all of the outstanding Series H Preferred Stock is to be redeemed, the Series H Preferred Stock to be redeemed will be selected pro rata (as nearly as may be practicable without creating fractional shares) or by any other equitable method we determine.

In connection with any redemption of Series H Preferred Stock, we will pay, in cash, any accumulated and unpaid dividends to, but not including, the redemption date, unless a redemption date falls after a dividend record date and prior to the corresponding dividend payment date, in which case each holder of Series H Preferred Stock at the close of business on such dividend record date will be entitled to the dividend payable on such shares on the corresponding dividend payment date notwithstanding the redemption of such shares before such dividend payment date. Except as provided above, we will make no payment or allowance for unpaid dividends, whether or not in arrears, on shares of the Series H Preferred Stock to be redeemed.

Unless full cumulative dividends on all shares of Series H Preferred Stock have been or contemporaneously are declared and paid or declared and a sum sufficient for the payment thereof has been or contemporaneously is set apart for payment for all past dividend periods, no shares of Series H Preferred Stock will be redeemed unless all outstanding shares of Series H Preferred Stock are simultaneously redeemed and we will not purchase or otherwise acquire directly or indirectly any shares of Series H Preferred Stock (except by exchanging it for our capital stock ranking junior to the Series H Preferred Stock as to the payment of dividends and distribution of assets upon liquidation, dissolution or winding up); provided, however, that the foregoing will not prevent the purchase or acquisition by us of shares of Series H Preferred Stock pursuant to a purchase or exchange offer made on the same terms to holders of all outstanding shares of Series H Preferred Stock.

Subject to applicable law, we may purchase shares of Series H Preferred Stock in the open market, by tender or by private agreement. Any shares of Series H Preferred Stock that we acquire may be retired and reclassified as authorized but unissued shares of preferred stock, without designation as to class or series, and may thereafter be reissued as any class or series of preferred stock.

No Preemptive Rights

No holders of the Series H Preferred Stock will, as holders of Series H Preferred Stock, have any preemptive rights to purchase or subscribe for our common stock or any other security.

Change of Control

Provisions in our certificate of incorporation, as amended, and bylaws, as amended and restated, may make it difficult and expensive for a third party to pursue a tender offer, change in control or takeover attempt, which is opposed by management and our Board of Directors.

Transfer Agent

The transfer agent, conversion agent and registrar for our Common Stock and the Series H Preferred Stock is Computershare.

Book-Entry, Delivery and Form

Series H Preferred Stock issued to existing record holders of Common Stock will be issued in the form of Directly Registered Shares. All other Series H Preferred Stock will be initially issued in the form of one or more Global Securities registered in the name of The Depository Trust Company, or DTC, or its nominee. Upon the issuance of the Global Securities, DTC or its nominee will credit the accounts of Persons holding through it with the number of the shares of Series H Preferred Stock represented by such Global Securities. Ownership of beneficial interests in the Global Securities will be limited to persons that have accounts with DTC ("**participants**") or persons that may hold interests through participants.

Except as set forth below, the Global Securities may be transferred, in whole and not in part, only to another nominee of DTC or to a successor of DTC or its nominee. Beneficial interest in the Global Securities may not be exchanged for Directly Registered Shares except in the limited circumstances described below. See "— Exchange of Global Securities for Directly Registered Shares." Except in limited circumstances described below, owners of beneficial interests in Global Securities will not be entitled to receive physical delivery of shares of Series H Preferred Stock in certificated form. In addition, transfers of beneficial interest in Global Securities will be subject to the applicable rules and procedures of DTC and its direct and indirect participants (including, if applicable, those of Euroclear and Clearstream), which may change from time to time.

So long as the holder of a Global Security is the registered owner of any shares of Series H Preferred Stock, the holder of such Global Security will be considered the sole holder of any shares of Series H Preferred Stock evidenced by the Global Securities. Beneficial owners of shares Series H Preferred Stock evidenced by the Global Securities will not be considered the owners or holders of such shares for any purpose. Neither we nor the transfer agent will have any responsibility or liability for any aspect of the records of DTC or for maintaining, supervising or reviewing any records of DTC relating to the Series H Preferred Stock.

Depository Procedures

The following description of the operations and procedures of DTC, Euroclear and Clearstream are provided solely as a matter of convenience. These operations and procedures are solely within the control of the respective settlement systems and are subject to changes by them. We take no responsibility for these operations and procedures and urge stockholders to contact the system or their participants directly to discuss these matters. However, we will remain responsible for any actions DTC, Euroclear and Clearstream and their respective participants take in accordance with instructions provided by us.

DTC has advised us that DTC is a limited-purpose trust company created to hold securities for the participants and to facilitate the clearance and settlement of transactions in those securities between participants through electronic book-entry changes in accounts of its participants. The participants include securities brokers and dealers, banks, trust companies, clearing corporations and certain other organizations. Access to DTC's system is also available to other entities such as banks, brokers, dealers and trust companies that clear through or maintain a custodial relationship with a participant, either directly or indirectly (collectively, the "**indirect participants**"). Persons who are not participants may beneficially own securities held by or on behalf of DTC only through the participants or the indirect participants. The ownership interests in, and transfers of ownership interests in, each security held by or on behalf of DTC are recorded on the records of the participants and indirect participants.

DTC has also advised us that, pursuant to procedures established by it:

- (1) upon deposit of the Global Securities, DTC will credit the accounts of participants that tendered Common Stock with portions of the aggregate number of shares represented by the Global Securities; and
- (2) ownership of these interests in the Global Securities will be shown on, and the transfer of ownership of these interests will be effected only through, records maintained by DTC (with respect to the participants) or by the participants and the indirect participants (with respect to other owners of beneficial interest in the Global Securities).

Stockholders who are participants in DTC's system may hold their interests therein directly through DTC. Stockholders who are not participants may hold their interests therein indirectly through organizations (including Euroclear and Clearstream) which are participants in such system. All interests in the Global Securities, including those held through Euroclear or Clearstream, may be subject to the procedures and requirements of DTC. Those interests held through Euroclear or Clearstream may also be subject to the procedures and requirements. Stockholders are advised that the laws of some states require that certain persons take physical delivery in definitive form of securities that they own. Consequently, the ability to transfer beneficial interests in Global Securities to such persons will be limited to that extent. Because DTC can act only on behalf of participants, which in turn act on behalf of indirect participants, the ability of a person having beneficial interests in Global Securities to pledge such interests to persons that do not participate in the DTC system, or otherwise take actions in respect of such interests, may be affected by the lack of a physical certificate evidencing such interests.

Payments in respect of dividends, if any, on Global Securities registered in the name of DTC or its nominee will be payable to DTC in its capacity as the registered holder. Under the terms of the Certificate of Designations, we will treat the Persons in whose names the shares of Series H Preferred Stock, including the Global Securities, are registered as the owners of the shares of Series H Preferred Stock for the purpose of receiving payments and for all other purposes. Consequently, neither we, nor any agent of ours has or will have any responsibility or liability for:

- (1) any aspect of DTC's records or any participant's or indirect participant's records relating to or payments made on account of beneficial ownership interest in the Global Securities or for maintaining, supervising or reviewing any of DTC's records or any participant's or indirect participant's records relating to the beneficial ownership interests in the Global Securities; or
- (2) any other matter relating to the actions and practices of DTC or any of its participants or indirect participants.

DTC has advised us that its current practice, upon receipt of any payment in respect of securities such as the Series H Preferred Stock (including dividends), is to credit the accounts of the relevant participants with the payment on the payment date unless DTC has reason to believe it will not receive payment on such payment date. Each relevant participant is credited with an amount proportionate to its beneficial interest in the aggregate number of the shares represented by the Global Securities as shown on the records of DTC. Payments by the participants and the indirect participants to the beneficial owners of the Series H Preferred Stock will be governed by standing instructions and customary practices and will be the responsibility of the participants or the indirect participants and will not be the responsibility of DTC, or us. We will not be liable for any delay by DTC or any of its participants in identifying the beneficial owners of the Series H Preferred Stock, and we may conclusively rely on and will be protected in relying on instructions from DTC or its nominee for all purposes.

Transfers between participants in DTC will be effected in accordance with DTC's procedures, and will be settled in same-day funds, and transfers between participants in Euroclear and Clearstream will be effected in accordance with their respective rules and operating procedures.

Cross-market transfers between the participants in DTC, on the one hand, and Euroclear or Clearstream participants, on the other hand, will be effected through DTC in accordance with DTC's rules on behalf of Euroclear or Clearstream, as the case may be, by its respective depositary; however, such cross-market transactions will require delivery of instructions to Euroclear or Clearstream, as the case may be, by the counterparty in such system in accordance with the rules and procedures and within the established deadlines (Brussels time) of such system. Euroclear or Clearstream, as the case may be, will, if the transaction meets its settlement requirements, deliver instructions to its respective depositary to take action to effect final settlement on its behalf by delivering or receiving interests in the relevant Global Securities in DTC, and making or receiving payment in accordance with normal procedures for same-day funds settlement applicable to DTC. Euroclear participants and Clearstream participants may not deliver instructions directly to the depositories for Euroclear or Clearstream.

DTC has advised us that it will take any action permitted to be taken by a holder of Series H Preferred Stock only at the direction of one or more participants to whose account DTC has credited the interests in the Global Securities and only in respect of such portion of the aggregate number of shares of Series H Preferred Stock as to which such participant or participants has or have given such direction.

Although DTC, Euroclear and Clearstream have agreed to the foregoing procedures to facilitate transfers of interests in the Global Securities among participants in DTC, Euroclear and Clearstream, they are under no obligation to perform or to continue to perform such procedures, and may discontinue such procedures at any time. Neither we nor our agents will have any responsibility for the performance by DTC, Euroclear or Clearstream or their respective participants or indirect participants of their respective obligations under the rules and procedures governing their operations.

Exchange of Global Securities for Directly Registered Shares

A global security is exchangeable for Directly Registered Shares if DTC notifies us that (a) it is unwilling or unable to continue as depositary for the Global Securities or (b) it has ceased to be a clearing agency registered under the Exchange Act and, in either case, we fail to appoint a successor depositary.

In which case, upon surrender by a holder of its global security, shares of Series H Preferred Stock in such form will be issued to each person that the holder of the global security and DTC identify as being the beneficial owner of the related Series H Preferred Stock. In addition, beneficial interests in Global Securities may be exchanged for Directly Registered Shares upon prior written notice given to the transfer agent by or on behalf of DTC. In all cases, Directly Registered Shares delivered in exchange for any Global Securities or beneficial interest in Global Securities will be registered in the names, and issued in any approved denominations, requested by or on behalf of the depository (in accordance with its customary procedures).

We will not be liable for any delay by the global security holder or DTC in identifying the beneficial owners of Series H Preferred Stock and we may conclusively rely on, and will be protected in relying on, instructions from the holder of the Global Securities or DTC for all purposes.

Listing

We intend to file an application to list the Series H Preferred Stock on the NYSE American or the Nasdaq Capital Market under the symbol "AULT-PDH." If this application is approved, trading in the Series H Preferred Stock is expected to commence within a 30-day period after the initial delivery of the Series H Preferred Stock. If the application is not approved, we intend to file an application to admit the Series H Preferred Stock for trading on the OTC. If the Series H Preferred Stock is not listed or if a robust market does not develop, even if listed, it may impair a holder's ability to resell the Series H Preferred Stock or the prices at which they may trade. Accordingly, no assurance can be given as to the liquidity of the Series H Preferred Stock after their issuance, or the prices at which they may trade, or that a trading market will develop.

Book-Entry Issuance

Series H Preferred Stock issued to existing record holders of Common Stock will be issued in the form of Directly Registered Shares. All other Series H Preferred Stock will be initially issued in the form of one or more Global Securities registered in the name of The Depository Trust Company, or DTC, or its nominee.

COMPARISON OF RIGHTS BETWEEN THE COMMON STOCK AND THE SERIES H PREFERRED STOCK

The following is a description of the material differences between the rights of holders of shares of Common Stock and the Series H Preferred Stock. This summary may not contain all of the information that is important to you. You should carefully read this entire Offer to Exchange for a more complete understanding of the differences between being a holder of shares of Common Stock and Series H Preferred Stock.

Common Stock	Series H Preferred Stock
Rar	lking
In any liquidation or bankruptcy of the Company, Common Stock would rank below all claims against us by holders of any of our indebtedness and by holders of preferred stock. Holders of our Common Stock would not be entitled to receive any payment or other distribution of assets upon the liquidation or bankruptcy of the Company until after our obligations to creditors, and the liquidation preference of our preferred stock have been satisfied in full.	In any liquidation or bankruptcy of the Company, Series H Preferred Stock would rank below all claims against us by holders of any of our indebtedness and by the holders of any senior class of preferred stock. Holders of our Series H Preferred Stock would not be entitled to receive any payment or other distribution of assets upon the liquidation or bankruptcy of the Company until after our obligations to creditors and the liquidation preference of the senior classes of preferred stock have been satisfied in full.
Voting	Rights
At every meeting of the stockholders of the Company in connection with the election of directors and all other matters submitted to a vote of stockholders, every holder of shares of Common Stock is entitled to one vote in person or by proxy for each share of Common Stock registered in the name of the holder on the transfer books of the Company.	The Series H Preferred Stock do not have voting rights, except as required by law.
Dividends/I	Distributions
Holders of Common Stock, are entitled to receive dividends if and when declared by our Board of Directors.	Dividends on the Series H Preferred Stock are cumulative from the date of initial issue and will be payable on the last day of each calendar quarter commencing on June 30, 2023 when, as and if declared by our Board of Directors. Dividends will be payable out of amounts legally available therefor at a rate equal to 10.00% per annum per \$10.00 of stated liquidation preference per share, or \$0.25 per share of Series H Preferred Stock per quarter. Dividends may be paid, at the option of the Company, in the form of Common Stock determined by dividing (x) the total aggregate dollar amount of dividends accrued and unpaid with respect to Series H Preferred Stock owned by such record holder on the record date for the applicable dividend payment date (rounded to the nearest whole cent) by (y) the ten-day VWAP per share of Common Stock of its subsidiaries, then holders of Series H Preferred Stock shall participate in such dividend as if the shares of Series H Preferred Stock were convertible into shares of Common Stock at a price of \$0.15 per share. However, holders of Series H Preferred Stock will not otherwise participate in any dividends or distributions of cash or other property paid in respect of our Common Stock with holders of the Common Stock.

Listing

The Common Stock trades on the NYSE American, under the ticker symbol "AULT." We intend to file an application to list the Series H Preferred Stock on the NYSE American or the Nasdaq Capital Market under the symbol "AULT-PDH".

CERTAIN MATERIAL INCOME TAX CONSIDERATIONS

The following discussion is a summary of certain material U.S. federal income tax consequences of the Offer to our stockholders. This summary is based on the Code, existing and proposed Treasury regulations, rulings, administrative pronouncements of the IRS and judicial decisions, all as currently in effect, and all of which are subject to change and to different interpretations. Changes to any of the foregoing authorities can apply on a retroactive basis in some circumstances, possibly in a manner that affects the discussion of U.S. federal income tax consequences below.

This summary is intended for general information purposes, and, except as expressly set forth below, only addresses certain material U.S. federal income tax consequences applicable to stockholders that hold their Common Stock as capital assets within the meaning of Section 1221 of the Code. In the context of the discussion pertaining to the Series H Preferred Stock, the discussion describes certain U.S. federal income tax consequences applicable only to stockholders of the Series H Preferred Stock who hold Series H Preferred Stock as capital assets. This summary does not purport to address all of the U.S. federal income tax considerations that may be relevant to the particular circumstances of a stockholder, including those stockholders who are subject to special tax rules (including, for example, financial institutions, dealers in securities, traders in securities that elect mark-to-market treatment, insurance companies, mutual funds, tax-exempt organizations, partnerships or other flow-through entities and their partners or members, U.S. expatriates, holders whose functional currency is not the U.S. dollar, and holders who hold their shares as part of a hedge, straddle, constructive sale or conversion transaction). Nor does this summary discuss any tax consequences that may arise under the alternative minimum tax or under state, local or foreign tax laws, and does not describe any aspect of U.S. federal tax law other than income taxation. We will not seek an opinion of counsel or a ruling from the IRS with respect to the U.S. federal income tax consequences discussed herein and accordingly there can be no assurance that the IRS will agree with the positions described in this Offer. Each stockholder should consult its own tax advisor regarding the tax consequences to it of an exchange in the Offer.

As used in this discussion, a "U.S. Holder" is a beneficial owner of the Common Stock that is an individual who is a citizen or resident of the United States; a corporation, or other entity taxable as a corporation for U.S. federal income tax purposes, created or organized under the laws of the United States, any state thereof, or the District of Columbia; an estate, the income of which is subject to U.S. federal income tax regardless of its source; or a trust if (i) a court within the United States is able to exercise primary supervision over the administration of the trust and one or more U.S. persons have the authority to control all substantial decisions of the trust, or (ii) it has a valid election in effect under applicable U.S. Treasury regulations to be treated as a U.S. person. A "Non-U.S. Holder" is a stockholder that is not a "U.S. Holder".

If a partnership or other pass-through entity is a beneficial owner of the Common Stock, the tax treatment of a partner or other owner will generally depend upon the status of the partner (or other owner) and the activities of the entity. A stockholder that is a partner (or other owner) of a partnership or other passthrough entity that holds Common Stock should consult its tax advisor regarding the tax consequences of the Offer and of owning and disposing of the Series H Preferred Stock.

Tax Consequences of Exchange in the Offer

Non-Participation in the Offer. Stockholders who do not participate in the Offer will not incur any U.S. federal income tax liability as a result of the consummation of the Offer.

U.S. Holders

Participation in the Offer. The exchange of Common Stock for Series H Preferred Stock under the Offer is intended to qualify as a recapitalization within the meaning of Section 368(a)(1)(E) of the Code. Assuming the exchange so qualifies, subject to the discussion further below, the following U.S. federal income tax consequences are generally intended to result from the transaction:

- No gain or loss will be recognized on an exchange;
- Stockholders' holding period for the Series H Preferred Stock received in an exchange will include the holding period of the Common Stock exchanged in this Offer; and
- Stockholders' initial tax basis of the Series H Preferred Stock received in an exchange will be equal to the adjusted tax basis of the Common Stock exchanged.

Nonqualified Preferred Stock. While generally an exchange of common stock for preferred stock may qualify as a recapitalization within the meaning of Section 368(a)(1)(E) of the Code, the receipt of any "nonqualified preferred stock" in such an exchange may not qualify as tax-free. "Nonqualified preferred stock" generally includes preferred stock that is callable for redemption by the issuer if the issuer is more likely than not to exercise the call right. At this time we have no intention to redeem the Series H Preferred Stock, and do not believe that it is more likely than not that we will redeem the Series H Preferred Stock. However, we cannot assure you that the IRS would not take into account all the facts and circumstances and argue that it is more than not that we will redeem the Series H Preferred Stock. If the IRS were successful in such argument, the receipt by a U.S. Holder of our Series H Preferred Stock in exchange for our Common Stock would generally constitute a sale or exchange of the Common Stock by the U.S. Holder unless the transaction is viewed as having the effect of a distribution under Section 302 of the Code, in which case it may constitute a distribution taxable in whole or in part as a dividend as described below. If a U.S. Holder's receipt of Series H Preferred Stock in exchange for Common Stock is treated as a sale or exchange, such U.S. Holder will recognize capital gain or loss if the U.S. Holder's holding period for such Common Stock exceeds one year) equal to the difference between the amount realized by the U.S. Holder and the U.S. Holder's adjusted tax basis in the exchanged Common Stock.

Section 302 of the Code. Under Section 302 of the Code, a redemption may be taxable as a distribution unless, after taking into account the constructive ownership rules of Section 318 of the Code, the redemption (a) results in a complete termination of the U.S. Holder's interest in the Company under Section 302(b)(3) of the Code, (b) results in a substantially disproportionate redemption of stock with respect to the U.S. Holder under Section 302(b)(2) of the Code or (c) is "not essentially equivalent to a dividend" with respect to the U.S. Holder under Section 302(b)(1) of the Code. The tax treatment of such a distribution would be in accordance with the rules described below under "— *Ownership of Series H Preferred Stock* — U.S. Holders — Dividend Payments."

In addition, although we believe the exchange of Common Stock is for Series H Preferred Stock with an equal value, there can be no assurance that the IRS or a court would agree. If the IRS or a court were to view the exchange pursuant to the Offer as the issuance of Series H Preferred Stock to an exchanging U.S. Holder having a value in excess of the Common Stock surrendered by such U.S. Holder, such excess value could be viewed as a deemed distribution or other income to such U.S. Holder.

Non-U.S. Holders

Participation in the Offer. The exchange of Common Stock for Series H Preferred Stock under the Offer is intended to qualify as a recapitalization within the meaning of Section 368(a)(1)(E) of the Code. Assuming the exchange so qualifies, and subject to the discussion further below concerning FIRPTA (as defined below), the exchange generally will not be taxable to the Non-U.S. Holder, as discussed above under "— Tax Consequences of Exchange in the Offer — U.S. Holders — Participation in the Offer," except as discussed below.

Dividend Income. If any amounts are treated pursuant to the discussion above under "— Tax Consequences of Exchange in the Offer — U.S. Holders" as dividend income, such income generally will be subject to U.S. federal income tax withholding at the rate of 30% on the gross amount of any such amount unless either:

- a lower treaty rate applies and the Non-U.S. Holder furnishes a properly completed IRS Form W-8BEN or W-8BEN-E evidencing eligibility for that reduced rate to the applicable withholding agent; or
- the Non-U.S. Holder furnishes a properly completed IRS Form W-8ECI to the applicable withholding agent claiming that such amount is effectively connected income.

If an amount treated as dividend income pursuant to the discussion above is also treated as effectively connected with the Non-U.S. Holder's conduct of a U.S. trade or business, the Non-U.S. Holder generally will be subject to U.S. federal income tax on such amount at graduated rates, in the same manner as U.S. Holders are taxed with respect to such amounts. A Non-U.S. Holder that is a corporation also may be subject to the 30% branch profits tax with respect to such an amount that is treated as effectively connected with its conduct of a U.S. trade or business, unless reduced or eliminated by a tax treaty.

Capital Gain. If any amounts are treated pursuant to the discussion above as capital gain, such gain generally will not be subject to U.S. federal income tax or withholding tax, unless (A) the gain is effectively connected with the Non-U.S. Holder's conduct of a trade or business in the United States (and, if the Non-U.S. Holder is entitled to the benefits of an applicable income tax treaty with the United States with respect to that gain, that gain is attributable to a permanent establishment maintained by the Non-U.S. Holder in the United States); or (B) the Non-U.S. Holder is an individual who is present in the United States for 183 days or more during the taxable year in which the gain is recognized and certain other conditions are met.

Any income or gain described in clause (A) above that is effectively connected with the Non-U.S. Holder's conduct of a trade or business in the United States (or so treated) generally will be subject to U.S. federal income tax, net of certain deductions, at regular U.S. federal income tax rates. If a Non-U.S. Holder is a corporation, its earnings and profits that are attributable to the effectively connected income (subject to certain adjustments) may be subject to an additional U.S. branch profits tax at a rate of 30% (or such lower rate as may be specified by an applicable income tax treaty). Any gain described in clause (B) above (net of certain U.S.-source losses) will be taxed at a flat rate of 30% (or such lower rate as may be specified by an applicable income tax treaty).

FIRPTA. In general, Non-U.S. Holders could be subject to tax under the Foreign Investment in Real Property Tax Act of 1980 ("FIRPTA") with respect to the exchange of Common Stock for Series H Preferred Stock if the shares of Common Stock are "United States real property interests" (within the meaning of FIRPTA) ("USRPIs"). Generally, shares of a "United States real property holding corporation" (as defined in the Code) ("USRPHC") are USRPIs. However, shares of our Common Stock will not be treated as USRPIs, and a Non-U.S. Holder generally will not be subject to tax under FIRPTA with respect to shares of our Common Stock exchanged in the Offer, if the Common Stock is "regularly traded" on an established securities market and such Non-U.S. Holder owned, actually and constructively, 5% or less of the Common Stock constitutes a USRPI with respect to a Non-U.S. Holder owing, actually and constructively, more than 5% of the Common Stock at all times during a specified testing period. Our Common Stock at all times during a specified testing period, such Non-U.S. Holder generally will not be subject to tax under FIRPTA upon an exchange of Common Stock for our Series H Preferred Stock provided that the Series H Preferred Stock received in the Offer also constitutes a USRPI, and that certain FIRPTA reporting requirements are met. If the gain on the exchange of the Common Stock were taxed under FIRPTA, a Non-U.S. Holder would be taxed in the same manner as U.S. Holders with respect to such gain.

The Company

Loss and Credit Carryforwards. Federal and state tax laws impose restrictions on the utilization of net operating loss, capital loss and tax credit carryforwards in the event of an "ownership change" for U.S. federal income tax purposes as defined by Section 382 of the Code. Under Section 382 of the Code, if we undergo an "ownership change," our ability to use our pre-change loss carryforwards, recognized built-in losses and other pre-change tax attributes to offset our post-change income may be severely limited. Generally, there is an ownership change if, immediately after any owner shift involving a 5-percent shareholder or any equity structure shift (A) the percentage of the stock of the loss corporation owned by 1 or more 5-percent shareholders has increased by more than 50 percentage points, over (B) the lowest percentage of stock of the loss corporation (or any predecessor corporation) owned by such shareholders at any time during the testing period. The limitations under Section 382 of the Code generally do not prevent the use of our net operating loss carryforwards to offset certain gains (known as "built-in gains") recognized by us within five years of an ownership change with respect to assets held by us at the time of such ownership change, but only to the extent of our "net unrealized built-in gains" at the time of such ownership change. Depending on the number of shares of Common Stock that are exchanged, consummation of the Offer may result in an ownership change under Section 382 of the Code.

Excise Tax on Stock Repurchases. On August 16, 2022, the Inflation Reduction Act of 2022 (the "IRA") was signed into federal law. The IRA provides for, among other things, a new U.S. federal 1% excise tax on certain repurchases, including redemptions, of stock by publicly traded domestic corporations and certain domestic subsidiaries of publicly traded foreign corporations after December 31, 2022. The excise tax is imposed on the repurchasing corporation itself, not its stockholders from whom shares are repurchased. The amount of the excise tax is generally 1% of the fair market value of the shares repurchased at the time of the repurchase. However, for purposes of calculating the excise tax, repurchasing corporations are permitted to net the fair market value of stock repurchases during the same taxable year. Therefore, we do not expect to be subject to a material amount of such excise tax in connection with the Offer.

Ownership of Series H Preferred Stock

U.S. Holders

Dividend Payments. Distributions with respect to the Series H Preferred Stock will constitute dividends for U.S. federal income tax purposes to the extent made out of our current or accumulated earnings and profits, as determined under U.S. federal income tax principles. If a distribution exceeds our current and accumulated earnings and profits, the excess will be treated as a non-taxable return of capital to the extent of the U.S. Holder's tax basis in the Series H Preferred Stock, causing a reduction in the adjusted tax basis of such U.S. Holder's Series H Preferred Stock, but not below zero. Any remaining excess will be treated as capital gain and will be treated as described below under "— Ownership of Series H Preferred Stock — U.S. Holders — Gain on Disposition of Series H Preferred Stock." For amounts treated as dividends, a corporate U.S. Holder will be eligible for the dividends-received deduction and a noncorporate U.S. Holder will qualify for taxation at preferential rates, in each case if it meets certain holding period and other applicable requirements.

Redemption of Series H Preferred Stock. Subject to the potential application of Section 306 of the Code to the Series H Preferred Stock, discussed below, a redemption of the Series H Preferred Stock for cash will be treated as a sale or exchange (and taxed in accordance with the rules described below under "— Ownership of Series H Preferred Stock — U.S. Holders — Gain on Disposition of Series H Preferred Stock") if, taking into account the constructive ownership rules of Section 318 of the Code, the redemption (a) results in a complete termination of the U.S. Holder's interest in the Company under Section 302(b)(3) of the Code, (b) results in a substantially disproportionate redemption of stock with respect to the U.S. Holder under Section 302(b)(2) of the Code or (c) is "not essentially equivalent to a dividend" with respect to the U.S. Holder under Section 302(b)(1) of the Code. If the redemption is not treated as a sale or exchange, it will be taxable as a distribution in accordance with the rules described above under "— Ownership of Series H Preferred Stock — U.S. Holders — Dividend Payments," in which case the U.S. Holder's tax basis in the redeemed shares may likely be allocable only to the U.S. Holder's remaining Series H Preferred Stock, if any, although the treatment remains uncertain under current guidance.

Gain on Disposition of Series H Preferred Stock. Subject to the potential application of Section 306 of the Code to the Series H Preferred Stock, discussed below, if a U.S. Holder sells or otherwise disposes of Series H Preferred Stock (other than by redemption as discussed above), a U.S. Holder generally will recognize capital gain or loss equal to the difference between the amount realized upon the disposition and its adjusted tax basis of the Series H Preferred Stock. Capital gain of a noncorporate U.S. Holder generally is taxed at preferential rates if the U.S. Holder has a holding period greater than one year.

Section 306 Stock. Section 306 of the Code will generally apply to a sale or other disposition of the Series H Preferred Stock if such stock is treated as "Section 306 stock" within the meaning of Section 306(c) of the Code. In general, stock will be Section 306 stock if it is stock that is "not common stock" and satisfies certain other requirements described in Section 306(c)(1)(B) of the Code. The IRS has ruled that stock is other than common stock for this purpose if the stock does not participate in corporate growth to any significant extent. If the Series H Preferred Stock is treated as stock other than common stock, the Series H Preferred Stock received by a U.S. Holder in the Offer will generally be treated as Section 306 stock if, in a hypothetical transaction otherwise identical to the Offer in which the U.S. Holder received an equivalent amount of cash as a substitute for the Series H Preferred Stock, the receipt of such cash would be treated as a dividend (and not as a sale or exchange) for U.S. federal income tax purposes (the cash substitution test). Whether a U.S. Holder's hypothetical receipt of cash would be treated as a dividend and, accordingly, whether the U.S. Holder meets the cash substitution test, will be determined under the principles of Section 302(b) of the Code, as described above under "Ownership of Series H Preferred Stock — U.S. Holders — Redemption of Series H Preferred Stock," and will generally depend upon the U.S. Holder's particular circumstances.



If the Series H Preferred Stock constitutes Section 306 stock, Section 306 of the Code may apply potentially to prohibit capital gain treatment on a subsequent disposition of the Series H Preferred Stock received in the Offer, in which case the amount realized by a U.S. Holder (without reduction by the U.S. Holder's tax basis in such stock) on a subsequent taxable disposition of such stock would generally be treated as either:

- dividend income, if such disposition is a redemption, to the extent of our available earnings and profits at such time; or
- ordinary income, if such disposition is other than a redemption, to the extent that the U.S. Holder's earlier receipt of the Series H Preferred Stock in the Offer would have been treated as a dividend if we had distributed cash in lieu of the Series H Preferred Stock in the Offer.

However, even if the Series H Preferred Stock is treated as Section 306 stock, the foregoing treatment may not apply if the U.S. Holder establishes to the satisfaction of the IRS that neither the Offer nor the subsequent disposition of the Series H Preferred Stock is pursuant to a plan of which the avoidance of U.S. federal income tax is one of the principal purposes.

Information Reporting and Backup Withholding. Certain U.S. Holders will be subject to information reporting with respect to the payment of dividends on our Series H Preferred Stock and the payment of proceeds on the sale or other disposition of shares of our Series H Preferred Stock. Backup withholding may apply unless the U.S. Holder provides proof of an applicable exemption or a correct taxpayer identification number, and otherwise complies with applicable requirements of the backup withholding rules.

Backup withholding is not an additional tax. Any amount withhold under the backup withholding rules from a payment to a U.S. Holder is allowable as a credit against such holder's U.S. federal income tax liability, which may entitle the U.S. Holder to a refund if the amount of taxes withheld exceed the U.S. Holder's actual tax liability, provided that the U.S. Holder timely provides the required information to the IRS.

Non-U.S. Holders

Dividend Payments. Distributions with respect to the Series H Preferred Stock will constitute dividends for U.S. federal income tax purposes to the extent made out of our current or accumulated earnings and profits, as determined under U.S. federal income tax principles. Generally, distributions treated as dividends and paid to a Non-U.S. Holder with respect to our Series H Preferred Stock will be subject to a 30% U.S. withholding tax, or such lower rate as may be specified by an applicable tax treaty. To the extent that the amount of a distribution with respect to our Series H Preferred Stock exceeds our current and accumulated earnings and profits, such distribution will be treated first as a tax-free return of capital to the extent of the Non-U.S. Holder's adjusted tax basis in such Series H Preferred Stock and thereafter as gain from the sale or exchange of Series H Preferred Stock, the tax treatment of which is discussed below under "— *Gain on Disposition of Series H Preferred Stock.*" To receive the benefit of a reduced treaty rate, a Non-U.S. Holder must provide the applicable withholding agent with an IRS Form W-8BEN, IRS Form W-8BEN-E, or other appropriate version of IRS Form W-8 certifying qualification for the reduced rate.

Dividends that are effectively connected with a trade or business conducted by a Non-U.S. Holder within the U.S., and, to the extent an applicable tax treaty provides, attributable to a permanent establishment or fixed base maintained by the Non-U.S. Holder in the U.S., generally will be subject to U.S. federal income tax on a net basis at the gradual ordinary rates generally applicable to U.S. Holders, but will not be subject to U.S. withholding tax if certain certification requirements are satisfied. A Non-U.S. Holder generally can meet the certification requirements by providing a properly executed IRS Form W-8ECI or appropriate substitute form to the applicable withholding agent. A Non-U.S. Holder that is a corporation may also be subject to a branch profits tax at a 30% rate (or such lower rate as may be specified by an applicable tax treaty) on its "effectively connected earnings and profits," subject to certain adjustments.

A Non-U.S. Holder of shares of Series H Preferred Stock may obtain a refund of any excess amounts withheld under these rules if the Non-U.S. Holder is eligible for a reduced rate of U.S. withholding tax and an appropriate claim for refund is timely filed with the IRS.

Redemption of Series H Preferred Stock. Subject to the potential application of Section 306 of the Code to the Series H Preferred Stock, discussed below, a redemption of the Series H Preferred Stock for cash will be treated as a sale or exchange (and taxed in accordance with the rules described below under "— Gain on Disposition of Series H Preferred Stock") if, taking into account the constructive ownership rules of Section 318 of the Code, the redemption (a) results in a complete termination of the Non-U.S. Holder's interest in the Company under Section 302(b)(3) of the Code, (b) results in a substantially disproportionate redemption of stock with respect to the Non-U.S. Holder under Section 302(b)(2) of the Code or (c) is "not essentially equivalent to a dividend" with respect to the Non-U.S. Holder under Section 302(b)(1) of the Code. If the redemption is not treated as a sale or exchange, it will be taxable as a distribution in accordance with the rules described above under "— Ownership of Series H Preferred Stock — Non-U.S. Holders — Dividend Payments," in which case the U.S. Holder's tax basis in the redeemed shares may likely be allocable only to the U.S. Holder's remaining Series H Preferred Stock, if any, although the treatment remains uncertain under current guidance.

Gain on Disposition of Series H Preferred Stock. Subject to the potential application of Section 306 of the Code to the Series H Preferred Stock, discussed below, a Non-U.S. Holder generally will not be subject to U.S. federal income or withholding tax on any gain realized on the sale, exchange or other taxable disposition (other than a redemption as discussed above) of Series H Preferred Stock unless:

- the gain is effectively connected with a trade or business conducted by the Non-U.S. Holder in the U.S. and, if required by an applicable tax treaty, is attributable to a permanent establishment or fixed base maintained by such Non-U.S. Holder in the U.S.;
- the Non-U.S. Holder is an individual who is present in the U.S. for a period or periods aggregating 183 days or more during the calendar year in which the sale or disposition occurs and certain other conditions are met; or
- our Series H Preferred Stock constitutes a USRPI (as defined above under " *Tax Consequences of Exchange in the Offer Non-U.S. Holders — FIRPTA*") by reason of our status as a USRPHC (as defined above under "*— Tax Consequences of Exchange in the Offer — Non-U.S. Holders — FIRPTA*") for U.S. federal income tax purposes and certain other conditions are met.

A Non-U.S. Holder whose gain is described in the first bullet point above will be subject to U.S. federal income tax on the gain derived on a net income basis at the regular graduated rates, unless an applicable tax treaty provides otherwise. If such Non-U.S. Holder is a foreign corporation, it may also be subject to a branch profits tax (at a 30% rate or such lower rate as specified by an applicable tax treaty) on its effectively connected earnings and profits attributable to such gain, as adjusted for certain items. A Non-U.S. Holder described in the second bullet point above will be subject to a 30% U.S. federal income tax (or such lower rate as may be specified by an applicable tax treaty) on the gain derived from the sale, which may be offset by certain U.S.-source capital losses. With respect to the third bullet point above, if Series H Preferred Stock will be regularly traded on an established market, see discussion above under "— *Tax Consequences of Exchange in the Offer — Non-U.S. Holders — FIRPTA*". If the Series H Preferred Stock will not be regularly traded on an established market, Non-U.S. Holders could potentially be subject tax under FIRPTA if we are a USRPHC.

Section 306 Stock. A payment made to a Non-U.S. Holder disposing of the Series H Preferred Stock may be treated as a dividend, rather than as a payment in exchange for such stock, in the circumstances discussed above under "— Ownership of Series H Preferred Stock — U.S. Holders — Section 306 Stock"), in which case the payment would be subject to U.S. federal income tax in the manner described above under "— Ownership of Series H Preferred Stock — U.S. Holders — Section 306 Stock"), Stock — Non-U.S. Holders — Dividend Payments."

Information Reporting and Backup Withholding. Information returns will be filed annually with the IRS in connection with our payment of dividends on the Series H Preferred Stock. Copies of these information returns may also be made available under the provisions of a specific tax treaty or other agreement to the tax authorities of the country in which a Non-U.S. Holder is a resident for tax purposes. Unless a Non-U.S. Holder complies with certification procedures to establish that it is not a U.S. person, information returns may be filed with the IRS in connection with the proceeds from a sale or other disposition, including redemption, of the shares of Series H Preferred Stock, and the Non-U.S. Holder may be subject to backup withholding on payments of dividends on the shares of Series H Preferred Stock or on the proceeds from a sale or other disposition of the Series H Preferred Stock. The certification procedures required to claim the exemption from withholding tax on dividends described above will satisfy the certification requirements necessary to avoid the backup withholding as well.

Backup withholding is not an additional tax. The amount of any backup withholding from a payment to a Non-U.S. Holder may be allowed as a credit against the Non-U.S. Holder's U.S. federal income tax liability or may entitle the Non-U.S. Holder to a refund, provided that the required information is furnished to the IRS in a timely manner.

STOCKHOLDERS ARE URGED TO CONSULT THEIR OWN TAX ADVISOR TO DETERMINE THE TAX CONSEQUENCES OF THE OFFER AS WELL AS THE OWNERSHIP OF THE SERIES H PREFERRED STOCK IN LIGHT OF THEIR PARTICULAR CIRCUMSTANCES, INCLUDING THE APPLICATION OF FEDERAL, STATE, LOCAL AND FOREIGN TAX LAWS.

PLAN OF DISTRIBUTION

We are relying on Section 3(a)(9) of the Securities Act to exempt the issuance of Series H Preferred Stock in the Offer from the registration requirements of the Securities Act. We are also relying on Section 18(b)(4)(E) of the Securities Act, to provide a pre-emption of the registration and qualification requirements of the state securities laws for the issuance of the Series H Preferred Stock in the Offer. We have no contract, arrangement, or understanding relating to, and will not, directly or indirectly, pay any commission or other remuneration to any broker, dealer, salesperson, agent, or any other person for soliciting tenders in the Offer. In addition, none of our financial advisors and no broker, dealer, salesperson, agent, or any other person, is engaged or authorized to express any statement, opinion, recommendation, or judgment with respect to the relative merits and risks of the Offer.

We have agreed to pay all our expenses incident to the Offer. We have not agreed to pay any commissions or concessions of any broker or dealers.

HISTORICAL AND UNAUDITED PRO FORMA FINANCIAL DATA

Summary Historical Consolidated Financial Data

The selected data presented below under the captions "Statement of Operations Data", "Statement of Comprehensive Loss Data" and "Balance Sheet Data" for, and as of the end of, each of the years in the two-year period ended December 31, 2021 are derived from the consolidated financial statements of the Company, which consolidated financial statements have been audited by Marcum LLP, independent auditors. The selected data as of and for the nine-months ended September 30, 2022 and September 30, 2021 are derived from the unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements of the Company. In the opinion of management, such unaudited data reflect all adjustments, consisting only of normally recurring adjustments, necessary to fairly present the Company's financial position and results of operations for the periods presented. Certain reclassifications have been made to the prior year financial statements to conform to current year presentation.

5	n
Э	υ

	Year Ended December 31,			Nine Months Ended September 30,			
		2021		2020	 2022		2021
Statement of Operations Data:							
Revenue	\$	52,400,000	\$	23,871,000	\$ 99,970,000	\$	44,580,000
Cost of revenue		23,858,000		16,357,000	51,541,000		16,657,000
Research and development, selling, general and administrative expenses		46,500,000		15,547,000	71,499,000		30,773,000
Impairment of deposit due to vendor							
bankruptcy filing		_		_	2,000,000		
Impairment of mined cryptocurrency		403,000		—	2,930,000		
Benefit for credit losses				(2,000,000)	 		
Operating loss		(18,361,000)		(6,033,000)	(28,000,000)		(2,850,000)
Other expense (income), net:							
Interest expense, net		1,063,000		9,543,000	34,572,000		299,000
Change in fair value of marketable							
equity securities		1,327,000		(919,000)	(355,000)		705,000
Realized gain on marketable securities		(1,924,000)			(661,000)		(428,000)
(Gain) loss on extinguishment of debt		(929,000)		18,706,000			(929,000)
Other expense (income), net		5,943,000		49,000	 951,000		(4,080,000)
(Loss) income from continuing operations							
before income taxes		(23,841,000)		(33,412,000)	(62,507,000)		1,583,000
Income tax (provision) benefit		(130,000)		24,000	 (361,000)		(144,000)
Net (loss) income from continuing operations		(23,971,000)		(33,388,000)	(62,868,000)		1,439,000
Net loss from discontinued operations, net of taxes				661,000	 		
Net (loss) income		(23,971,000)		(32,727,000)	(62,868,000)		1,439,000
Net (loss) income attributable to non-controlling interest		(213,000)			 1,061,000		(93,000)
Net (loss) income attributable to BitNile Holdings		(24,184,000)		(32,727,000)	(61,807,000)		1,346,000
Preferred dividends		(18,000)		(18,000)	(239,000)		(13,000)
Net (loss) income available to common stockholders	\$	(24,202,000)	\$	(32,745,000)	\$ (62,046,000)	\$	1,333,000
Statement of Comprehensive Loss Data:							
Net (loss) income available to common stockholders	\$	(24,202,000)	\$	(32,745,000)	\$ (62,046,000)	\$	1,333,000
Foreign currency translation adjustment		85,000	•	482,000	(1,452,000)	•	(141,000)
Net unrealized gain (loss) on derivative securities		,		,			() /
of related party		(7,773,000)		3,312,000			(7,773,000)
Impairment of debt securities, related party		9,300,000		—			_
Total comprehensive loss	\$	(22,590,000)	\$	(28,951,000)	\$ (63,498,000)	\$	(6,581,000)
		Decem	iber 31	۱,	Septen	nber 3),
		2021		2020	2022		2021
Balance Sheet Data:							
Cash and cash equivalents	\$	15,912,000	\$	18,680,000	\$ 10,126,000	\$	44,047,000
Marketable equity securities		40,380,000		2,563,000	8,561,000		49,931,000
Total assets		490,286,000		75,643,000	610,905,000		225,721,000
Long-term debt, net of current maturities		55,523,000		774,000	72,188,000		447,000
Total liabilities		145,106,000		26,511,000	155,028,000		24,740,000
Redeemable noncontrolling interests							
in equity of subsidiaries		116,725,000			117,114,000		
Total stockholders' equity	\$	228,455,000	\$	49,132,000	\$ 338,763,000	\$	200,981,000
		51					

Summary Unaudited Pro Forma Financial Information

The following unaudited pro forma financial information has been derived from, and should be read in conjunction with, our historical consolidated financial statements incorporated by reference in this Offer to Exchange. The unaudited pro forma financial information set forth below gives effect to the financial impact of the settlement of the Offer as if it had occurred (i) on September 30, 2022 for the purposes of the unaudited pro forma balance sheet as of September 30, 2022 and the book value per share calculation as of such date, and (ii) on January 1, 2021 for the purposes of the unaudited pro forma statement of comprehensive loss and earnings per share for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2021 and for the nine-month period ended September 30, 2022. The adjustments for the Offer on the unaudited pro forma financial information set forth below assume that an aggregate of 333,333,333 shares of Common Stock are tendered in the Offer in exchange for \$50,000,000 aggregate liquidation preference of Series H Preferred Stock pursuant to the terms of the Offer. **The pro forma financial information set forth below does not give effect to any other changes to the accounts of Ault Alliance since September 30, 2022 and only gives effect to the financial position or results that would have been realized had the Offer been completed as of the dates indicated. The unaudited pro-forma financial statements are for informational purposes only and are not indications of future performance.**

	As of September 30, 2022					
	Actual		Adjustment		As Adjusted	
Balance Sheet Data:						
Cash and cash equivalents	\$	10,126,000	\$	—	\$	10,126,000
Marketable equity securities		8,561,000		—		8,561,000
Total assets		610,905,000				610,905,000
Long-term debt, net of current maturities		72,188,000		—		72,188,000
Total liabilities		155,028,000		—		155,028,000
Redeemable noncontrolling interests						
in equity of subsidiaries		117,114,000				117,114,000
Total stockholders' equity	\$	338,763,000	\$	—	\$	338,763,000
	For the nine months ended September 30, 2022			30, 2022		
	Actual Adjustment As Adjusted			As Adjusted		
Statement of Comprehensive Loss and EPS						
Net loss available to common stockholders	\$	(62,046,000)	\$	(3,750,000)	\$	(65,796,000)
Foreign currency translation adjustment		(1,452,000)	_		_	(1,452,000)
Total comprehensive loss	\$	(63,498,000)	\$	(3,750,000)	\$	(67,248,000)
Basic net loss per common share	\$	(0.27)		nm ⁽¹⁾		nm ⁽¹⁾

52

\$

(0.27)

Diluted net loss per common share

nm⁽¹⁾

nm⁽¹⁾

	For the year ended December 31, 2021			21		
	Actual Adjustment			As Adjusted		
Statement of Comprehensive Loss and EPS						
Net (loss) income available to common stockholders	\$	(24,202,000)	\$	(5,000,000)	\$	(29,202,000)
Foreign currency translation adjustment		85,000		—		85,000
Net unrealized gain (loss) on derivative securities						
of related party		(7,773,000)		—		(7,773,000)
Impairment of debt securities, related party		9,300,000		—		9,300,000
Total comprehensive loss	\$	(22,590,000)	\$	(5,000,000)	\$	(27,590,000)
Basic net loss per common share	\$	(0.44)		nm ⁽¹⁾		nm ⁽¹⁾
Diluted net loss per common share	\$	(0.44)		nm ⁽¹⁾		nm ⁽¹⁾

⁽¹⁾ The Company's basic and diluted weighted average common shares outstanding did not exceed 333,333,333 shares on December 31, 2021 and September 30, 2022 for it to illustrate the impact of the Offering on basic and diluted loss per share.

	 As of September 30, 2022			
	 Actual	Adjustment		As Adjusted
Book value per share calculation				
Common Shares outstanding at September 30, 2022	341,446,982	(333,333,333)		8,113,649
Total stockholders' equity	\$ 338,763,000	—	\$	338,763,000
Book value per share	\$ 0.99		\$	41.75

PRICE RANGE OF THE COMMON STOCK; DIVIDENDS

Our Common Stock trades on the NYSE American under the ticker symbol "AULT." As of March 28, 2023, there were approximately 35 holders of record of our Common Stock. Based on the latest available information, we believe there are no fewer than 40,000 beneficial owners of our Common Stock.

On March 17, 2023, the last reported sales price of our Common Stock on the NYSE American prior to the announcement of the Offer was \$0.09 per share. On March 28, 2023, the last reported sales price of Common Stock was \$0.097 per share. As of March 28, 2023 we had approximately 415,746,694 shares of Common Stock outstanding.

The following table presents the range of high and low quarterly sales prices of shares of our Common Stock for the last two years.

Period	Low	High
First Quarter 2021	\$	2.97 \$ 7.84
Second Quarter 2021	\$	2.09 \$ 3.32
Third Quarter 2021	\$	2.18 \$ 2.83
Fourth Quarter 2021	\$	1.21 \$ 2.47
First Quarter 2022	\$	0.53 \$ 1.34
Second Quarter 2022	\$	0.24 \$ 0.84
Third Quarter 2022	\$	0.18 \$ 0.38
Fourth Quarter 2022	\$	0.09 \$ 0.15
First Quarter 2023 (through March 28, 2023)	\$	0.08 \$ 0.16
	\$ \$	•

We have never paid any cash dividends on shares of Common Stock. The payment of cash dividends in the future will be dependent upon our revenues and earnings, capital requirements, general financial condition, and is within the discretion of our Board of Directors.

WHERE TO FIND AVAILABLE INFORMATION

We are subject to the information reporting requirements of the Exchange Act applicable to U.S. domestic issuers and, as such, file Annual Reports on Form 10-K, Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q, Current Reports on Form 8-K, proxy statements on Schedule 14A and other information with the SEC. These reports and proxy statements are available free of charge through our website at www.ault.com as soon as reasonably practicable after we file them with, or furnish them to, the SEC. The information on our website is not incorporated by reference in this Offer to Exchange. Our website and the information contained on, or that can be accessed through, our website will not be deemed to be incorporated by reference into, and are not considered part of, this Offer to Exchange and, as a result, you should not rely on any such information in making your decision whether to exchange your securities. In addition, our filings with the SEC are available on the SEC's website at www.sec.gov, which contains reports, proxy and other information regarding the Company and other issuers that file electronically with the SEC.

INCORPORATION OF DOCUMENTS BY REFERENCE

The following documents filed by the Company with the SEC are incorporated herein by reference and shall be deemed to be a part hereof:

- Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2021, filed by the Company with the SEC on April 15, 2022, as amended;
- Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2022, filed by the Company with the SEC on May 31, 2022, for the quarter ended June 30, 2022, filed by the Company with the SEC on August 22, 2022, and for the quarter ended September 30, 2022, filed by the Company with the SEC on November 31, 2022;
- Current Reports on Form 8-K filed by the Company with the SEC on each of January 3, 2022, January 3, 2022, January 21, 2022, January 24, 2022, February 23, 2022, February 25, 2022, March 9, 2022, April 25, 2022, June 1, 2022, June 2, 2022, June 14, 2022, June 17, 2022, August 11, 2022, August 16, 2022, August 30, 2022, September 6, 2022, September 7, 2022, September 9, 2022, September 12, 2022, September 16, 2022, September 19, 2022, October 6, 2022, October 13, 2022, October 19, 2022, October 20, 2022, November 8, 2022, November 18, 2022, November 23, 2022, December 7, 2022, December 19, 2022 (as amended March 3, 2023), December 20, 2022, December 21, 2022, January 3, 2023, January 27, 2023, February 10, 2023, March 7, 2023, March 13, 2023 and March 30, 2023.

We also incorporate by reference all documents we file with the SEC under Sections 13(a), 13(c), 14 and 15(d) of the Exchange Act (except for any portion of a document deemed to have been "furnished" and not "filed" in accordance with SEC rules) subsequent to the date of this Offer to Exchange and before the expiration of the Offer.

Any statement contained in a document incorporated or deemed to be incorporated by reference herein, or contained in this Offer to Exchange, shall be deemed to be modified or superseded for purposes of this Offer to Exchange to the extent that a statement contained herein or in any subsequently filed document or report that also is, or is deemed to be, incorporated by reference herein modifies or supersedes such statement. Any statement so modified shall not be deemed to constitute a part of this Offer to Exchange, except as so modified or superseded.

You may obtain any document incorporated herein by reference by contacting the SEC as described above under "Where to Find Available Information" or by contacting Ault Alliance, Inc., 1411 Southern Highlands Parkway, Suite 240, Las Vegas, NV 89141; Tel: (949) 444-5464; Attention: Milton C. (Todd) Ault III, Executive Chairman. The Company will provide the documents incorporated by reference, without charge, upon written or oral request.

MISCELLANEOUS

We are making the Offer to all holders of outstanding shares of Common Stock. We are not aware of any jurisdiction in which the making of the Offer is not in compliance with applicable law. If we become aware of any jurisdiction in which the making of the Offer would not be in compliance with applicable law, we will make a good faith effort without incurring any significant expense to comply with any such law. If, after such good faith effort, we cannot comply with any such law, the Offer will not be made to, nor will tenders of shares of Common Stock be accepted from, or on behalf of, the holders of shares of Common Stock residing in any such jurisdiction, subject to our obligations to comply with applicable SEC regulations. The Offer will not be made in any jurisdiction where the securities, blue sky or other laws require the Offer to be made by a licensed broker or dealer.

No action has been or will be taken in any jurisdiction other than in the United States that would permit a public offering of the Series H Preferred Stock, or the possession, circulation or distribution of the Offer Documents or any other material relating to us or the Series H Preferred Stock in any jurisdiction where action for that purpose is required, subject to our obligations to comply with applicable SEC regulations. Accordingly, the Series H Preferred Stock may not be offered or sold, directly or indirectly, and neither the Offer Documents nor any other material relating to us or the Series H Preferred Stock may be distributed, or published, in or from any country or jurisdiction except in compliance with any applicable rules and regulations of any such country or jurisdiction. Persons into whose possession the Offer Documents come are advised to inform themselves about and to observe any restrictions relating to this Offer, the distribution of the Offer Documents, and the resale of the Series H Preferred Stock.

Pursuant to Exchange Act Rule 13e-4, we have filed with the SEC the Schedule TO, which contains additional information relating to the Offer. The Schedule TO, including the exhibits and any amendments thereto, may be examined, and copies may be obtained, at the same places and in the same manner set forth under "Where to Find Additional Information" in this Offer to Exchange.

YOU SHOULD RELY ONLY ON THE INFORMATION CONTAINED IN THIS DOCUMENT OR ANY DOCUMENT TO WHICH WE HAVE REFERRED YOU. WE HAVE NOT AUTHORIZED ANY PERSON TO MAKE ANY RECOMMENDATION ON OUR BEHALF AS TO WHETHER YOU SHOULD TENDER OR NOT TENDER YOUR SHARES OF COMMON STOCK IN THE OFFER. WE HAVE NOT AUTHORIZED ANY PERSON TO GIVE ANY INFORMATION OR TO MAKE ANY REPRESENTATION IN CONNECTION WITH THE OFFER OTHER THAN THOSE CONTAINED IN THIS DOCUMENT OR IN THE LETTER OF TRANSMITTAL. ANY RECOMMENDATION OR ANY SUCH INFORMATION OR REPRESENTATION MADE BY ANYONE MUST NOT BE RELIED UPON AS HAVING BEEN AUTHORIZED BY THE COMPANY, THE EXCHANGE AGENT OR THE INFORMATION AGENT.

AULT ALLIANCE, INC.

March 31, 2023

If you hold shares through a brokerage firm (e.g., Schwab, TD Ameritrade, Fidelity, Robinhood, etc.) contact your brokerage firm and follow their procedures for instructing them to tender your shares.

If you are a registered holder of shares of Common Stock (i.e., you do not hold through a brokerage firm), the Letter of Transmittal and any other required documents should be sent or delivered to the Exchange Agent at its address set forth below. To confirm delivery, registered holders are directed to contact the Exchange Agent.

The Exchange Agent for the Offer is

COMPUTERSHARE TRUST COMPANY, N.A.

If delivering via Registered or Overnight Mail Computershare Trust Company, N.A. Attn: Corporate Actions Voluntary Offer 150 Royall Street Suite V Canton, MA 02021

If delivering via First Class Mail: Computershare Trust Company, N.A. Attn: Corporate Actions Voluntary Offer P.O. Box 43011 Providence, RI 02940-3011

Questions and requests for assistance or for additional copies of the Offer Documents may be directed to the Information Agent at its respective telephone numbers and mailing addresses set forth below.

The Information Agent for the Offer is:



1290 Avenue of the Americas, 9th Floor New York, NY 10104

Shareholders, Banks and Brokers Call Toll Free: 888-565-5423

LETTER OF TRANSMITTAL For Common Stock

Offer to Exchange up to 333,333,333 shares of its Common Stock (in 200 share increments) for up to \$50,000,000 aggregate liquidation preference of its 10.00% Series H Cumulative Redeemable Perpetual Preferred Stock

THE OFFER AND WITHDRAWAL RIGHTS WILL EXPIRE AT ONE MINUTE FOLLOWING 11:59 P.M (12:00 MIDNIGHT), NEW YORK CITY TIME, ON FRIDAY APRIL 28, 2023, UNLESS EXTENDED BY THE COMPANY (SUCH TIME AND DATE, AS THE SAME MAY BE EXTENDED, THE "EXPIRATION DATE").

COMPUTERSHARE TRUST COMPANY, N.A.

If delivering via Registered or Overnight Mail Computershare Trust Company, N.A. Attn: Corporate Actions Voluntary Offer 150 Royall Street Suite V Canton, MA 02021 *If delivering via First Class Mail:* Computershare Trust Company, N.A. Attn: Corporate Actions Voluntary Offer P.O. Box 43011 Providence, RI 02940-3011

If you have questions or need assistance, please contact Georgeson at 888-565-5423

DELIVERY OF THIS LETTER OF TRANSMITTAL TO AN ADDRESS OTHER THAN AS SET FORTH ABOVE WILL NOT CONSTITUTE A VALID DELIVERY TO THE EXCHANGE AGENT FOR THE OFFER.

PLEASE READ THIS ENTIRE LETTER OF TRANSMITTAL, INCLUDING THE ACCOMPANYING INSTRUCTIONS, CAREFULLY BEFORE COMPLETING.

DESCRIPTION OF SHARES TENDERED				
Name(s) and Addresses of Registered Holder(s) (Please fill-in)	Shares of Common Stock Tendered*			
Total				
* Common Stock may only be tendered in increments of 200 shares, with each of Series H Preferred Stock having a liquidation preference of \$10.00 per share				

This Letter of Transmittal (this "Letter of Transmittal") is being delivered to you in connection with the Offer by Ault Alliance to exchange up to 333,333,333 shares of its outstanding Class A Common Stock, par value \$0.001 per share (the "Common Stock"), for its 10.00% Series H Cumulative Redeemable Perpetual Preferred Stock ("Series H Preferred Stock"), with each 200 shares of Common Stock being exchangeable in the Offer for three shares of Series H Preferred Stock having a liquidation preference of \$10.00 per share of Series H Preferred Stock (an effective price of \$0.15 per share of Common Stock), upon the terms and subject to the conditions set forth in the Offer. Each holder validly tendered and not validly withdrawn prior to 12:00 midnight, New York City time, on the Expiration Date shall receive Series H Preferred Stock, subject to prorating. Common Stock may only be tendered in increments of 200 shares.

DELIVERY OF THIS LETTER OF TRANSMITTAL TO AN ADDRESS OTHER THAN AS SET FORTH ABOVE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE VALID DELIVERY.

Capitalized terms used but not defined herein shall have the same meaning given them in the Offer to Exchange, dated March 31, 2023 (as may be amended and supplemented from time to time, the "<u>Offer</u>" or the "<u>Offer to Exchange</u>") of Ault Alliance, Inc., a Delaware corporation ("<u>we</u>", "<u>us</u>", the "<u>Company</u>" or "<u>Ault Alliance</u>").

THE INSTRUCTIONS ACCOMPANYING THIS LETTER OF TRANSMITTAL SHOULD BE READ CAREFULLY BEFORE THIS LETTER OF TRANSMITTAL IS COMPLETED. If shares of Common Stock are registered in different names, a separate Letter of Transmittal must be submitted for each registered owner. See Instruction 2 below.

The Offer is made upon the terms and subject to the conditions contained in the Offer Documents and will follow the procedures set forth in the Offer to Exchange, including those included in the section "The Offer".

All tenders of shares of Common Stock pursuant to the Offer must be received by Georgeson LLC (the "Exchange Agent") no later than 12:00 midnight, New York City time, on the Expiration Date. The Company will notify holders of shares of Common Stock of any extension by means of a press release or other public announcement prior to 9:00 a.m., New York City time, on the next business day after the previously scheduled Expiration Date.

The Company may terminate the Offer at any time in its sole discretion.

The method of delivery of shares of Common Stock, Letters of Transmittal and all other required documents are at the election and risk of the holders of shares of Common Stock. It is recommended that registered mail properly insured, with receipt requested, be used. In all cases, sufficient time should be allowed to assure timely delivery. The Letter of Transmittal should not be sent to the Company.

A properly completed and duly executed Letter of Transmittal and any other documents required by this Letter of Transmittal, must be received by the Exchange Agent at the address set forth herein no later than 12:00 midnight, New York City time, on the Expiration Date. Any Letter of Transmittal received after such time will not be accepted.

The undersigned has completed, executed and delivered this Letter of Transmittal to indicate the action the undersigned desires to take with respect to the Offer.

This Letter of Transmittal is to be used if delivery of shares of Common Stock is to be made pursuant to the procedures for book-entry transfer, as described in the Offer to Exchange, to an account maintained by the Exchange Agent (as defined herein). Stockholders must tender their Shares in accordance with the guaranteed delivery procedures described in the Offer to Exchange. See Instruction 2.

CHECK HERE IF TENDERED SHARES ARE BEING DELIVERED BY BOOK-ENTRY TRANSFER MADE TO AN ACCOUNT MAINTAINED BY THE EXCHANGE AGENT WITH THE DTC AND COMPLETE THE FOLLOWING (ONLY PARTICIPANTS IN THE BOOK-ENTRY TRANSFER FACILITY MAY DELIVER SHARES BY BOOK-ENTRY TRANSFER):

Name o	of Tendering Institution:						
Accour	nt Number:	Transaction Code Number:					
		TENDERED SHARES ARE BEING DELIVERED PURSUANT TO A NOTICE OF GUARANTEED DELIVERY PREVIOUS XCHANGE AGENT, ENCLOSE A PHOTOCOPY OF SUCH NOTICE OF GUARANTEED DELIVERY AND COMPLETE TH					
Name(s) of Registered Holder(s):						
Date of	f Execution of Notice of Guaranteed Deliver						
	If delivered by book-entry transfer check b						
Name o	of Tendering Institution:						
Accour	nt Number:	Transaction Code Number:					
		FURES MUST BE PROVIDED BELOW. PLEASE READ THE COMPANYING INSTRUCTIONS CAREFULLY					
		3					

Ladies and Gentlemen:

Upon the terms and subject to the conditions of the Offer, the undersigned hereby tenders to the Exchange Agent the shares of Common Stock indicated below pursuant to the Offer.

Subject to and effective upon the acceptance for exchange of and exchange of validly tendered shares of Common Stock, by executing and delivering a Letter of Transmittal, the undersigned (i) irrevocably sells, assigns and transfers, upon the order of the Company, all rights, titles and interests in and to all the tendered shares of Common Stock, (ii) waives any and all rights with respect to the shares of Common Stock tendered and (iii) releases and waives any and all claims or causes of action of any kind whatsoever, whether known or unknown that, directly or indirectly, arising out of or are in any manner connected with your or your successors' and assigns' ownership or acquisition of the shares of Common Stock, including any related transaction, event, circumstance, action, failure to act or occurrence of any sort or type, in each case, that you, your successors and your assigns have, may have or may have had against us or any of our affiliates, directors, officers, associates, counsel or agents or representatives, whether current or former.

The undersigned acknowledges and agrees that the tender of shares of Common Stock made hereby may not be withdrawn except in accordance with the procedures set forth in the Offer to Exchange.

The undersigned represents and warrants that the undersigned has full power and authority to legally tender, sell, assign and transfer the shares of Common Stock tendered hereby and to acquire the Series H Preferred Stock issuable upon the exchange of such tendered shares of Common Stock, and that, when and if the shares of Common Stock tendered hereby are accepted for exchange, the Company will acquire good and unencumbered title to the tendered shares of Common Stock free and clear of all liens, restrictions, charges and encumbrances and not subject to any adverse claim or right. The undersigned also warrants that the undersigned will, upon request, execute and deliver any additional documents deemed by the Exchange Agent or the Company to be necessary or desirable to transfer ownership of such shares of Common Stock.

The understands that the issuance of Series H Preferred Stock upon exchange of the shares of Common Stock is exempt from registration pursuant to Section 3(a)(9) of the Securities Act. The Company has no contract, arrangement or understanding relating to, and will not, directly or indirectly, pay any commission or other remuneration to any broker, dealer, salesperson, agent or any other person for soliciting tenders in the Offer. No broker, dealer, salesperson, agent or other person, is engaged or authorized to express any statement, opinion, recommendation or judgment with respect to the relative merits and risks of the Offer.

All authority conferred or agreed to be conferred in this Letter of Transmittal shall survive the death or incapacity of the undersigned and all obligations of the undersigned hereunder shall be binding upon the successors, assigns, heirs, executors, administrators and legal representatives of the undersigned.

The Company may terminate the Offer at any time in its sole discretion. The Company may not be required to accept all or any of the shares of Common Stock tendered hereby.

The undersigned understands that a valid tender of shares of Common Stock not made in acceptable form and risk of loss therefore does not pass until receipt by the Exchange Agent of this Letter of Transmittal, duly completed, dated and signed, together with all accompanying evidences of authority, including any other required documents. All questions as to the validity, form and eligibility of any tender of the shares of Common Stock hereunder (including time of receipt) and acceptance of tenders and withdrawals of shares of Common Stock will be determined by the Company in its sole discretion (which may delegate the power to make any determination in whole or in part to the Exchange Agent) and such determination shall be final and binding.

Questions and requests for assistance or for additional copies of the Offer to Exchange and this Letter of Transmittal may be directed to the Information Agent, whose addresses and telephone numbers appear on the final page of this Letter of Transmittal. See Instruction 6 below.

PLEASE SIGN HERE (To be completed by all stockholders)

Signature(s):

Name(s):

(Signature(s)	of Stockholder(s))
---------------	--------------------

Dated: , 2023

(Must be signed by registered holder(s) exactly as the name(s) appear(s) on a security position listing or by person(s) authorized to become registered holder(s) by certificate(s) and documents transmitted herewith. If signature is by a trustee, executor, administrator, guardian, attorney-in-fact, officer of corporations or other person acting in a fiduciary or representative capacity, please provide the following information and see Instruction 5.)

Capacity (Full Title):	(Please Print)
Address:	
Daytime Area Code and Telephone Number:	
Tax Identification or Social Security Number:	
5	

(See Form W-9)

GUARANTEE OF SIGNATURE(S) (If Required — See Instructions 1 and 5)

FOR USE BY FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS ONLY. PLACE MEDALLION GUARANTEE IN SPACE BELOW.

Authorized Signature(s)

Name(s):

Title:

Name of Firm:

Address:

Daytime Area Code and Telephone Number: Dated: , 2023 (Please Print)

INSTRUCTIONS

FORMING PART OF THE TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF THE OFFER

1. *Delivery of Letter of Transmittal.* This Letter of Transmittal is to be completed by holders of shares of Common Stock. A properly completed and duly executed Letter of Transmittal and any other documents required by this Letter of Transmittal, must be received by the Exchange Agent at the address set forth herein no later than 12:00 midnight, New York City time, on the Expiration Date.

THE METHOD OF DELIVERY OF THIS LETTER OF TRANSMITTAL AND ALL OTHER REQUIRED DOCUMENTS TO THE EXCHANGE AGENT IS AT THE ELECTION AND RISK OF THE TENDERING HOLDER. IT IS SUGGESTED THAT THE TENDERING HOLDER USE PROPERLY INSURED, REGISTERED MAIL WITH RETURN RECEIPT REQUESTED AND THAT SUFFICIENT TIME BE ALLOWED TO ASSURE TIMELY DELIVERY. NO ALTERNATIVE, CONDITIONAL OR CONTINGENT TENDERS OF SHARES OF COMMON STOCK WILL BE ACCEPTED. EXCEPT AS OTHERWISE PROVIDED BELOW, DELIVERY WILL BE MADE WHEN ACTUALLY RECEIVED BY THE EXCHANGE AGENT. THIS LETTER OF TRANSMITTAL AND ANY OTHER REQUIRED DOCUMENTS SHOULD BE SENT ONLY TO THE EXCHANGE AGENT, NOT TO THE COMPANY.

Shares of Common Stock tendered pursuant to the Offer may be withdrawn at any time prior to 12:00 midnight, New York City time, on the Expiration Date, or such other time if this date is extended by the Company as described in the Offer to Exchange under the caption "The Offer — Expiration Date; Extensions; Amendments". In order to be valid, a notice of withdrawal of tendered shares of Common Stock must comply with the requirements set forth in the Offer to Exchange under the caption "The Offer — Right of Withdrawal".

2. *Signatures on Letter of Transmittal, Powers and Endorsements.* This Letter of Transmittal must be signed by or on behalf of the registered holder(s) of the shares of Common Stock tendered hereby.

If any of the shares of Common Stock tendered hereby are registered in the name of two or more holders, all such holders must sign this Letter of Transmittal. If this Letter of Transmittal or any shares of Common Stock or powers are signed by trustees, executors, administrators, guardians, attorneys-infact, officers of corporations or others acting in a fiduciary or representative capacity, such persons should so indicate when signing, and, unless waived by the Company, proper evidence satisfactory to the Company of its authority so to act must be submitted with this Letter of Transmittal.

3. Signatures for Name Change. For a correction of name or a change in name which does not involve a change in ownership, you may proceed as follows: for a change in name by marriage, etc., this Letter of Transmittal should be signed, *e.g.*, "Mary Doe, now by marriage, Mary Jones." For a correction in name, this Letter of Transmittal should be signed, *e.g.*, "James E. Brown, incorrectly inscribed as J. E. Brown."

You should consult your own tax advisor as to possible tax consequences resulting from the issuance of the Series H Preferred Stock, as described above.

4. *Transfer Taxes.* The Company is not aware of any obligation of holders who tender their shares of Common Stock in the Offer to pay any transfer taxes. However, if any transfer tax would apply to the exchange offer, then the amount of any transfer taxes, whether imposed on the registered owner or any other persons, will be payable by the tendering holder. If satisfactory evidence of payment of such taxes or exemption from them is not submitted to the Company by the tendering holder, the amount of such transfer taxes will be billed directly to the tendering holder.

5. Validity of Tender; Irregularities. All questions as to the validity, form, eligibility (including time of receipt) and acceptance for exchange of any tendered shares of Common Stock pursuant to any of the procedures described above, and the form and validity (including time of receipt of notices of withdrawal) of all documents will be determined by the Company in its sole discretion (and the Company may delegate the power to make any determination in whole or in part to the Exchange Agent). Any such determination will be final and binding. A holder's tender will not be deemed to have been validly made until all defects or irregularities in such tender have been cured or waived. Neither the Company, the Exchange Agent, the Information Agent nor any other person or entity is under any duty to give notification of any defects or irregularities in any tender or withdrawal of any shares of Common Stock, or will incur any liability for failure to give any such notification. The Company reserves the absolute right to reject any or all tenders of any shares of Common Stock determined by the Company not to be in proper form, or if the acceptance of or exchange of such shares of Common Stock may, in the opinion of the Company's counsel, be unlawful. The Company also reserves the right to waive any conditions to the Offer that the Company is legally permitted to waive.

below.

6.

7

Additional Copies. Additional copies of this Letter of Transmittal may be obtained from the Information Agent at the address listed

Important Tax Information. Under U.S. federal income tax law, each tendering holder is required to either (i) provide its correct taxpayer identification number ("TIN") by completing the copy of the Form W-9 attached to this Letter of Transmittal, certifying that (1) it is a "United States person" (as defined in section 7701(a)(30) of the Code), (2) the TIN provided is correct (or that such U.S. holder is awaiting a TIN) and (3) that it is exempt from backup withholding because (a) it has not been notified by the IRS that it is subject to backup withholding as a result of a failure to report all interest or dividends, or (b) it has been notified by the IRS that it is no longer subject to backup withholding or (ii) otherwise establish an exemption. Failure to provide the information on the Form W-9 may subject the tendering holder to a \$50 penalty imposed by the IRS and backup withholding at a rate of 24% on the cash received pursuant to the Offer. If a holder makes a false statement that results in no imposition of backup withholding, and there was no reasonable basis for

such statement, a \$500 penalty may also be imposed by the IRS, in addition to any criminal penalty provided by law.

Certain tendering holders (including, among others, all corporations and certain "Non-U.S. Holders" (as such term is defined in the Offer to Exchange)) are exempt recipients not subject to backup withholding on the receipt of cash pursuant to the Offer. In order for a Non-U.S. Holder to qualify for this exemption, it must submit a properly completed IRS Form W-8 BEN or Form W-8BEN-E or other Form W-8 to the Exchange Agent, certifying under penalties of perjury to the tendering holder's exempt status. Such Form may be obtained from the website maintained by the IRS at www.irs.gov. Exempt holders, other than Non-U.S. Holders, should furnish their TIN, write "exempt" on the face of the Form W-9 below and sign, date and return the Form W-9 to the Exchange Agent. See the enclosed copy of the Form W-9, Request for Taxpayer Identification Number and Certification, and the Instructions to Form W-9 for additional instructions.

Non-U.S. Holders that are eligible for a reduced rate of U.S. federal withholding tax on dividends based on the provisions of a tax treaty with the United States should provide a duly executed IRS Form W-8BEN or Form W-8BEN-E and should complete Part II of Form W-8BEN or Part III of Form W-8BEN-E to claim benefits under an applicable tax treaty. A copy of IRS Form W-8BEN can be found on the IRS website at the following link http://www.irs.gov/pub/irs-pdf/fw8ben.pdf, and a copy of IRS Form W-8BEN-E can be found on the IRS website at the following link http://www.irs.gov/pub/irs-pdf/fw8bene.pdf. A Non-U.S. Holder should consult their own tax advisor regarding their eligibility to claim tax treaty benefits as well as any questions relating to Form W-8BEN or Form W-8BEN-E.

Backup withholding is not an additional tax. Rather, the tax liability of persons subject to backup withholding will be reduced by the amount of tax withheld. If withholding results in an overpayment of taxes, a refund may be obtained by such holder from the IRS upon filing an income tax return, provided that the applicable information and forms are provided to the IRS and other requirements are satisfied.

SEE THE ENCLOSED FORM W-9, REQUEST FOR TAXPAYER IDENTIFICATION NUMBER AND CERTIFICATION, FOR ADDITIONAL INFORMATION AND INSTRUCTIONS.

8. *Withdrawal of Tenders.* For a withdrawal of tendered shares of Common Stock to be effective, a written notice of withdrawal must be received by the Exchange Agent no later than 12:00 midnight, New York City time, on the Expiration Date at its address set forth on the cover of this Letter of Transmittal. Any such notice of withdrawal must: (i) specify the name of the person who tendered the shares of Common Stock to be withdrawn, (ii) contain the description of the shares of Common Stock to be withdrawn, and (iii) be signed by the holder of such shares of Common Stock in the same manner as the original signature on the Letter of Transmittal by which such shares of Common Stock were tendered. If the shares of Common Stock to be withdrawn have been delivered or otherwise identified to the Exchange Agent, a signed notice of withdrawal is effective immediately upon written notice of such withdrawal even if physical release is not yet effected.

Any permitted withdrawal of shares of Common Stock may not be rescinded. Any shares of Common Stock properly withdrawn will thereafter be deemed not validly tendered for purposes of the Offer, <u>provided</u>, <u>however</u>, that withdrawn shares of Common Stock may be re-tendered again by following one of the appropriate procedures described herein at any time but no later than 12:00 midnight, New York City time, on the Expiration Date.

9. *Requests for Assistance or Additional Copies.* Questions relating to the procedure for tendering shares of Common Stock, requests for assistance or additional copies of the Offer to Exchange and this Letter of Transmittal may be directed to, and additional information about the offer may be obtained from, the Information Agent, whose addresses and telephone numbers appear on the back cover page of this Letter of Transmittal.

NOTE: FAILURE TO COMPLETE AND RETURN THE FORM W-9 MAY RESULT IN BACKUP WITHHOLDING OF 24% OF ANY PAYMENTS MADE TO YOU IN THE OFFER. PLEASE REVIEW THE ENCLOSED GUIDELINES FOR CERTIFICATION OF TAXPAYER IDENTIFICATION NUMBER ON FORM W-9 FOR ADDITIONAL INFORMATION.

Manually signed facsimile copies of this Letter of Transmittal will be accepted. This Letter of Transmittal, certificates for Shares and any other required documents should be sent or delivered by each stockholder or such stockholder's broker, dealer, hank, trust company or other nominee to the Exchange Agent at one of its addresses listed below.

COMPUTERSHARE TRUST COMPANY, N.A.

By Overnight Courier:

Computershare Trust Company, N.A. Attn: Corporate Actions Voluntary Offer 150 Royall Street Suite V Canton, MA 02021 By Registered or Certified Mail:

Computershare Trust Company, N.A. Attn: Corporate Actions Voluntary Offer P.O. Box 43011 Providence, RI 02940-3011

Questions regarding the Offer, and requests for assistance in connection with the Offer, may be directed to the Information Agent at its address and telephone number listed below. Additional copies of the Offering Circular, this Letter of Transmittal, the Notice of Guaranteed Delivery or any other materials related to the Offer may he obtained from the Information Agent and will be furnished promptly free of charge. You may also contact your broker, dealer, bank, trust company or other nominee for assistance concerning the Offer.

The Information Agent for the Offer is:



1290 Avenue of the Americas, 9th Floor New York, NY 10104

Shareholders, Banks and Brokers Call Toll Free: 888-565-5423

NOTICE OF GUARANTEED DELIVERY For Common Stock Ault Alliance, Inc.

Offer to Exchange up to 333,333,000 shares of its Common Stock (in 200 share increments) for up to \$50,000,000 aggregate liquidation preference of its 10.00% Series H Cumulative Redeemable Perpetual Preferred Stock

This form or one substantially equivalent hereto must be used by holders of shares of outstanding Class A Common Stock, par value \$0.001 per share (the "Common Stock"), of Ault Alliance, Inc. ("Company" or "Ault Alliance") who wish to tender their shares of Common Stock in exchange for 10.00% Series H Cumulative Redeemable Perpetual Preferred Stock ("Series H Preferred Stock"), with each 200 shares of Common Stock being exchangeable in the Offer for three shares of Series H Preferred Stock having a liquidation preference of \$10.00 per share of Series H Preferred Stock (an effective price of \$0.15 per share of Common Stock) upon the terms and subject to the conditions set forth in the Offer to Exchange (as amended and supplemented from time to time, the "Offer to Exchange") and the related Offer materials (the "Offer") in the event the holder's shares of Common Stock are not immediately available or if such holder cannot deliver its shares and letter of transmittal (as amended and supplemented from time to time, the "Letter of Transmittal") (and any other documents required by the Letter of Transmittal) to Computershare Trust Company, N.A. (the "Exchange Agent") prior to one minute following 11:59 P.M (12:00 midnight), New York City time, on Friday April 28, 2023, unless extended by the Company (such date and time for the Offer, as the same may be extended, the "Expiration Date") or if compliance with book entry transfer procedures cannot be effected on a timely basis.

This Notice of Guaranteed Delivery may be sent by mail to the Exchange Agent. Capitalized terms used but not defined herein have the meaning given to them in the Offer to Exchange.

The Exchange Agent for the Offer is

COMPUTERSHARE TRUST COMPANY, N.A.

If delivering via Registered or Overnight Mail Computershare Trust Company, N.A. Attn: Corporate Actions Voluntary Offer 150 Royall Street Suite V Canton, MA 02021 Via email: canoticeofguarantee@computershare.com *If delivering via First Class Mail:* Computershare Trust Company, N.A. Attn: Corporate Actions Voluntary Offer P.O. Box 43011 Providence, RI 02940-3011

If you have questions or need assistance, please contact Georgeson at 888-565-5423.

DELIVERY OF THIS NOTICE OF GUARANTEED DELIVERY TO AN ADDRESS OTHER THAN AS SET FORTH ABOVE WILL NOT CONSTITUTE A VALID DELIVERY.

This Notice of Guaranteed Delivery is not to be used to guarantee signatures. If a signature on a Letter of Transmittal is required to be guaranteed by an eligible institution (as defined in the Offer to Exchange), such signature guarantee must appear in the applicable space provided on the Letter of Transmittal for Signature Guarantee.

Ladies and Gentlemen:

The undersigned hereby tenders to the Company shares of its Common Stock, upon the terms and subject to the conditions contained in the Offer to Exchange and the Letter of Transmittal, receipt of which is hereby acknowledged.

The Company urges all holders of shares of Common Stock to read the Offer to Exchange, including those sections that compare the rights, preferences, powers and privileges of the holders of Common Stock and the holders of Series H Preferred Stock.

The undersigned agrees that tenders of shares of Common Stock pursuant to the Offer to Exchange may be withdrawn at any time prior to the Expiration Date as provided in the Offer to Exchange. All authority herein conferred or agreed to be conferred by this Notice of Guaranteed Delivery shall survive the death or incapacity of the undersigned and every obligation of the undersigned under this Notice of Guaranteed Delivery shall be binding upon the heirs, personal representatives, executors, administrators, successors, assigns, trustees in bankruptcy and other legal representatives of the undersigned.

Name(s) and Addresses of Registered Holder(s) (Please fill-in)	Shares of Common Stock Tendered*
Total	
* Common Stock may only be tendered in increments of 200 shares, with each	200 shares of Common Stock being exchangeable in the Offer for three shares

* Common Stock may only be tendered in increments of 200 shares, with each 200 shares of Common Stock being exchangeable in the Offer for three shares of Series H Preferred Stock having a liquidation preference of \$10.00 per share of Series H Preferred Stock

IMPORTANT: THIS NOTICE OF GUARANTEED DELIVERY MUST BE RECEIVED BY THE EXCHANGE AGENT PRIOR TO 12:00 MIDNIGHT, NEW YORK CITY TIME, ON THE EXPIRATION DATE.

PLEASE SIGN HERE

Х		2023
Х		2023
Х		2023
Х		2023
-	Signature(s) of Holders	Date

Area Code and Telephone Number:

If a holder is tendering any shares of Common Stock, the above must be signed by the registered holder(s) as the name(s) appear(s) on the certificate(s) for the shares of Common Stock or by any person(s) authorized to become registered holder(s) by endorsements and documents transmitted herewith. If signature is by a trustee, executor, administrator, guardian, officer or other person acting in a fiduciary or representative capacity, please set forth full title and provide proper evidence of such fiduciary's authority to so act.

Please print name(s) and address(es)			
Name(s)			
Capacity:			
Address:			
□ The Depository Trust Company (Check if shares will be tendered by book-entry transfer)			
Account Number:			
3			

THE GUARANTEE ON THE FOLLOWING PAGE MUST BE COMPLETED. GUARANTEE OF DELIVERY

(NOT TO BE USED FOR SIGNATURE GUARANTEE)

The undersigned, an "eligible guarantor institution" and member of a recognized signature guarantee medallion program within the meaning of Rule 17Ad-15 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, hereby guarantees to deliver to the Exchange Agent at one of its addresses set forth above, the certificates representing the shares of Common Stock (or a confirmation of book-entry transfer of such shares of Common Stock into the Exchange Agent's account at The Depository Trust Company), together with a properly completed and duly executed Letter of Transmittal, with any required signature guarantees, and any other documents required by the Letter of Transmittal within two New York Stock Exchange trading days after the date of execution of this Notice of Guaranteed Delivery. Participants should notify the Exchange Agent prior to covering through the submission of a physical security directly to the Exchange Agent based on a guaranteed delivery that was submitted via DTC's PTOP platform.

Name of Firm:		(Authorized signature)
		(Authonized signature)
Address:		Title:
		Name:
		(Please type or print)
	(Zip Code)	Date:
Area Code and Telephone Number:		
X		

PLACE MEDALLION GUARANTEE STAMP BELOW.

Ault Alliance, Inc.

Offer to Exchange up to 333,333,333 shares of Common Stock (in 200 share increments) for up to \$50,000,000 aggregate liquidation preference of 10.00% Series H Cumulative Redeemable Perpetual Preferred Stock

То

Brokers, Dealers, Commercial Banks, Trust Companies and Other Nominees:

Ault Alliance, Inc. ("we", "us", the "Company" or "Ault Alliance") is offering (the "Offer") to exchange up to 333,333,333 shares of its outstanding Class A Common Stock, par value \$0.001 per share (the "Common Stock") for up to \$50,000,000 aggregate liquidation preference of 10.00% Series H Cumulative Redeemable Perpetual Preferred Stock ("Series H Preferred Stock"), with each 200 shares of Common Stock being exchangeable in the Offer for three shares of Series H Preferred Stock having a liquidation preference of \$10.00 per share of Series H Preferred Stock (an effective price of \$0.15 per share of Common Stock), upon the terms and subject to the conditions set forth in the Offer to Exchange (as amended and supplemented from time to time, the "Offer to Exchange"), the enclosed Letter of Transmittal (as may be amended from time to time, the "Letter of Transmittal") and the related Offer materials (as amended and supplemented from time to time, the "Offer Documents").

The Company is requesting that you contact your clients for whom you hold shares of Common Stock regarding the Offer. For your information and for forwarding to your clients for whom you hold shares registered in your name or in the name of your nominee, or who hold shares registered in their own names, enclosed as the following documents:

1. Offer to Exchange;

2. The Letter of Transmittal for your use and for the information of your clients (including Guidelines for Certification of Taxpayer Identification Number on Substitute Form W-9); and

3. A form of letter which may be sent to your clients for whose account you hold shares registered in your name or the name of your nominee, with space provided for obtaining such clients' instruction with regard to the Offer.

Your prompt action is requested. The Offer will expire at one minute following 11:59 P.M (12:00 midnight), New York City time, on Friday April 28, 2023, unless extended or earlier terminated by the Company (such date and time for the Offer, as may be extended, the "Expiration Date"). Shares of Common Stock tendered for exchange may be withdrawn at any time before one minute following 11:59 P.M (12:00 midnight), New York City time, on the Expiration Date.

To participate in the Offer, a timely book-entry confirmation that shares have been transferred into the account of Computershare Trust Company N.A. ("Computershare" or the "Exchange Agent"), at The Depository Trust Company, and a properly completed and duly executed Letter of Transmittal and all other required documents or a properly transmitted agent's message (as defined in the Letter of Transmittal and the Offer to Exchange) should be sent to the Exchange Agent in accordance with the instructions set forth in the Letter of Transmittal and the Offer to Exchange. Georgeson is serving as information agent in the Offer (the "Information Agent").

The Company will, upon request, reimburse brokers, dealers, commercial banks, trust companies and other nominees for reasonable and necessary costs and expenses incurred by them in forwarding the Offer to Exchange and the related documents to the beneficial owners of shares held by them as a nominee or in a fiduciary capacity.

Neither the Company, its management, its board of directors, nor the Information Agent and the Exchange Agent for the Offer, has authorized anyone to make any recommendation to holders of shares of Common Stock as to whether or not to tender in the Offer.

Any questions related to the procedure for tendering you may have with respect to the Offer should be directed to, and additional copies of the enclosed material may be obtained from, the Information Agent at the telephone numbers set forth on the front of the Letter of Transmittal.

Very truly yours,

AULT ALLIANCE, INC.

NOTHING HEREIN OR IN THE ENCLOSED DOCUMENTS SHALL CONSTITUTE YOU OR ANY PERSON AS AN AGENT OF THE COMPANY, OR THE INFORMATION AGENT AND EXCHANGE AGENT, OR AUTHORIZE YOU OR ANY OTHER PERSON TO USE ANY DOCUMENT OR MAKE ANY STATEMENTS ON BEHALF OF EITHER OF THEM WITH RESPECT TO THE OFFER, EXCEPT FOR STATEMENTS EXPRESSLY MADE IN THE OFFER TO EXCHANGE OR THE LETTER OF TRANSMITTAL.

Ault Alliance, Inc.

Offer to Exchange up to 333,333,333 shares of Common Stock (in 200 share increments) for up to \$50,000,000 aggregate liquidation preference of 10.00% Series H Cumulative Redeemable Perpetual Preferred Stock

To Our Clients:

Enclosed for your consideration is an Offer to Exchange, dated March 31, 2023 (as may be amended from time to time, the "Offer to Exchange"), and the enclosed Letter of Transmittal (as may be amended from time to time, the "Letter of Transmittal"), related to an offer by Ault Alliance, Inc., a Delaware corporation (the "Company" or "Ault Alliance"), to exchange up to 333,333,333 shares of its outstanding Class A Common Stock, par value \$0.001 per share (the "Common Stock"), for up to \$50,000,000 aggregate liquidation preference of 10.00% Series H Cumulative Redeemable Perpetual Preferred Stock ("Series H Preferred Stock"), with each 200 shares of Common Stock being exchangeable in the Offer for three shares of Series H Preferred Stock having a liquidation preference of \$10.00 per share of Series H Preferred Stock (an effective price of \$0.15 per share of Common Stock), upon the terms and subject to the conditions set forth in the Offer to Exchange (the "Offer").

This material is being forwarded to you as the beneficial owner of the shares of Common Stock held by us for your account but not registered in your name. A tender of such shares may only be made by us as the holder of record and pursuant to your instructions.

Accordingly, we request instructions as to whether you wish us to tender on your behalf the shares held by us for your account, pursuant to the terms and conditions set forth in the enclosed Offer to Exchange and the Letter of Transmittal.

Your instructions should be promptly forwarded to us in order to permit us to tender the shares on your behalf in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Offer. The Offer will expire at one minute following 11:59 P.M (12:00 midnight), New York City time, on Friday April 28, 2023, unless extended or earlier terminated by the Company (such date and time for the Offer, as may be extended, the "Expiration Date"). Shares of Common Stock tendered for exchange may be withdrawn at any time before one minute following 11:59 P.M (12:00 midnight), New York City time, on the Expiration Date.

Your attention is directed to the following:

- The Offer is for up to 333,333,333 shares of Common Stock.
- To avoid issuing fractional shares, Common Stock may only be tendered in increments of 200 shares.
- Each 200 shares of Common Stock being exchangeable in the Offer for three shares of Series H Preferred Stock having a liquidation preference of \$10.00 per share of Series H Preferred Stock (an effective price of \$0.15 per share of Common Stock).
- The Offer is subject to certain conditions set forth in the Offer to Exchange in the section entitled The Offer Conditions to the Completion of the Offer."

• The Offer will expire at one minute following 11:59 P.M (12:00 midnight), New York City time, on Friday April 28, 2023, unless extended or earlier terminated by the Company.

IF YOU WISH TO HAVE US TENDER YOUR SHARES, PLEASE SO INSTRUCT US BY COMPLETING, EXECUTING AND RETURNING TO US THE INSTRUCTION FORM ON THE BACK OF THIS LETTER IN THE ENCLOSED ENVELOPE WITHIN AMPLE TIME TO PERMIT US TO SUBMIT A TENDER ON YOUR BEHALF PRIOR TO THE APPLICABLE EXPIRATION DATE.

PLEASE DO NOT COMPLETE THE LETTER OF TRANSMITTAL. IT IS FURNISHED TO YOU FOR INFORMATION ONLY AND MAY NOT BE USED DIRECTLY BY YOU TO TENDER SHARES.

INSTRUCTIONS WITH RESPECT TO THE OFFER FOR SHARES OF AULT ALLIANCE COMMON STOCK

The undersigned acknowledge(s) receipt of your letter and the enclosed material referred to therein relating to the Offer made by Ault Alliance, Inc. with respect to its shares of Common Stock.

This will instruct you to tender the shares indicated below (or, if no number is indicated below, all shares) held by you for the account of the undersigned, upon the terms and subject to conditions set forth in the Offer to Exchange and the related Letter of Transmittal.

Please tender the shares held by you for my account as indicated below:

Ault Alliance Common Stock (CUSIP No. 09175M101)

Delease tender shares of Ault Alliance Common Stock (you may only tender shares in 200 share increments)

□ Please do not tender any shares held by you for any account.

Dated:,	2023
Signature(s):	
Print Name(s) here:	
(Print Address(es)):	
(Area Code and Telephone	Number(s)):
(Taxpayer Identification or	r Social Security Number(s)):

NONE OF THE SHARES HELD BY US FOR YOUR ACCOUNT WILL BE TENDERED UNLESS WE RECEIVE WRITTEN INSTRUCTIONS FROM YOU TO DO SO. AFTER RECEIPT OF INSTRUCTIONS TO TENDER, UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED WE WILL TENDER ALL THE SHARES HELD BY US FOR YOUR ACCOUNT.

AULT ALLIANCE, INC.

CERTIFICATE OF DESIGNATION, RIGHTS AND PREFERENCES

OF

10.00% SERIES H CUMULATIVE REDEEMABLE PERPETUAL PREFERRED STOCK

April ____, 2023

Pursuant to Section 151(g) of the General Corporation Law of the State of Delaware (the "DGCL") and Article IV, Section 4 of the Certificate of Incorporation, as amended (the "Certificate of Incorporation"), of Ault Alliance, Inc. (the "Corporation"):

WHEREAS, Article IV, Section 1 of the Certificate of Incorporation authorizes the issuance of up to 25,000,000 shares of preferred stock, par value \$0.001 per share, of the Corporation ("Preferred Stock") in one or more series, and expressly authorizes the Board of Directors of the Corporation (the "Board"), subject to limitations prescribed by law, to provide, out of the authorized, undesignated and unissued shares of Preferred Stock, one or more series of Preferred Stock, and, with respect to each such series, to establish and fix the number of shares to be included in any series of Preferred Stock and the designation, rights, preferences, powers, restrictions and limitations of the shares of such series;

WHEREAS, it is the desire of the Board to establish and fix the number of shares to be included in a new series of Preferred Stock and the designation, rights, preferences powers, restrictions and limitations of the shares of such new series; and

WHEREAS, the Board, pursuant to the authority conferred upon it by Article IV, Section 4 of the Certificate of Incorporation and in accordance with Section 151(g) of the DGCL, acting through a unanimous written consent dated March 27, 2023, adopted the following resolutions:

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that a new series of Preferred Stock of the Corporation, designated as 10.00% Series H Cumulative Redeemable Perpetual Preferred Stock, be, and it hereby is, created, and that the designation and number thereof and the voting powers, preferences and relative, participating, optional and other special rights of the Series H Preferred Stock, and the qualifications, limitations or restrictions thereof are as set forth in such new Certificate of Designation, as filed with the Secretary of State of the State of Delaware in accordance with the Certificate of Incorporation, as amended (the "Certificate of Incorporation"), the Bylaws and the DGCL; and be it

RESOLVED, that the statements contained in the foregoing resolutions creating and designating the said shares and fixing the number, limited powers, preferences and relative, optional, participating, and other special rights and the qualifications, limitations, restrictions, and other distinguishing characteristics thereof shall, upon the effective date of said series, be deemed to be included in and be a part of the Certificate of Incorporation of the Corporation; and be it

RESOLVED, that the Board does hereby approve the adoption of the Certificate of Designation in the form previously presented to the Board relating to the Series H Preferred Stock to the Certificate of Incorporation (the "Certificate of Designation"), and does hereby determine that the adoption of the Certificate of Designation is in the best interests of the Corporation's stockholders.

FURTHER RESOLVED, that each of the Chief Executive Officer, President and Chief Financial Officer of the Corporation (the "**Authorized Officers**") are hereby authorized and directed to take all actions necessary to prepare and file this Certificate of Designation with the Secretary of State of the State of Delaware as they, in consultation with legal counsel, deem either necessary or appropriate to proceed with any such sale.

Section 1. Number of Shares and Designation. This series of Preferred Stock shall be designated as the "10.00% Series H Cumulative Redeemable Perpetual Preferred Stock," par value \$0.001 per share (the "Series H Preferred Stock"). The Series H Preferred Stock shall be perpetual, subject to the provisions of <u>Section 4</u> hereof, and the authorized number of shares of the Series H Preferred Stock shall be 5,000,000 shares. The number of shares of Series H Preferred Stock shall be increased from time to time pursuant to the provisions of <u>Section 12</u> hereof and any such additional shares of Series H Preferred Stock shall form a single series with the Series H Preferred Stock. Each share of Series H Preferred Stock shall have the same designations, rights, preferences, powers, restrictions and limitations as every other share of Series H Preferred Stock.

Section 2. Dividends.

(a) <u>Dividend Rate</u>. Holders of shares of the Series H Preferred Stock are entitled to receive, when, as and if declared by the Board, out of funds legally available for the payment of dividends, cumulative cash dividends at an annual rate of 10.00%, which is equivalent to \$1.00 per annum per share, based on the \$10.00 liquidation preference (the "**Dividend Rate**") during the Fixed Term (as defined below). The Dividend Rate shall accrue from, and including, the date of initial issuance to, but not including, the date fixed for redemption (the "**Fixed Term**"). "**Business Day**" shall mean any day, other than a Saturday or Sunday, that is neither a legal holiday nor a day on which banking institutions in New York, New York are authorized or required by law, regulation or executive order to close.

Dividend Payment Date; Dividend Record Date. Dividends on the Series H Preferred Stock shall accrue daily and be cumulative from, (b) and including, the date of initial issue and shall be payable quarterly on the last day of each calendar quarter (each such payment date, a "Dividend Payment Date," and each such quarterly period, a "Dividend Period"); provided that if any Dividend Payment Date is not a Business Day, then the dividend that would otherwise have been payable on that Dividend Payment Date may be paid on the next succeeding Business Day, and no interest, additional dividends or other sums will accrue on the amount so payable for the period from and after that Dividend Payment Date to that next succeeding Business Day. The first dividend on the Series H Preferred Stock is scheduled to be paid on June 30, 2023 (in the amount of \$0.25 per share) to the persons who are the holders of record of the Series H Preferred Stock at the close of business on the corresponding record date, which will be June 30, 2023. The Corporation may pay dividends, at the Corporation's option, in fully paid and nonassessable, registered shares of the Corporation's Class A Common Stock, par value \$0.001 per share (the "Common Stock", and such dividends paid in the form of Common Stock being herein called "PIK Dividends"). PIK Dividends shall be paid by delivering to each record holder of Series H Preferred Stock a number of registered shares of Common Stock ("PIK Dividend Shares") determined by dividing (x) the total aggregate dollar amount of dividends accrued and unpaid with respect to shares of Series H Preferred Stock owned by such record holder on the record date for the applicable Dividend Payment Date (rounded to the nearest whole cent) by (y) the applicable PIK Dividend Price. If the Corporation delivers PIK Dividend Shares in lieu of cash with respect to accrued dividends, it must do so with respect to all (but not less than all) of such dividends payable for the applicable Dividend Payment Date. The Corporation shall not issue fractional shares of Common Stock to which holders of Series H Preferred Stock may become entitled pursuant to this subparagraph, but in lieu thereof, the Corporation shall round the number of shares to be issued up to the next whole number. Any dividend payable on the Series H Preferred Stock, including dividends payable for any partial Dividend Period, will be computed on the basis of a 360-day year consisting of twelve 30-day months. Dividends will be payable to holders of record as they appear in the Corporation's stock records for the Series H Preferred Stock at the close of business on the applicable record date, which shall be the last day of the calendar quarter, whether or not a Business Day, in which the applicable Dividend Payment Date falls (each, a "Dividend Record Date").

As used herein,

"PIK Dividend Price" means the ten-day VWAP per share of Common Stock prior to the Dividend Payment Date.

"VWAP" means, for any date, the price determined by the first of the following clauses that applies: (a) if the Common Stock is then listed or quoted on a Trading Market, the daily volume weighted average price of the Common Stock for such date (or the nearest preceding date) on the Trading Market on which the Common Stock is then listed or quoted as reported by Bloomberg L.P. (based on a Trading Day from 9:30 a.m. (New York City time) to 4:02 p.m. (New York City time)), (b) if OTCQB or OTCQX is not a Trading Market, the volume weighted average price of the Common Stock for such date (or the nearest preceding date) on OTCQB or OTCQX as applicable, (c) if the Common Stock is not then listed or quoted for trading on OTCQB or OTCQX and if prices for the Common Stock are then reported in the "Pink Sheets" published by OTC Markets Group, Inc. (or a similar organization or agency succeeding to its functions of reporting prices), the most recent bid price per share of the Common Stock so reported, or (d) in all other cases, the fair market value of a share of Common Stock as determined by an independent appraiser selected in good faith by the majority in interest of the holders of Series H Preferred Stock then outstanding and reasonably acceptable to the Corporation, the fees and expenses of which shall be paid by the Corporation.

"Trading Market" means any of the following markets or exchanges on which the Common Stock is listed or quoted for trading on the date in question: the NYSE MKT, the Nasdaq (defined below), the Nasdaq Global Market, the Nasdaq Global Select Market, the NYSE (defined below), the NYSE American (defined below), OTCQB or OTCQX (or any successors to any of the foregoing).

(c) <u>Limiting Documents</u>. No dividends on shares of Series H Preferred Stock shall be authorized by the Board or paid or set apart for payment by the Corporation at any time when the payment thereof would be unlawful under the laws of the State of Delaware or when the terms and provisions of any agreement of the Corporation, including any agreement relating to the Corporation's indebtedness (the "Limiting Documents"), prohibit the authorization, payment or setting apart for payment thereof or provide that the authorization, payment or setting apart for payment shall be restricted or prohibited by law.

(d) <u>Dividend Accrual</u>. Notwithstanding the foregoing, dividends on the Series H Preferred Stock will accrue regardless of whether (i) the Corporation has earnings; (ii) there are funds legally available for the payment of such dividends; or (iii) such dividends are declared by the Board. No interest, or sum in lieu of interest, will be payable in respect of any dividend payment or payments on the Series H Preferred Stock which may be in arrears, and holders of the Series H Preferred Stock will not be entitled to any dividends in excess of full cumulative dividends described above. Any dividend payment made on the Series H Preferred Stock shall first be credited against the earliest accumulated but unpaid dividend due with respect to those shares.

(e) <u>Dividends on Junior Stock or Parity Stock</u>. Unless full cumulative dividends on the Series H Preferred Stock have been or contemporaneously are declared and paid or declared and a sum sufficient for the payment thereof is set apart for payment for all past Dividend Periods, no dividends (other than in shares of the Common Stock, or in shares of any series of Preferred Stock that the Corporation may issue ranking junior to the Series H Preferred Stock as to dividends and upon liquidation) shall be declared or paid or set aside for payment upon shares of any Junior Stock (as defined in Section 6) or Parity Stock (as defined in Section may issue.

(f) <u>Pro Rata Dividends</u>. When dividends are not paid in full (or a sum sufficient for such full payment is not so set apart) upon the Series H Preferred Stock and the shares of any other series of Preferred Stock that the Corporation may issue ranking on parity as to dividends with the Series H Preferred Stock, all dividends declared upon the Series H Preferred Stock and any other series of Preferred Stock ranking on parity that the Corporation may issue as to dividends with the Series H Preferred Stock shall be declared pro rata so that the amount of dividends declared per share of Series H Preferred Stock and such other series of Preferred Stock that the Corporation may issue shall in all cases bear to each other the same ratio that accrued dividends per share on the Series H Preferred Stock and such other series of Preferred Stock that the Corporation may issue (which shall not include any accrual in respect of unpaid dividends for prior Dividend Periods if such Preferred Stock does not have a cumulative dividend) bear to each other. No interest, or sum of money in lieu of interest, shall be payable in respect of any dividend payment or payments on the Series H Preferred Stock which may be in arrears.

(g) <u>Payment of Accrued and Unpaid Dividends</u>. Holders of Series H Preferred Stock shall not be entitled to any dividend in excess of all accumulated accrued and unpaid dividends on the Series H Preferred Stock as described in this <u>Section 2</u>. Any dividend payment made on the Series H Preferred Stock shall first be credited against the earliest accumulated accrued and unpaid dividend due with respect to such shares which remains payable at the time of such payment.

(h) <u>Dividend Default</u>. Whenever dividends on any shares of Series H Preferred Stock are in arrears for six or more Dividend Periods, whether or not consecutive (a "**Dividend Default**"):

(i) the Dividend Rate shall be increased to 12% per annum (equivalent to \$1.20 per annum per share) (as increased, the "**Penalty Rate**"), commencing on the first day after the Dividend Payment Date on which a Dividend Default occurs and for each subsequent Dividend Payment Date thereafter until such time as the Corporation has paid all accumulated accrued and unpaid dividends on the Series H Preferred Stock in full, at which time the Dividend Rate shall revert to the rate of 10.00% of the \$10.00 per share stated liquidation preference per annum (the "**Stated Rate**");

(ii) on the next Dividend Payment Date following the Dividend Payment Date on which a Dividend Default occurs, and continuing until such time as the Corporation has paid all accumulated accrued and unpaid dividends on the Series H Preferred Stock in full, the Corporation shall pay all dividends on the Series H Preferred Stock, including all accumulated accrued and unpaid dividends, on each Dividend Payment Date either in cash or, if not paid in cash, by issuing to the holders thereof (A) if the Common Stock is then subject to a National Market Listing (as defined in Section 4(b)(ii)), shares of freely tradeable Common Stock with a value equal to the amount of dividends being paid, calculated based on the then current market value of the Common Stock, plus cash in lieu of any fractional share of Common Stock, or (B) if the Common Stock is not then subject to a National Market Listing, additional shares of Series H Preferred Stock with a value equal to the amount of dividends being paid, calculated based on the stated \$10.00 liquidation preference per share of the Series H Preferred Stock, plus cash in lieu of any fractional Series H Preferred Stock; and

(iii) to the extent that the Corporation determines a shelf registration statement to cover resales of Common Stock or Series H Preferred Stock is required in connection with the issuance of, or for resales of, such Common Stock or Series H Preferred Stock issued as payment of a dividend, the Corporation will use its commercially reasonable efforts to file and maintain the effectiveness of such a shelf registration statement until such time as all shares of such stock have been resold thereunder or such shares are eligible for resale pursuant to Rule 144(b)(1) under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended.

Following any Dividend Default that has been cured by the Corporation as provided above in subparagraph (i) of this paragraph (h), if the Corporation subsequently fails to pay cash dividends on the Series H Preferred Stock in full for any Dividend Period, such subsequent failure shall constitute a separate Dividend Default, and the foregoing provisions of this paragraph (h) shall immediately apply until such subsequent Dividend Default is cured as so provided.

(i) <u>Special Dividend</u>. If the Corporation, at any time while the Series H Preferred Stock is outstanding, pays a stock dividend or otherwise makes a distribution or distributions payable in shares of common stock of its Subsidiaries or other equity securities of its Subsidiaries on shares of Common Stock (a "**Subsidiary Dividend**"), then a holder of Series H Preferred Stock shall be entitled to participate in such Subsidiary Dividend to the same extent that the holder would have participated therein as if the holder had held the number of shares of Common Stock acquirable upon complete conversion of such holder's shares of Series H Preferred Stock, determined by dividing the \$10.00 stated value of each such share of Series H Preferred Stock by \$0.15, immediately before the date of which a record is taken for such Subsidiary Dividend, or, if no such record is taken, the date as of which the record holders of shares of Common Stock are to be determined for the participation in such Subsidiary Dividend. "**Subsidiary**" means any direct or indirect subsidiary of the Corporation.

Section 3. Liquidation Preference. Upon the voluntary or involuntary liquidation, dissolution or winding up of the Corporation's affairs, then, before any distribution or payment shall be made to the holders of any Common Stock or any other class or series of Junior Stock, the holders of Series H Preferred Stock shall be entitled to receive out of the Corporation's assets legally available for distribution to stockholders, liquidating distributions in the amount of the liquidation preference, or \$10.00 per share, plus an amount equal to all dividends (whether or not declared) accrued and unpaid thereon to and including the date of payment. After payment of the full amount of the liquidating distributions to which they are entitled, the holders of Series H Preferred Stock will have no right or claim to any of the Corporation's remaining assets. In the event that, upon any such voluntary or involuntary liquidation, dissolution or winding up, the Corporation's available assets are insufficient to pay the amount of the liquidating distributions on all outstanding shares of Series H Preferred Stock and the corresponding amounts payable on all Senior Stock and Parity Stock, then after payment of the liquidating distribution on all outstanding Senior Stock, the holders of the Series H Preferred Stock and all other such classes or series of Parity Stock shall share ratably in any such distribution of assets in proportion to the full liquidating distributions to which they would otherwise be respectively entitled. For such purposes, any consolidation or merger of the Corporation with or into any other entity, or the sale, lease or conveyance of all or substantially all of the property or business of the Corporation, or a statutory share exchange shall not be deemed to constitute the voluntary or involuntary liquidation, dissolution or winding up of the Corporation.

Section 4. Redemption.

(a) <u>Optional Redemption</u>. Beginning on the date that is two years following the initial issuance of the Series H Preferred Stock, the Corporation may, at its option, upon not less than thirty (30) days nor more than sixty (60) days' written notice, redeem the Series H Preferred Stock, in whole or in part, at any time or from time to time, at a redemption price of \$10.00 per share of Series H Preferred Stock, plus any accumulated and unpaid dividends (whether or not declared) on the Series H Preferred Stock up to, but not including, the date of such redemption, upon written notice as described herein. If the Corporation elects to redeem any shares of Series H Preferred Stock as described in this paragraph, the Corporation may use any available cash to pay the redemption price.

(b) <u>Special Optional Redemption</u>. Upon the occurrence of a Change of Control (as defined below), provided no Limiting Document may prohibit it, the Corporation may, at its option, upon not less than thirty (30) days nor more than sixty (60) days' written notice, redeem the Series H Preferred Stock, in whole or in part, within one hundred twenty (120) days after the first date on which such Change of Control occurred, for cash at a redemption price of \$10.00 per share, plus any accumulated and unpaid dividends thereon to, but not including, the date fixed for redemption. If the Corporation elects to redeem any shares of the Series H Preferred Stock as described in this paragraph, the Corporation may use any available cash to pay the redemption price.

A "Change of Control" is deemed to occur when, after the initial issuance of the Series H Preferred Stock, the following have occurred and are continuing:

(i) the acquisition by any person, including any syndicate or group deemed to be a "person" under Section 13(d)(3) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the "**Exchange Act**") (other than Ault & Company, Inc. ("A&C") and Ault Alpha LP ("AA"), both of which are significant stockholders of the Corporation and affiliates of Milton C. Ault III, the current Executive Chairman of the Corporation, and any "person" or "group" under Section 13(d)(3) of the Exchange Act that is an affiliate of A&C, AA, or any trust, partnership, corporate or other entity affiliated with any of the foregoing), of beneficial ownership, directly or indirectly, through a purchase, merger or other acquisition transaction or series of purchases, mergers or other acquisition transactions of the Corporation's stock entitling that person to exercise more than 50% of the total voting power of all the Corporation's stock entitled to vote generally in the election of the Corporation's directors (except that such person will be deemed to have beneficial ownership of all securities that such person has the right to acquire, whether such right is currently exercisable or is exercisable only upon the occurrence of a subsequent condition); or

(ii) following the closing of any transaction referred to above, neither the Corporation nor the acquiring or surviving entity has a class of common securities (or American Depositary Receipts representing such securities) listed on the New York Stock Exchange ("NYSE"), the NYSE American LLC (the "NYSE American") or Nasdaq Stock Market ("Nasdaq"), or listed or quoted on an exchange or quotation system that is a successor to the NYSE, the NYSE American or Nasdaq (a "National Market Listing").

(c) <u>Redemption Procedures.</u>

(i) Notice of redemption will be mailed upon not less than thirty (30) days nor more than sixty (60) days before the redemption date to each holder of record of Series H Preferred Stock at the address shown on the share transfer books of the Corporation. Each notice shall state: (i) the redemption date; (ii) the number of shares of Series H Preferred Stock to be redeemed; (iii) the redemption price of Series H Preferred Stock, plus any accumulated and unpaid dividends (whether or not declared) up to, but not including the date of redemption; (iv) the place or places where any certificates issued for Series H Preferred Stock other than through The Depository Trust Company ("**DTC**") book entry described below, are to be surrendered for payment of the redemption price; (v) that dividends on the Series H Preferred Stock will cease to accrue on such redemption date; (vi) whether such redemption is being made pursuant to the provisions described above under <u>Section 4(a)</u> or <u>Section 4(b)</u>; (vii) if applicable, that such redemption is being made in connection with a Change of Control and, in that case, a brief description of the transaction or transactions constituting such Change of Control and (viii) any other information required by law or by the applicable rules of any exchange or market upon which the Series H Preferred Stock may be listed or admitted for trading. If fewer than all outstanding shares of Series H Preferred Stock are to be redeemed, the notice mailed to each such holder thereof shall also specify the number of shares of Series H Preferred Stock to be redeemed from each such holder.

(ii) At the Corporation's election, on or prior to the redemption date, the Corporation may irrevocably deposit the redemption price (including accrued and unpaid dividends) of the Series H Preferred Stock so called for redemption in trust for the holders thereof with a bank or trust company, in which case the notice to holders of shares of Series H Preferred Stock will (i) state the date of such deposit, (ii) specify the office of such bank or trust company as the place of payment of the redemption price, and (iii) require such holders to surrender any certificates issued for shares of Series H Preferred Stock other than through the DTC book entry described below at such place on or about the date fixed in such redemption notice (which may not be later than such redemption date) against payment of the redemption price (including all accrued and unpaid dividends) deposited with a bank or trust company will be paid to the Corporation. Any monies so deposited that remain unclaimed by the holders of shares of Series H Preferred Stock at the end of six (6) months after the redemption date will be returned to the Corporation by such bank or trust company. If the Corporation makes such a deposit, shares of Series H Preferred Stock shall not be considered outstanding for purposes of voting or determining shares entitled to vote on any matter on or after the date of such deposit.

(iii) On or after the date fixed for redemption, each holder of shares of Series H Preferred Stock that holds a certificate other than through the DTC book entry described below must present and surrender each certificate representing their Series H Preferred Stock to the Corporation at the place designated in the applicable notice and thereupon the redemption price of such shares will be paid to or on the order of the person whose name appears on such certificate representing the Series H Preferred Stock as the owner thereof, each surrendered certificate will be canceled and the shares will be retired and restored to the status of undesignated, authorized shares of Preferred Stock.

(iv) If the Corporation redeems any shares of Series H Preferred Stock and if the redemption date occurs after a Dividend Record Date and on or prior to the related Dividend Payment Date, the dividend payable on such Dividend Payment Date with respect to such shares called for redemption shall be payable on such Dividend Payment Date to the holders of record at the close of business on such Dividend Record Date, and shall not be payable as part of the redemption price for such shares.

Section 5. Status of Acquired Shares. All shares of Series H Preferred Stock redeemed by the Corporation in accordance with <u>Section 4</u> hereof, or otherwise acquired by the Corporation, shall be restored to the status of authorized but unissued shares of undesignated Preferred Stock of the Corporation.

Section 6. Ranking. The Series H Preferred Stock will rank: (i) senior to all of the Corporation's Common Stock and any other equity securities that the Corporation may issue in the future, the terms of which specifically provide that such equity securities rank junior to the Series H Preferred Stock, in each case with respect to payment of dividends and amounts upon liquidation, dissolution or winding up ("**Junior Stock**"); (ii) equal to any shares of equity securities that the Corporation may issue in the future, the terms of which specifically provide that such equity securities rank on par with such Series H Preferred Stock, in each case with respect to payment of dividends and amounts upon liquidation, dissolution or winding up ("**Parity Stock**"), including the Corporation's Series A Cumulative Redeemable Perpetual Preferred Stock, the 13.00% Series D Cumulative Redeemable Perpetual Preferred Stock, the Series B Convertible Preferred Stock and all other equity securities the Corporation issues, the terms of which specifically provide that such equity securities rank senior to the Series H Preferred Stock, in each case with respect to payment of dividends and amounts upon liquidation, dissolution or winding up ("**Parity Stock**"), including the Corporation's Series F Convertible Preferred Stock and the Series G Convertible Preferred Stock; (iii) junior to the Corporation's Series B Convertible Preferred Stock and all other equity securities the Corporation issues, the terms of which specifically provide that such equity securities rank senior to the Series H Preferred Stock, in each case with respect to payment of dividends and amounts upon liquidation, dissolution or winding up (any such issuance would require the affirmative vote of the holders of at least two-thirds of the outstanding shares of Series H Preferred Stock) ("**Senior Stock**"); and (iv) junior to all of the Corporation's existing and future indebtedness.

Section 7. Voting Rights.

(a) The Series H Preferred Stock shall have no voting rights, except as required by law.

(b) Without the consent of the holders of the Series H Preferred Stock, to the fullest extent permitted by applicable law and so long as such action does not adversely affect the special rights, preferences, privileges, restrictions or voting powers of the Series H Preferred Stock, the Corporation may amend, alter, supplement, or repeal any terms of the Series H Preferred Stock, including by way of amendment to this Certificate of Designation, for the following purposes:

(i) to cure any ambiguity or mistake, or to correct or supplement any provision contained in this Certificate of Designation establishing the terms of the Series H Preferred Stock that may be defective or inconsistent with any other provision contained in such Certificate of Designation;

(ii) to make any provision with respect to matters or questions relating to the Series H Preferred Stock that is not inconsistent with the provisions of the Certificate of Incorporation, including this Certificate of Designation; or

(iii) to waive any of the Corporation's rights with respect thereto.

Section 8. Information Rights. During any period in which the Corporation is not subject to Section 13 or 15(d) of the Exchange Act and any shares of Series H Preferred Stock are outstanding, the Corporation shall use its best efforts to (a) transmit by mail to all holders of Series H Preferred Stock, as their names and addresses appear in the Corporation's record books and without cost to such holders, copies of the annual reports and quarterly reports that the Corporation would have been required to file with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the "SEC") pursuant to Section 13 or 15(d) of the Exchange Act if the Corporation was subject to such sections (other than any exhibits that would have been required) and (b) promptly upon written request, supply copies of such reports to any prospective holder of Series H Preferred Stock. The Corporation shall mail the reports to the holders of Series H Preferred Stock within 30 days after the respective dates by which the Corporation would have been required to file the reports with the SEC if the Corporation were then subject to Section 13 or 15(d) of the Exchange Act, assuming the Corporation is a "non-accelerated filer" in accordance with the Exchange Act.

Section 9. Record Holders. The Corporation and the Transfer Agent shall deem and treat the record holder of any shares of Series H Preferred Stock as the true and lawful owner thereof for all purposes, and neither the Corporation nor the Transfer Agent shall be affected by any notice to the contrary.

Section 10. Sinking Fund. The Series H Preferred Stock shall not be entitled to the benefits of any retirement or sinking fund.

Section 11. Preemptive Rights. No holders of Series H Preferred Stock will, as holders of Series H Preferred Stock, have any preemptive rights to purchase or subscribe for the Corporation's Common Stock or any of its other securities.

Section 12. Amendment of Resolution. The Board reserves the right from time to time to increase (but not in excess of the total number of authorized shares of Preferred Stock) or decrease (but not below the number of shares of Series H Preferred Stock then outstanding) the number of shares that constitute the Series H Preferred Stock by further resolution adopted by the Board or a duly authorized committee of the Board and by the filing of a certificate pursuant to the provisions of the DGCL stating that such increase or decrease, as the case may be, has been so authorized and in other respects to amend this Certificate of Designation within the limitations provided by law, this resolution and the Certificate of Incorporation.

Section 13. Book Entry.

(a) <u>Global Certificates</u>. The Series H Preferred Stock shall be issued initially in the form of one or more fully registered global certificates ("**Global Preferred Shares**"), which shall be deposited on behalf of the purchasers represented thereby with the Transfer Agent, as custodian for DTC, or with DTC's nominee, Cede & Co., or such other depositary of the Corporation's choosing that is a "clearing corporation" within the meaning of the New York Uniform Commercial Code and a clearing agency under Section 17A of the Exchange Act (the "**Depositary**") (or with such other custodian as the Depositary may direct), and registered in the name of the Depositary or its nominee, duly executed by the Corporation and authenticated by the Transfer Agent. The number of shares of Series H Preferred Stock represented by Global Preferred Shares may from time to time be increased or decreased by adjustments made on the records of the Transfer Agent and the Depositary as hereinafter provided. Members of, or participants in, the Depositary ("**Agent Members**") shall have no rights under these terms of the Series H Preferred Stock with respect to any Global Preferred Shares held on their behalf by the Depositary or by the Transfer Agent and any agent of the Corporation or the Transfer Agent as the absolute owner of such Global Preferred Shares for all purposes whatsoever. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein shall prevent the Corporation, the Transfer Agent or any agent of the Corporation or the Transfer Agent from giving effect to any written certification, proxy or other authorization furnished by the Depositary or impair, as between the Depositary and its Agent Members, the operation of customary practices of the Depositary governing the exercise of the rights of a holder of a beneficial interest in any Global Preferred Shares.

(b) <u>Direct Registration System</u>. The Series H Preferred Stock will be registered in book-entry form through the Direct Registration System (the "**DRS**"). The DRS is a system administered by DTC pursuant to which the depositary may register the ownership of uncertificated shares, which ownership shall be evidenced by periodic statements issued by the depositary to the holders of shares of Series H Preferred Stock entitled thereto. This direct registration form of ownership allows holders to have securities registered in their names without requiring the issuance of a physical stock certificate, eliminates the need for holders to safeguard and store certificates and permits the electronic transfer of securities to effect transactions without transferring physical certificates.

[Signature Page Follows]

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Ault Alliance, Inc. has caused this Certificate of Designation, Rights and Preferences to be signed by the undersigned as of the date first written above.

AULT ALLIANCE, INC.

By:

Name: Title:

[Signature Page to Series H Certificate of Designation]

Ault Alliance Announces Share Buyback of up to 333,333,333 Shares of Common Stock at \$0.15 per Share Through Exchange Offer for New Class of Preferred Stock

- Stockholders can exchange blocks of 200 shares of common stock into three shares of a \$10 liquidation preference, 10% cumulative dividend, non-voting, redeemable, perpetual preferred stock.
- The \$0.15 liquidation preference per common share equivalent of the Series H Preferred Stock represents a 55% increase over the last reported sales price of our Common Stock as of March 28, 2023, on the NYSE American.
- Shares tendered will be retired, reducing share count by approximately 80.0%.
- For record holders of stock the expiration time of the offer is one minute following 11:59 P.M (12:00 midnight), New York City time, on Friday April 28, 2023.
- Stockholders who hold their stock through a broker or other nominee will likely have an earlier deadline by which they must instruct their broker or nominee to tender. Each broker and nominee is different and stockholders must follow the applicable requirements and deadlines of their broker or nominee.

LAS VEGAS--(BUSINESS WIRE) – March 31, 2023 – Ault Alliance, Inc. ("Ault Alliance" or the "Company") (NYSE American: AULT), announced today that it is commencing an offer (the "Offer") to holders of Ault Alliance's outstanding shares of Class A Common Stock (the "Common Stock"), to exchange up to 333,333,333 shares of Common Stock for up to \$50,000,000 aggregate liquidation preference of its 10.00% Series H Cumulative Redeemable Perpetual Preferred Stock ("Series H Preferred Stock"), with each 200 shares of Common Stock being exchangeable in the Offer for three shares of Series H Preferred Stock having a liquidation preference of \$10.00 per share of Series H Preferred Stock (an effective price of \$0.15 per share of Common Stock).

If Common Stock tendered is freely tradable, the Series H Preferred Stock received in the exchange will be freely tradable. If the Common Stock tendered in the exchange is restricted, the Series H Preferred Stock will be restricted to the same degree. The Offer is being made pursuant to the terms and subject to the conditions set forth in the Offer to Exchange dated March 31, 2023, as may be amended or supplemented in accordance with the terms thereof.

Holders of Common Stock who validly tender on or prior to one minute following 11:59 P.M (12:00 midnight), New York City time, on Friday April 28, 2023 (unless extended, the "Expiration Date"), will receive for each 200 shares of Common Stock tendered, three shares of Series H Preferred Stock with a liquidation preference of \$10.00 per share. The maximum number of shares of Common Stock that may be exchanged into Series H Preferred Stock in the Offer is 333,333,333. If the number of shares of Common Stock designated by all tendering holders of shares of Common Stock making valid tender exceeds 333,333,333, then all tenders will be accepted on a pro rata basis such that the aggregate liquidation preference of Series H Preferred Stock issued in exchange for Common Stock does not exceed \$50,000,000.

Stockholders who hold their shares through a brokerage firm (e.g., Schwab, TD Ameritrade, Fidelity, Robinhood, etc.), should contact their brokerage firm and follow the brokerage firm's procedures for instructing the broker to tender shares of Common Stock. Because it may take some time for the broker to process instructions, stockholders should contact their broker far enough in advance of the Expiration Date to enable the broker to timely follow the tender instructions and ensure they meet any earlier deadlines set by their broker.

Consummation of the Offer is subject to the satisfaction or waiver of certain conditions; including, the minimum of 150,000,000 shares of Common Stock that must be tendered in the Offer and the receipt of the consent of JGB with respect to the Offer. Ault Alliance reserves the right, in its sole discretion, to waive or modify any one or more of the conditions to the Offer.

Ault Alliance intends to apply to list the Series H Preferred Stock on the NYSE American Market or Nasdaq Capital Market. If this application is approved, trading in the Series H Preferred Stock is expected to commence within a 30-day period after the approval of listing. If the application is not approved, we intend to file an application to admit the Series H Preferred Stock for trading on the OTC.

Holders of shares of the Series H Preferred Stock will be entitled to receive dividends cumulatively from the date of initial issue and will be payable on the last day of each calendar quarter commencing on June 30, 2023 when, as and if declared by the Company's board of directors. Dividends will be payable out of amounts legally available therefor at a rate equal to 10.00% per annum per \$10.00 of stated liquidation preference per share, or \$0.25 per share of Series H Preferred Stock per quarter. Dividends may be paid, at the option of the Company, in the form of Common Stock determined by dividing (x) the total aggregate dollar amount of dividends accrued and unpaid with respect to Series H Preferred Stock owned by such record holder on the record date for the applicable dividend payment date (rounded to the nearest whole cent) by (y) the ten-day VWAP per share of Common Stock prior to the dividend payment date. If the Company declares a dividend to holders of Common Stock in the form of shares of the stock of its subsidiaries, then holders of Series H Preferred Stock were convertible into shares of Common Stock at a price of \$0.15 per share. However, holders of Series H Preferred Stock will not otherwise participate in any dividends or distributions of cash or other property paid in respect of our Common Stock with holders of the Common Stock.

Documents relating to the Offer may be downloaded at: https://ir.aultglobal.com/financial-information/sec-filings, and will be distributed to holders of shares of Common Stock who request them from Georgeson, the information agent for the Offer at 888-565-5423 or visit https://to. aultglobal.com/ for this purpose.

This press release is for informational purposes only and shall not constitute an offer to sell or exchange nor the solicitation of an offer to buy the Series H Preferred Stock or any other securities. The Offer is not being made to any person in any jurisdiction in which the offer, solicitation or sale is unlawful. Any offers of the Series H Preferred Stock will be made only by means of the Offer to Exchange.

The complete terms and conditions of the Offer are set forth in the Offer to Exchange and related letter of transmittal that is being furnished to holders of Common Stock and also filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on Schedule TO. Stockholders of Ault Alliance are strongly encouraged to read the Schedule TO and related exhibits because they contain important information about the Offer. The Schedule TO and related exhibits will be available without charge at the Securities and Exchange Commission's website at http://www.sec.gov and will be delivered without charge to all stockholders of Ault Alliance.

About Ault Alliance, Inc.

Ault Alliance, Inc. is a diversified holding company pursuing growth by acquiring undervalued businesses and disruptive technologies with a global impact. Through its wholly and majority-owned subsidiaries and strategic investments, Ault Alliance owns and operates a data center at which it mines Bitcoin and provides mission-critical products that support a diverse range of industries, including metaverse platform, oil exploration, crane services, defense/aerospace, industrial, automotive, medical/biopharma, consumer electronics, hotel operations and textiles. In addition, Ault Alliance extends credit to select entrepreneurial businesses through a licensed lending subsidiary. Ault Alliance's headquarters are located at 11411 Southern Highlands Parkway, Suite 240, Las Vegas, NV 89141; www.ault.com.

Forward-Looking Statements

This press release contains "forward-looking statements" within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. These forward-looking statements generally include statements that are predictive in nature and depend upon or refer to future events or conditions, and include words such as "believes," "plans," "anticipates," "projects," "estimates," "expects," "intends," "strategy," "future," "opportunity," "may," "will," "should," "could," "potential," or similar expressions. Statements that are not historical facts are forward-looking statements speak only as of the date they are made, and the Company undertakes no obligation to update any of them publicly in light of new information, including potential risk factors, that could affect the Company's business and financial results are included in the Company's filings with the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission, including, but not limited to, the Company's Forms 10-K, 10-Q and 8-K. All filings are available at www.sec.gov and on the Company's website at www.ault.com.

Contacts

IR@Ault.com or 1-888-753-2235

AULT ALLIANCE, INC.

Offer to Exchange up to 333,333,333 shares of its Common Stock (in 200 share increments) for up to \$50,000,000 aggregate liquidation preference of its

10.00% Series H Cumulative Redeemable Perpetual Preferred Stock

Ault Alliance, Inc. ("we", "us", the "Company" or "Ault Alliance") is offering (the "Offer") to exchange up to 333,333,333 shares of its outstanding Class A Common Stock, par value \$0.001 per share (the "Common Stock"), for its 10.00% Series H Cumulative Redeemable Perpetual Preferred Stock ("Series H Preferred Stock"), with each 200 shares of Common Stock being exchangeable in the Offer for three shares of Series H Preferred Stock having a liquidation preference of \$10.00 per share of Series H Preferred Stock (an effective price of \$0.15 per share of Common Stock) (the "Offer"). To avoid issuing fractional shares, Common Stock may only be tendered in increments of 200 shares. The Offer to Exchange") and the related Offer materials (as amended and supplemented from time to time, the "Offer to Exchange") and the related Offer materials (as amended and supplemented from time to time, the "Offer to Exchange").

The Offer Documents contain important information that should be read carefully before any decision is made with respect to the Offer. The following summary is qualified in its entirety by the more detailed information appearing elsewhere in, or incorporated by reference into, the Offer to Exchange and the other Offer Documents. A more comprehensive summary is available beginning on page 3 of the Offer to Exchange. Capitalized terms used but not otherwise defined in this summary have the meanings assigned to them elsewhere in the Offer Documents.

• What is the Offer?

- In the Offer, the Company is offering to exchange shares of Common Stock in 200 share increments and then retiring those shares. The Company is paying three shares of Series H Preferred Stock for each 200 shares, thus for each increment of 200 shares, a stockholder will receive three shares of Series H Preferred Stock having a liquidation preference of \$10.00 per share of Series H Preferred Stock (the equivalent of \$0.15 per share of Common Stock for each share of Common Stock exchanged in the Offer).
- The \$0.15 liquidation preference per common share equivalent of the Series H Preferred Stock represents a 55% increase over the last reported sales price of our Common Stock as of March 28, 2023, on the NYSE American.
- To avoid issuing fractional shares, the Offer is structured in increments of 200 shares of Common Stock such that every 200 shares of Common Stock is exchangeable into three shares of Series H Preferred Stock.
- You should read the Offer Documents in their entirety and consult your own financial, tax, legal and other advisors and must make your own decision as to whether to tender your shares of Common Stock.

What are the terms of the Series H Preferred Stock?

Dividends on the Series H Preferred Stock are cumulative from the date of initial issue and will be payable on the last day of each calendar quarter commencing on June 30, 2023 when, as and if declared by our board of directors. Dividends will be payable out of amounts legally available therefor at a rate equal to 10.00% per annum per \$10.00 of stated liquidation preference per share, or \$0.25 per share of Series H Preferred Stock per quarter. Dividends may be paid, at the option of the Company, in the form of Common Stock determined by dividing (x) the total aggregate dollar amount of dividends accrued and unpaid with respect to Series H Preferred Stock owned by such record holder on the record date for the applicable dividend payment date (rounded to the nearest whole cent) by (y) the ten-day VWAP per share of Common Stock prior to the dividend payment date. If the Company declares a dividend to holders of Common Stock in the form of shares of the stock of its subsidiaries, then holders of Series H Preferred Stock were convertible into shares of Common Stock at a price of \$0.15 per share. However, holders of Series H Preferred Stock will not otherwise participate in any dividends or distributions of cash or other property paid in respect of our Common Stock with holders of the Common Stock. See "Description of Series H Preferred Stock — Dividends" for additional detail.

The Series H Preferred Stock will rank on a parity with all equity securities issued by us, including the Series A Convertible Preferred Stock (the "Series A Preferred Stock"), 13.00% Series D Cumulative Redeemable Perpetual Preferred Stock (the "Series D Preferred Stock"), Series E Preferred Stock (the "Series E Preferred Stock"), Series F Preferred Stock (the "Series G Preferred Stock") upon liquidation and the Series A Preferred Stock and Series D Preferred Stock in the right to receive dividends. On the date that is two years following the initial issuance of the Series H Preferred Stock, we may redeem, at our option, the Series H Preferred Stock, in whole or in part, from time to time, at a redemption price of \$10.00 per share, plus any accumulated and unpaid dividends (whether or not declared) on the Series H Preferred Stock up to, but not including, the date of such redemption, upon written notice, as described in the section entitled "Description of the Series H Preferred Stock — Redemption — Redemption Procedures." The Series H Preferred Stock is perpetual and has no stated maturity date, will not be subject to any sinking fund or other mandatory redemption, and will not be convertible into or exchangeable for any of our other securities.

Holders of the Series H Preferred Stock will generally have no voting rights, except for limited voting rights required by law. Holders of the Series H Preferred Stock will not have any preemptive rights to purchase or subscribe for our Common Stock or any other security.

Upon the occurrence of a Change of Control (defined below), we may, at our option, redeem the Series H Preferred Stock, in whole or in part, within 120 days after the first date on which such Change of Control occurred, for cash at a redemption price of \$10.00 per share, plus any accumulated and unpaid dividends (whether or not declared) to, but not including, the redemption date. For additional detail and the definition of a "Change of Control", see "Description of Series H Preferred Stock — Change of Control Optional Redemption".

Accordingly, because our Series H Preferred Stock will have no maturity date, and we will not be required to redeem our Series H Preferred Stock at any time, our Series Preferred Stock will remain outstanding indefinitely unless we decide to redeem it.

If I hold through a brokerage firm (e.g., Schwab, TD Ameritrade, Fidelity, Robinhood, etc.), how do I participate in the Offer?

• To tender your shares in the Offer, you need to contact your brokerage firm and follow their procedures for instructing them to tender your shares. This is typically found in the messaging center or documents center in your online portal.

- Because it may take some time for the broker to process your instructions, you should contact them far enough in advance of the Expiration Date to enable them to follow your instructions. The Expiration Date is one minute following 11:59 P.M (12:00 midnight), New York City time, on Friday April 28, 2023.
- If you are having difficulty in instructing your broker, you may contact our Information Agent for assistance at Georgeson, call Toll-Free: (888) 565-5423. However, neither the Company, the Information Agent, nor the Exchange Agent can accept your tender directly, only the broker can tender on your behalf.

Can you provide an example of what happens if I own 1,000 shares?

Holders of Common Stock can either:

- 1. Tender any amount of your 1,000 shares, as long as it is in 200 share increments, with each 200 share increments being exchanged for three shares of Series H Preferred Stock having a liquidation preference of \$10.00 per share of Series H Preferred Stock (an effective price of \$0.15 per share of Common Stock) regardless of the share price when you tender. If the tender is oversubscribed, then the Series H Preferred Stock will be allocated among the tendering stockholders on a pro rata basis. For example, if 666,666,666 shares are tendered, 400 of your shares would be exchanged into 6 shares of Series H Preferred Stock and you would keep the remaining 600 common shares. If 333,333,333 shares or less are tendered then whatever amount of stock you tender, the full amount would convert into shares of Series H Preferred Stock.
- 2. Do nothing and keep the 1,000 shares you currently own.

If you choose option 1, you will receive Series H Preferred Stock with a 10% cumulative dividend, which accrues and is payable to investors quarterly. You also have the ability to sell Series H Preferred Stock at any time you would like.

• Is this exchange offer available for retail and institutional investors?

Yes, any type of investor can participate.

How many shares of Common Stock are sought to be exchanged in the Offer? Is it a condition to the Offer?

We are offering to exchange up to 333,333,333 shares of our Common Stock, representing approximately 80% of our shares of Common Stock outstanding as of March 28, 2023. The exchange of at least 150,000,000 shares of our Common Stock, representing approximately 36% of our shares of Common Stock outstanding as of March 28, 2023, is a condition to the Offer.

• Why is the Company making the Offer?

The Company believes that the current price for the Common Stock does not reflect the intrinsic value of the Company.

During the fiscal year ended December 31, 2022, the Company:

- Installed an aggregate of approximately 9,000 miners and intends to install an additional approximately 12,000 miners within the foreseeable future. Once all miners installed, the Company will generate approximately 180 Bitcoin per month, based on the difficulty rate as of March 2023; as of the date of the Offer to Exchange, the Company has since inception of its mining operations mined an aggregate of approximately 1,050 Bitcoin;
- Has fully paid for all its miners in its possession;
- Acquired a majority interest in Circle 8 Crane Services, LLC, which the Company expects to generate significant cash flow;
- Had, as of September 30, 2022, approximately \$610 million in total assets and stockholders' equity of approximately \$320 million. As of March 28, 2023, our shares of Common Stock traded at approximately eleven percent (11%) of our September 30, 2022 net tangible book value per share; and
- Since current management assumed control of the Company, our assets have increased by a factor of 100; in addition, the Company's management believes that the improvements to our balance sheet and income statement will continue over the next ten years.

Consequently, the Company believes that the current price for the Common Stock does not reflect these accomplishments or the intrinsic value of the Company. Thus, the Company believes that the Offer will benefit the holders of its Common Stock as follows:

- those who tender will hold shares of Series H Preferred Stock that have a liquidation preference equivalent to \$0.15 per share of Common Stock;
- have cumulative dividends of 10.00% per annum; and
- retain the right to participate in future dividends in the form of the common stock of our subsidiaries to holders of our Common Stock;
- the \$0.15 liquidation preference per common share equivalent of the Series H Preferred Stock represents a 55% increase over the last reported sales price of our Common Stock as of March 28, 2023, on the NYSE American; and
- those who do not exchange may benefit more from future share value accretion as a result of the reduced number of shares outstanding.

What are the effects of the Offer on the ownership structure of the Company?

Holders of Common Stock who do not exchange their shares will, assuming the Offer closes, see their percentage ownership of our outstanding Common Stock increase, however, the Common Stock will be junior to the Series H Preferred Stock, and any other class of preferred stock in respect of the right to receive payment and rights upon liquidation. In addition, depending on the number of stockholders that elect to tender some or all of their shares of Common Stock in the Offer, there may be fewer shares of Common Stock held by non-affiliated stockholders, and there may therefore be fewer transactions in the shares of Common Stock resulting in lower liquidity.

• When does the Offer expire?

The Offer will expire at one minute following 11:59 P.M (12:00 midnight), New York City time, on Friday April 28, 2023 (unless the Offer is extended). If you hold your stock through a broker or other nominee, the broker or other nominee will likely have an earlier deadline by which you must give them instructions. Each broker and nominee is different and you must follow the applicable requirements and deadlines of your broker or nominee. See "The Offer — Expiration Date; Extensions; Amendments".

• Can the Offer be extended?

Yes, we can extend the Offer.

• What securities are being sought in the Offer and what will I receive in the Offer?

Holders of Common Stock are being offered the opportunity to exchange each 200 shares of Common Stock they own for three shares of Series H Preferred Stock having a liquidation preference equal to \$10.00 per share (equivalent to \$0.15 per share of Common Stock) (the "**Exchange Ratio**"), provided that (1) Common Stock must be tendered in increments of 200 shares, and (2) the aggregate liquidation preference of the Series H Preferred Stock issued to all tendering stockholders in the Offer will not exceed \$50,000,000, upon the terms and subject to the conditions set forth in the Offer to Exchange. To avoid issuing fractional shares, the Offer is structured in increments of 200 shares of Common Stock such that every 200 shares of Common Stock is exchangeable into three shares of Series H Preferred Stock.

In the event that a number of shares of Common Stock is tendered in the Offer that would require us to issue in excess of \$50,000,000 aggregate liquidation preference of Series H Preferred Stock, then all tenders will be accepted on a pro rata basis (based on increments of 200 shares) such that the aggregate liquidation preference of the Series H Preferred Stock issued in the Offer does not exceed \$50,000,000. See "The Offer — Prorating".

• If I participate in the Offer, what is the effective yield of the dividend of the Series H Preferred Stock that I receive?

The effective yield of the Series H Preferred Stock dividend to a holder of Common Stock whose shares are accepted for exchange in the Offer will be equal to the \$1.00 per share of Series H Preferred Stock dividend rate, divided by the holder's basis in the applicable 200 shares of Common Stock. If a holder would have purchased 200 shares of Common Stock at the last reported sale price of Common Stock on March 28, 2023 of \$0.097, the effective dividend yield would have been 15.46%.

• Will the Series H Preferred Stock be freely tradable?

In making the Offer, we are relying on the exemption from the registration requirements of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the "Securities Act") contained in Section 3(a)(9) of the Securities Act for the Series H Preferred Stock. Under that exemption, if Common Stock tendered is freely tradable, the Series H Preferred Stock received in the exchange will be freely tradable.

If the Common Stock tendered in the exchange is restricted, the Series H Preferred Stock will be restricted to the same degree.

We intend to file an application to list the Series H Preferred Stock on the NYSE American or The Nasdaq Capital Market under the symbol "AULT-PDH." If this application is approved, trading in the Series H Preferred Stock is expected to commence within a 30-day period after the approval of listing. However, we cannot assure you that the NYSE American or The Nasdaq Capital Market will list the Series H Preferred Stock or that any trading market will develop for the Series H Preferred Stock. If the application is not approved, we intend to file an application to admit the Series Preferred Stock for trading on the OTC. If a trading market does develop, we cannot assure you as to any price at which the Series H Preferred Stock will trade. See "Risk Factors — There may not be an active trading market for the Series H Preferred Stock".

• Is there a minimum size of the Offer?

Yes. We will require a minimum of 150,000,000 shares of Common Stock to be exchanged in the Offer. This represents approximately 36% of our outstanding Common Stock as of March 28, 2023. If less than 150,000,000 shares are tendered, then we may terminate the Offer, subject to our right to waive any closing conditions.

• Is there a maximum size of the Offer?

Yes. We will accept up to 333,333,333 shares of Common Stock. This represents approximately 80% of our outstanding Common Stock as of March 28, 2023. If more than 333,333,333 shares are tendered, we will only accept 333,333,333 shares of Common Stock, to be allocated among the tendering stockholders on a pro rata basis (based on increments of 200 shares).

• Are there any conditions to the Offer?

Yes. The Offer is conditioned on the closing conditions described under "The Offer—Conditions to the Completion of the Offer", including a minimum number of shares of outstanding Common Stock being validly tendered and the receipt of the consent of JGB with respect to the Offer. We will not be required, but we reserve the right, to waive any of the conditions of the Offer (to the extent permitted by applicable law) and accept for exchange any shares of Common Stock tendered (or, alternatively, we may elect to terminate the Offer) if any of the conditions of the Offer as described under "The Offer—Conditions to the Completion of the Offer" remain unsatisfied.

Under what circumstances may the Offer be terminated?

The Offer may be terminated if the conditions to the Offer discussed in the Offer to Exchange are not satisfied or waived or if we so elect. If the Offer is terminated and you previously have tendered shares of Common Stock, such tendered Common Stock will be credited back to an appropriate account promptly following the termination of the Offer without expense to you. See "The Offer."

• How will I be notified if the Offer is extended, amended or terminated?

We, in our sole discretion, may extend the Expiration Date for any reason. If the Offer is extended, amended or terminated, we will promptly make a public announcement by issuing a press release or filing an amendment to the Schedule TO with the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission. In the case of an extension, the announcement will be issued no later than 9:00 a.m., New York City Time, on the next business day after the previously scheduled expiration date of the Offer. See "The Offer — Expiration Date; Extensions; Amendments".

• What rights will I lose if I exchange my shares of Common Stock in the Offer?

If you validly tender your shares of Common Stock and we accept those shares for exchange, you will lose the rights of a holder of shares of Common Stock and instead only have rights as a holder of Series H Preferred Stock. For example, the Series H Preferred Stock, unlike your shares of Common Stock, do not have the right to share in any capital appreciation. See "Description of Ault Alliance's Common Stock", "Description of Series H Preferred Stock", "Comparison of Rights Between the Common Stock and the Series H Preferred Stock" and "Price Range of the Common Stock; Dividends".

• May I withdraw my tender of shares of Common Stock?

Yes. You can withdraw shares of Common Stock previously tendered for exchange at any time before the Expiration Date. The Expiration Date is one minute following 11:59 P.M (12:00 midnight), New York City time, on Friday April 28, 2023, unless extended as described in the Offer Documents. See "The Offer — Right of Withdrawal".

• What happens if I do not participate in the Offer, or if my shares of Common Stock are not accepted in the Offer because of prorating?

If you currently hold shares of Common Stock and do not tender them or if your shares of Common Stock are not accepted in the Offer because of prorating, your shares of Common Stock will continue to be issued and outstanding. See "The Offer — Terms of the Offer" and "The Offer — Prorating".

• How will I be taxed on the exchange of my shares of Common Stock?

The exchange of Common Stock for Series H Preferred Stock under the Offer is intended to qualify as a recapitalization within the meaning of Section 368(a)(1)(E) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the "**Code**"). Assuming the exchange so qualifies, subject to discussion in the Offer to Exchange, the following U.S. federal income tax consequences are generally intended to result from the transaction:

- No gain or loss will be recognized on an exchange;
- Stockholders' holding period for the Series H Preferred Stock received in an exchange will include the holding period of the Common Stock exchanged in the Offer; and
- Stockholders' initial tax basis of the Series H Preferred Stock received in an exchange will be equal to the adjusted tax basis of the Common Stock exchanged.

See "Certain Material Income Tax Considerations" for further discussion regarding U.S. federal income tax consequences

• What is the status of the Company's "at-the-market" and stock repurchase program?

The Company has terminated its "at-the-market" program and no new "at-the-market" program will be initiated during the pendency of the Offer. The Company has suspended all repurchases under its stock repurchase program and such purchases will remain suspended during the pendency of the Offer.

• Has the board of directors adopted a position on the Offer?

Our board of directors has approved the making of the Offer. However, the board of directors has not made any recommendation as to whether you should tender your shares of Common Stock pursuant to the Offer. You should read the Offer Documents in their entirety and consult your own financial, tax, legal and other advisors and must make your own decision as to whether to tender your shares of Common Stock.

• What are the interests of our directors, executive officers and affiliates in the Offer?

None of the Company or, to the Company's knowledge, any of its affiliates, directors or executive officers, is a party to any contract, arrangement, understanding or agreement with any other person relating, directly or indirectly, to the Offer. See "Interests of directors, executive officers and affiliates of the Company in shares of Common Stock". The Company does not believe that any director or executive officer that owns shares of Common Stock currently intends to tender such shares in the Offer. However, it is possible that one or more of our directors, executive officers who own shares of Common Stock may elect to tender some or all of their shares of Common Stock in the Offer. See "Interests of directors, executive officers and affiliates of the Company in shares of Common Stock".

• Who will pay the fees and expenses associated with the Offer?

We will bear all of our fees and expenses incurred in connection with consummating the Offer. No brokerage commissions are payable by the stockholders to the Information Agent, the Exchange Agent or us. See "The Offer — Fees and Expenses".

Who can answer questions concerning the Offer?

Requests for assistance in connection with the tender of your shares of Common Stock pursuant to the Offer may be directed to the Information Agent for the Offer, Georgeson, at (toll-free) (888) 565-5423.

For further updates on the Offer, please register your email in the field below.

*Email Name

> *As a security measure, please type in the characters displayed below. Click the icon above to listen to the CAPTCHA audio. Note: Audio may not work on all browsers. **This field is case sensitive**

Calculation of Filing Fee Tables

Schedule TO (Form Type)

Ault Alliance, Inc. (Exact Name of Registrant as Specified in its Charter)

Table 1 to Paragraph (a)(7)

	 Transaction Valuation Fee rate		Amount of Filing Fee**	
Fees to Be Paid	\$ 29,999,999.97*	.011020%	\$	3,305.99
Fees Previously Paid	\$ 0.00*		\$	0
Total Transaction Valuation	\$ 29,999,999.97*			
Total Fees Due for Filing			\$	3,305.99
Total Fees Previously Paid			\$	0
Total Fee Offsets			\$	0
Net Fee Due			\$	3,305.99

* Estimated solely for purposes of calculating the amount of the filing fee pursuant to Rule 0-11 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the "Exchange Act"), based on the product of (i) \$0.09, the average of the high and low prices per share of the Issuer's Common Stock on March 29, 2023 as reported on the NYSE American and (ii) 333,333,333, the estimated number of shares of Common Stock to be exchanged in the transaction.

** The filing fee was calculated in accordance with Rule 0-11 under the Exchange Act and the Fee Rate Advisory #1 for Fiscal Year 2023, issued August 26, 2022, by multiplying the transaction value by 0.00011020.